
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

October 20, 2015 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Mia Wallgren, Christian Science Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

October 20, 2015 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Mia Wallgren, Christian Science Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentationsc. Community Presentations
i. The Garage of Blessings - Kristiina Miller, Founder and President

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the 9/30/2015 Special Workshop and Regular Council Meeting on 10/06/2015
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Appointment - Marty Malloy to the Police Community Advisory Board
d. Ordinance No. 1744: Wireless Facilities Modification
e. Ordinance No. 1746: Impact Fee Retention Code Amendment

c. Community Presentations
i. The Garage of Blessings - Kristiina Miller, Founder and President

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the 9/30/2015 Special Workshop and Regular Council Meeting on 10/06/2015
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Appointment - Marty Malloy to the Police Community Advisory Board
d. Ordinance No. 1744: Wireless Facilities Modification
e. Ordinance No. 1746: Impact Fee Retention Code Amendment

1



5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 15-33: Clean Water Facility - Bio-solids Handling
b. Resolution 15-34: Clean Water Facility - Addressing the inclusion of a community use room into 

construction of the Clean Water Facility

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #4
b. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #5
c. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 12
d. Clean Water Facility - Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - Amendment No. 6
e. Clean Water Facility - KBA, Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 for Construction Management 

Services

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 15-33: Clean Water Facility - Bio-solids Handling
b. Resolution 15-34: Clean Water Facility - Addressing the inclusion of a community use room into 

construction of the Clean Water Facility

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #4
b. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #5
c. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 12
d. Clean Water Facility - Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - Amendment No. 6
e. Clean Water Facility - KBA, Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 for Construction Management 

Services

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2



Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – September 30, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

September 30, 2015 
Location – Oak Harbor Elks Lodge #2362, 155 NE Ernst Street 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present:  Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Acting City Administrator/ Finance Director 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Engineering Admin. Assistant Wendy Hobert 
Councilmember Tara Hizon   Development Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns  Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 

Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Operations Manager Steve Bebee 
Accountant Tallie Boyer 

Councilmember Hizon arrived at 12:47 p.m. 
Mayor Scott Dudley was absent. 

Contractors Present: 

Trevor Thies, Hoffman Construction 
Bryan Shirley, Hoffman Construction 
Chris Bjork, Hoffman Construction 
Brian Matson, Carollo Engineers  
Karl Hadler, Carollo Engineers 
Shawn Koorn, HDR Engineering 

Dan Chandler, OAC  
K. Wendall Adams, KBA Construction  
Kris Beaty, KBA Construction 
Chad Oxford, KBA Construction 
Chris Bailey, KBA Construction 
Susan Musselman, Public Financial Management 

1. Discussion Topics relating to the Clean Water Facility

City Engineer Joe Stowell introduced the Agenda and items for discussion. 

a. 60% Design Cost Estimate Comparisons

Presented by Kris Beaty and K. Wendall Adams with KBA Construction. 

Questions by Members of the Council.  

3



  
 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – September 30, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
b. Alternatives for Handling of Bio-solid Materials 

 
Presented by Brian Matson of Carollo Engineers. 
 
Councilmembers asked follow-up questions. 
 

c. Community Room Feasibility Options 
 

Presented by City Engineer Joe Stowell. 
 
Questions and discussion between staff and City Council. 
 

d. Project Funding Strategies/Rate Projections 
 
Presented by Acting City Administrator/Finance Director Doug Merriman, Shawn Koorn with HDR Engineering, 
and Susan Musselman of Public Financial Management (PFM).  
 
Councilmembers asked questions following the presentation.  

 
Public Comments 

Hal Hovey  
Frankie Christian 
JJ Olsen  

 
Closing comments made by City Engineer Joe Stowell. 

 
ADJOURN 

 
Meeting adjourned at 3:42 p.m. 
     

          Notes taken by Wendy Hobert, prepared by 
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

4



Regular Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2015 
Page 1 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2015 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present:  Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  Acting City Administrator/ Finance Director 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns  City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 

Chief of Police Ed Green 
Police Department Officers and Staff 
Economic Development Coordinator Barbara  
Sphon 
Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 

Councilmember Hizon was absent. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Jeff Humphrey, Chaplain of the Island County Sheriff’s Department, led the invocation, and 
Mayor Dudley led the pledge of allegiance. 

Excuse Absent Councilmembers 

Motion: Councilmember Munns moved to excuse Councilmember Hizon, seconded by 
  Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, seconded by 
  Councilmember Severns, unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Proclamation in Recognition of Community Planning Month  
Councilmember Munns read the proclamation and awarded it to Development Director Steve 
Powers.  Mr. Powers shared the individual staff members who serve in the Development Ser-
vices Department and thanked Mayor and Council for the recognition.  

5



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Employee Service Recognition  
 
Ed Green, Chief of Police, recognized Police Corrections Officer Greg Woodward for 15 years 
of Service to the Police Department.  Officer Woodward shared some of his experiences with 
Corrections.  Mr. Woodward thanked his peers and his wife and Council for their support.   
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Dudley opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:19 p.m. No comments, closed at 6:20 
p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on September 15, 2015; Workshop 
Meeting held September 23, 2015 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c. Purchase Authorization - Copier Replacement for Fire Department 
d. Purchase Authorization - Copier Replacement for City Hall 
e. Purchase Authorization - Dumpsters 
f. Purchase Authorization - Diesel & Unleaded Fuel 
g. Purchase Authorization - Flatbed Body for Water Division 
h. Purchase Authorization - City Council Video Equipment 
i. Purchase Authorization - Lagoon Anaerobic Cover Repair 
j. Professional Services Agreement with Orswell Events, LLC for the 2016 Whidbey Island 

Marathon 
k. Approve the Amended Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster 
l. Washington State Department of Enterprise Services - Change Order Proposal No. 2 for 

the Energy Efficiency Project with Ameresco, Inc. 
m. Resolution 15-29: Amendments to the Council Rules of Procedure 
n. Resolution 15-32: Naming the Leash-Free Dog Area as “Sunrise Rotary Dog Park” 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to remove Consent Agenda Item L.  

   Motion seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to accept the Consent Agenda Items A, B, C, D, E, F,  

   G, H, I, J, K, M, and N. Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously  
   approved. 

 
STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
City Administrator 
 
Acting City Administrator/ Finance Director Dr. Merriman scheduled a Special Meeting with 
Council to discuss Economic Development with our new Economic Development Coordinator 
Barbara Spohn.  The Special Meeting is set for Thursday, November 12, 2015  
 
Dr. Merriman provided an update with the Ameresco lighting project.  Citizens may notice new 
street lights going in which is part of our energy efficiency project with Ameresco, Inc.   
 

6



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 
 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff  
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project. 
 
Councilmember Campbell asked the City Engineer a follow-up question regarding potential 
flooding and Mr. Stowell responded. 
 
Councilmember Almberg commended staff on the public outreach that is taking place. 
 
Councilmember Servatius commended staff on the public outreach that is taking place.  
 
 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by the Elks Lodge 
 
Elks Lodge Member Jason Wayne provided the Council with an update on the 2016 Whidbey 
Island Marathon. 
 
Councilmember Munns commented positively on the day of the week change from Sunday to 
Saturday. 
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley had no comments.  
 
Councilmembers 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao had no comments. 
 
Councilmember Campbell had no comments. 
 
Councilmember Almberg had no comments. 
 
Councilmember Munns attended an AWC Board of Directors meeting.  AWC is requesting that 
we share our Legislative Agenda for 2016 once approved, so that they can support us.  Wash-
ington State Auditors are requesting that City Clerks to send in stories about how the Open 
Records Act is affecting us.  Ms. Munns also commended participation in the recent United Way 
event. 
 
Mayor Dudley requested Fire Chief Ray Merrill to explain the fundraising efforts of the Police 
and Fire Departments and where the funds are given.   
 
Fire Chief Merrill responded that the funds are given to the Wounded Warrior Project through 
the Stashtober campaign. 
 
Mayor Dudley commented on having the Legislative Priorities on an upcoming workshop.  Ar-
rangements will be made to meet with our Legislators in December to begin discussing our Leg-
islative Priorities. 
 
Councilmember Severns reported on attending the most recent Economic Development Council 
Board meeting.  Mr. Severns commented on the “Leave A Book, Take A Book” project dedica-

7



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – October 6, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 
 

tion that he attended.  He commented on attending the United Way event, the Boy Scout Break-
fast and the Oak Harbor Education Foundation Breakfast. 
 
Councilmember Servatius commented on attending the Oak Harbor Education Foundation 
Breakfast.  Chamber of Commerce is kicking-off the “Light-up Your Business” campaign.  He 
also commented positively on the new LED street lights. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS 
 

Resolution 15-31: Surplus of Two Refuse Trucks and One Curotto Can Attachment 
Staff report presented by Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the Public Hearing at 7:03 pm, no comments, closed at 7:04 pm. 
 
Resolution 15-31: Surplus of Two Refuse Trucks and One Curotto Can Attachment 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Resolution 15-31, seconded by Council- 

   member Campbell, unanimously approved. 
 

CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 

Confirmation of the Employment Agreement for City Administrator Doulas A. Merriman 
Mayor Dudley presented this item before Council. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:10 pm, no comments, closed at 7:10 
pm. 
 
Confirmation of the Employment Agreement for City Administrator Doulas A. Merriman 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to confirm the Appointment of Dr. Douglas Merriman  

   As the Oak Harbor City Administrator, seconded by Councilmember Severns, unani-  
   mously approved. 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the City Administrator  

   Employment Agreement with Dr. Douglas Merriman, seconded by Councilmember  
   Servatius, unanimously approved. 

 
Council and the public applauded  

ADJOURN 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Servatius,       

   unanimously approved.  
 

Meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 
            

 
Notes taken by Kellye Mazzoli, Executive  
Assistant to the Mayor, prepared by  
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

8



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Deputy City Administrator/ Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Deputy City Administrator/ Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 163885 through 164091 in the amount of $1,025,092.80.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 35939 through 36069.

- EFT check numbers 749 through 751.

- Payroll check numbers 98361 through 98373.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature cover sheets is attached. Claim cover sheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 163885 through 164091 in the amount of $1,025,092.80.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 35939 through 36069.

- EFT check numbers 749 through 751.

- Payroll check numbers 98361 through 98373.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

9



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

10

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444341386_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444921870_at.pdf


10/07/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 9:34:29AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163885 10/7/2015 0002214  BROWN, DAVID F Ref000227249 UB Refund Cst #00121935  111.00
Total :  111.00

 163886 10/7/2015 0000483  KOETJE AGENCY Ref000227252 UB Refund Cst #00126184  114.63
Total :  114.63

 163887 10/7/2015 0003460  LISZAK, ANN Ref000227253 UB Refund Cst #00126287  14.22
Total :  14.22

 163888 10/7/2015 0007953  METCALF, PATRICK Ref000227258 UB Refund Cst #00162832  128.67
Total :  128.67

 163889 10/7/2015 0007950  MIRANDA, THOMAS Ref000227254 UB Refund Cst #00147925  21.65
 21.65UB Refund Cst #00147925Ref000227255

Total :  43.30

 163890 10/7/2015 0007952  NEUFELD, BYRON Ref000227257 UB Refund Cst #00158418  138.38
Total :  138.38

 163891 10/7/2015 0007956  ORZECH, ERICA Ref000227262 UB Refund Cst #00167208  120.00
Total :  120.00

 163892 10/7/2015 0007951  RALSTON, GERALDINE Ref000227256 UB Refund Cst #00156712  70.88
Total :  70.88

 163893 10/7/2015 0007949  SCHULTE, RICHARD Ref000227251 UB Refund Cst #00125021  125.00
Total :  125.00

 163894 10/7/2015 0007954  THOMPSON, PATRICK Ref000227259 UB Refund Cst #00165871  60.70
Total :  60.70

 163895 10/7/2015 0007293  TRISLER, SHAWN Ref000227248 UB Refund Cst #00121150  152.24
Total :  152.24

 163896 10/7/2015 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000227250 UB Refund Cst #00124762  141.59
 32.88UB Refund Cst #00165880Ref000227260

1Page:
11



10/07/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 9:34:29AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  174.47 163896 10/7/2015 0001391 0001391  WINDERMERE

 163897 10/7/2015 0007955  WOODSON, RACHEL Ref000227261 UB Refund Cst #00166039  16.70
Total :  16.70

Bank total :  1,270.19 13 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,270.19Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 13

2Page:
12



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163898 10/12/2015 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 100915 PREMIUMS  43.83
Total :  43.83

 163899 10/12/2015 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 093015 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,430.90
Total :  4,430.90

 163900 10/13/2015 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 100215 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  738.00
Total :  738.00

 163901 10/14/2015 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51166323 BATTERIES  722.31
Total :  722.31

 163902 10/14/2015 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 25162 KEYS  5.44
 48.92DEADBOLT REASSEMBLY51426

 106.53COMBINATION CHANGE52338
Total :  160.89

 163903 10/14/2015 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 952-769089 PLUG-IN CB  74.87
Total :  74.87

 163904 10/14/2015 0007464  ALLIED FIRE & SECURITY RCB1180360 4TH QTR 2015/MONITORING  90.00
Total :  90.00

 163905 10/14/2015 0000036  AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS 1747308-86037666 REGISTRATION/PETERSCHMIDT  465.00
Total :  465.00

 163906 10/14/2015 0000712  AMERIGAS 3044586334 PROPANE  284.77
 95.00TANK RENTAL3044586339

Total :  379.77

 163907 10/14/2015 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 SEP 2015/WATER PURCHASED  129,500.00
 1,444.93SEP 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 12,673.01SEP 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02
Total :  143,617.94

 163908 10/14/2015 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF HC101502 REGISTRATION REFUND  225.00

1Page:
13



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  225.00 163908 10/14/2015 0000042 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF

 163909 10/14/2015 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 100215 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00
 300.00PUBLIC DEFENSE100715

Total :  600.00

 163910 10/14/2015 0005001  ARAMARK 1988149573 UNIFORM SERVICES  16.26
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988149574
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988149575
 13.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988149576
 15.71UNIFORM SERVICES1988149577
 33.85UNIFORM SERVICES1988149578
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988149579
 31.38UNIFORM SERVICES1988154272
 27.66UNIFORM SERVICES1988154273
 53.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988160807
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988160808
 11.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988160809
 16.60UNIFORM SERVICES1988160810
 18.42UNIFORM SERVICES1988160811
 39.28UNIFORM SERVICES1988160812
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988160813
 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988165500
 31.38UNIFORM SERVICES1988165503
 28.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988165504
 17.66UNIFORM SERVICES1988172070
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988172071
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988172072
 13.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988172073
 16.25UNIFORM SERVICES1988172074
 53.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988172075
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988172076
 31.38UNIFORM SERVICES1988176859
 28.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988176860
 18.98UNIFORM SERVICES1988183405
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988183406
 11.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988183407

2Page:
14



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163910 10/14/2015 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
 30.62UNIFORM SERVICES1988183408
 69.12UNIFORM SERVICES1988183409
 53.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988183410
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988183411
 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988188096
 31.38UNIFORM SERVICES1988188099
 28.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988188100

Total :  883.98

 163911 10/14/2015 0006703  ARCMATE MANUFACTURING CORP INV037828 TONGS  244.82
Total :  244.82

 163912 10/14/2015 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0800949-IN FUEL  8,461.84
 6,923.48FUEL0800954-IN
 8,573.90FUEL0804406-IN

Total :  23,959.22

 163913 10/14/2015 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1503218-IN TESTING  146.00
Total :  146.00

 163914 10/14/2015 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 167936 HVAC ASSESSMENT  898.21
Total :  898.21

 163915 10/14/2015 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163916 10/14/2015 0000097  BEST WESTERN HARBOR PLAZA 24 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/SPOHN  531.30
Total :  531.30

 163917 10/14/2015 0006233  BEST WESTERN PLUS 3817 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/ROBINSON  292.24
Total :  292.24

 163918 10/14/2015 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2404 NAME TAPES  10.50
Total :  10.50

 163919 10/14/2015 0002551  BOS, BRYON 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

3Page:
15



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 163919 10/14/2015 0002551 0002551  BOS, BRYON

 163920 10/14/2015 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163921 10/14/2015 0000137  BRIM TRACTOR COMPANY IM84055 HOSE/TUBES  719.17
Total :  719.17

 163922 10/14/2015 0007926  BROWN, MICHAEL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  116.21
Total :  116.21

 163923 10/14/2015 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF30653 JOB POSTING  50.00
Total :  50.00

 163924 10/14/2015 0000143  CADA ST-OHLD-01 APR 2015/SANE TRAINING  624.15
Total :  624.15

 163925 10/14/2015 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 378836 SUPPLIES  879.40
Total :  879.40

 163926 10/14/2015 0006215  CAROLLO 0141641 PROF SVC/PRELIMINATRY ENGINEERING AND FA 39,369.50
Total :  39,369.50

 163927 10/14/2015 0001235  CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES 27937100 FLAGS  472.88
Total :  472.88

 163928 10/14/2015 0005208  CARTER, SERLOYD 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163929 10/14/2015 0007943  CAUFFMAN, GIDEON 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163930 10/14/2015 0000157  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC ZB01728 DVDS  54.55
Total :  54.55

 163931 10/14/2015 0006009  CHICOBAG COMPANY 74981 BAGS  1,962.50
Total :  1,962.50

 163932 10/14/2015 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 29191 TOWING SERVICES  219.03

4Page:
16



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  219.03 163932 10/14/2015 0000172 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE

 163933 10/14/2015 0001891  COMFORT INN AUBURN 27200152 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/POLLOCK  87.30
 87.30HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/CARROLL27200169
 98.35HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BUXTON27413880

Total :  272.95

 163934 10/14/2015 0000193  COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION 46382 ALARM SYSTEM TESTING  1,140.00
Total :  1,140.00

 163935 10/14/2015 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1424525 CRUSHED ROCK  178.50
 85.85WASHED ROCK1427342

Total :  264.35

 163936 10/14/2015 0003411  CORSTONE CONTRACTORS 100815 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,192.87
Total :  1,192.87

 163937 10/14/2015 0007908  CXTEC 6794945 USER LICENSE  103.27
Total :  103.27

 163938 10/14/2015 0000234  DAVID EVANS & ASSOCIATES, INC 362731 PROF SVC/VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK SIDEWALK 3,611.02
 11,515.93PROF SVC/VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK SIDEWALK363929

Total :  15,126.95

 163939 10/14/2015 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-45 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-45
 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-29
 60.00PORTABLES1-521401-12

 120.00PORTABLES1-521402-12
 120.00PORTABLES1-521402-13
 185.00PORTABLES1-525642-6
 60.00PORTABLES1-525643-6

 1,135.92MINI EXCAVATOR1-530170
 120.00PORTABLES1-530333
 60.00PORTABLES1-530334
 59.85CAN PUMPING1-531071

Total :  2,100.77

5Page:
17



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163940 10/14/2015 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 1094 LAUNDRY SERVICES  2.99
Total :  2.99

 163941 10/14/2015 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 15-19750 TESTING  28.00
 18.00TESTING15-20548

 300.00TESTING15-21645
Total :  346.00

 163942 10/14/2015 0007986  EDMONDS, CITY OF HC101507 REGISTRATION REFUND  450.00
Total :  450.00

 163943 10/14/2015 0000276  EDSON INTERNATIONAL 6597241 COUPLING INSERT  99.08
Total :  99.08

 163944 10/14/2015 0007983  ENGELS, JODY 1 SUCCESSFUL STUDY HABITS  150.00
Total :  150.00

 163945 10/14/2015 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK20996 CABLE TIES  2.93
 133.61MIDGET FUSEWAOAK21043

Total :  136.54

 163946 10/14/2015 0007929  FEHR PEERS 102664 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR TRANSPORTATION ELEME 24,051.44
Total :  24,051.44

 163947 10/14/2015 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,343.04
 83.14CURRENT PHONE CAHRGES279-0841
 71.59CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 246.54CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568
 64.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 47.63CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190
 64.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 75.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 64.67CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 64.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651
 64.67CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789
 69.82CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 403.06CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 70.04CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902

6Page:
18



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163947 10/14/2015 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER
 173.96CURRENT PHONE CAHRGES679-5551
 90.71CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,997.99

 163948 10/14/2015 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 115369 SHINGLES  29.90
Total :  29.90

 163949 10/14/2015 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 104804 KIT  60.64
 290.42CYLINDERS105784
-108.70CORECM101784

Total :  242.36

 163950 10/14/2015 0000329  GALLS 004002376 SWEATPANTS  17.37
 407.63UNIFORM SH/SHD004079964

Total :  425.00

 163951 10/14/2015 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  612.00
 1,040.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 246.25TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB
Total :  1,898.25

 163952 10/14/2015 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2015557 CPU INSTALLATION  264.14
Total :  264.14

 163953 10/14/2015 0002788  GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC TRP/100075352 REGISTRATION/SILVEIRA  250.00
Total :  250.00

 163954 10/14/2015 0000349  GRAINGER 9844092230 SWITCH HEAD/SWITCH  402.08
 465.24SOLENOID VALVE9844092248
 465.24CUTOFF TOOL KIT9852133926

Total :  1,332.56

 163955 10/14/2015 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-0000027 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  729.33
Total :  729.33

 163956 10/14/2015 0000999  GRCC/WW 146408 REGISTRATON/SMITH  755.00

7Page:
19



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  755.00 163956 10/14/2015 0000999 0000999  GRCC/WW

 163957 10/14/2015 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8340 PROJECT SUPPORT  770.00
Total :  770.00

 163958 10/14/2015 0007109  GREEN, EDGAR TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  108.50
Total :  108.50

 163959 10/14/2015 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 608898 ALARM MONITORING  57.00
Total :  57.00

 163960 10/14/2015 0006590  HAFFNER, OTTO 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163961 10/14/2015 0007236  HAMMOND, JACOB 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163962 10/14/2015 0007981  HAYES INSTRUMENT COMPANY, INC 693437 LOCATOR  587.74
Total :  587.74

 163963 10/14/2015 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4048669 METER  530.78
 867.26WEDGE ACTION KIT/RETAINER/PIPEI4054250

Total :  1,398.04

 163964 10/14/2015 0007871  HERRICK POLYGRAPH SERVICE 469 PRE-EMPLOYMENT/MORGAN  250.00
Total :  250.00

 163965 10/14/2015 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 56403791 COMPUTER  1,042.43
Total :  1,042.43

 163966 10/14/2015 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY CWF05 PROF SVC/OH CLEAN WATER FACILITY  11,389.59
 354,775.30PROF SVC/OUTFALLOFC05
 91,647.69PROF SVC/OH CLEAN WATER FACILITY PRECONSP10

Total :  457,812.58

 163967 10/14/2015 0005083  HOLIDAY INN DOWNTOWN YAKIMA 10875 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/FAKKEMA  188.60
Total :  188.60

8Page:
20



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163968 10/14/2015 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 621874 COFFEE SUPPLIES  47.11
Total :  47.11

 163969 10/14/2015 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 15040404 DOCKING STATION  227.61
 438.22MONITORS15040410

Total :  665.83

 163970 10/14/2015 0004610  ISLAND COUNTY HC101501 REGISTRATION REFUND  900.00
Total :  900.00

 163971 10/14/2015 0000401  ISLAND COUNTY AUDITOR B0038297 ELECTION  16,700.13
Total :  16,700.13

 163972 10/14/2015 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 1476 HEPATITIS IMMUNIZATIONS  402.00
Total :  402.00

 163973 10/14/2015 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 093015 SEP 2015/TIPPING FEES  78,941.07
Total :  78,941.07

 163974 10/14/2015 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 093015 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  235.02
Total :  235.02

 163975 10/14/2015 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 010 SEP 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

 163976 10/14/2015 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 080115 JUL 2015/RECYCLING  5,661.15
 5,161.45SEP 2015/RECYCLING100115

 103.43RECYCLING4116659
Total :  10,926.03

 163977 10/14/2015 0007910  ISLAND DIVE SERVICES 17 FLOATION BLOCKS  174.24
Total :  174.24

 163978 10/14/2015 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114508226268 INMATE MEDS  32.65
Total :  32.65

 163979 10/14/2015 0000438  ISLAND PAINT & GLASS 30488 PAINT  43.47
 246.26PAINT30510

9Page:
21



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  289.73 163979 10/14/2015 0000438 0000438  ISLAND PAINT & GLASS

 163980 10/14/2015 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 236885 WATER/MARINA  14.30
 7.15WATER/MARINA237146

Total :  21.45

 163981 10/14/2015 0000447  JAMESON, KEITH EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  54.88
Total :  54.88

 163982 10/14/2015 0007604  JANSEN, JOSH 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163983 10/14/2015 0003848  KELLER SUPPLY COMPANY S008925814.001 BTL FLLG STN  4,907.82
Total :  4,907.82

 163984 10/14/2015 0005628  KESSLER, ROSE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00
Total :  15.00

 163985 10/14/2015 0002227  LABORATORY CORPORATION OF 48128313 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  48.50
Total :  48.50

 163986 10/14/2015 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5103398MB ASPHALT  763.96
 633.52ASPHALT5103425MB
 306.87ASPHALT5103445MB

Total :  1,704.35

 163987 10/14/2015 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 11 INTERPRETER SERVICES  211.25
Total :  211.25

 163988 10/14/2015 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 163989 10/14/2015 0007976  LEEDWAY, LLC 09281505 BADGE  30.93
Total :  30.93

 163990 10/14/2015 0007974  LEFEVRE, DENNIS EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  55.00
 4.00TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

10Page:
22



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  59.00 163990 10/14/2015 0007974 0007974  LEFEVRE, DENNIS

 163991 10/14/2015 0000979  LES SCHWAB 093015 FINANCE CHARGE  0.93
Total :  0.93

 163992 10/14/2015 0006941  LEXIPOL, LLC 14822 POLICY MANUAL UPDATE  5,550.00
Total :  5,550.00

 163993 10/14/2015 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGE 1404645-20150930 SEP 2015/MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35
Total :  54.35

 163994 10/14/2015 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 100515 NOTARY RENEWAL/WEBSTER 0003638  30.00
 30.00NOTARY APPLICATION/BRAUNSTEIN100615

Total :  60.00

 163995 10/14/2015 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00064718 BROOM  823.98
 472.06BROOM00064719
 135.81COUPLERS00064760

Total :  1,431.85

 163996 10/14/2015 0007987  LONGVIEW, CITY OF HC101506 REGISTRATION REFUND  225.00
Total :  225.00

 163997 10/14/2015 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  129.00
 132.00DRIVING SERVICES1
 78.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  339.00

 163998 10/14/2015 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 105863 YARD WASTE  166.15
 164.75YARD WASTE105901
 235.90YARD WASTE105950
 174.20YARD WASTE105993
 325.05YARD WASTE106174
 198.35YARD WASTE106224
 231.25YARD WASTE106267
 276.75YARD WASTE106321
 104.90YARD WASTE106466
 181.55YARD WASTE106574

11Page:
23



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 163998 10/14/2015 (Continued)0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY
 234.40YARD WASTE106605
 202.90YARD WASTE106647
 203.95YARD WASTE106791
 117.50YARD WASTE106829
 159.50YARD WASTE106898
 167.55YARD WASTE106941
 104.55YARD WASTE107060
 141.65YARD WASTE107113
 20.00YARD WASTE107116

 139.90YARD WASTE107145
Total :  3,550.75

 163999 10/14/2015 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 694772 GROCERIES  358.05
 340.78GROCERIES694824

Total :  698.83

 164000 10/14/2015 0000362  MARSH-MCBIRNEY - HACH COMPANY 9581636 FLUORIDE  93.19
Total :  93.19

 164001 10/14/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P41543 SEP 2015/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  445.78
 3,039.16SEP 2015/POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP41544

Total :  3,484.94

 164002 10/14/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 41543 SEP 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  242.84
 902.43SEP 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS41544

Total :  1,145.27

 164003 10/14/2015 0000547  MAY, BARBARA TRAVEL ADVANCE2 TRAVEL ADVANCE  9.50
Total :  9.50

 164004 10/14/2015 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  319.25
 27.00TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE

 153.07TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB
 311.90TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  811.22

 164005 10/14/2015 0007722  MERRIMAN, RYAN 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

12Page:
24



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 164005 10/14/2015 0007722 0007722  MERRIMAN, RYAN

 164006 10/14/2015 0000568  MIDWAY MUFFLER & TIRE 97071 WHEEL ALIGNMENT  76.04
Total :  76.04

 164007 10/14/2015 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164008 10/14/2015 0007984  MOSA TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, LLC 1313 LIVESCAN  15,585.40
Total :  15,585.40

 164009 10/14/2015 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV117926 AIR CYLINDER  269.62
Total :  269.62

 164010 10/14/2015 0007979  MYERS, JACK 1 TRAVEL REFUND  21.00
Total :  21.00

 164011 10/14/2015 0007586  NAGEL, GARRETT 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164012 10/14/2015 0000615  NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS TI-0290091 SPEED HUMPS  314.70
Total :  314.70

 164013 10/14/2015 0007975  NEXTITLE 100215 COLLECTION FEE/36-737010-01  3.45
Total :  3.45

 164014 10/14/2015 0000621  NIIRO, CEDRIC 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164015 10/14/2015 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 261062 HANGERS  14.08
 15.83FASTENERS261278
 10.63TRIMMER LINE/CAP261281
-11.04HANGERS261352

 106.84FREIGHT261381
 42.50FREIGHT261414
 17.38PLIERS261512
 32.59TARP261545
 5.42CAM LOCK261625

13Page:
25



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164015 10/14/2015 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE
 21.70SPRAYPAINT261741
 21.70SMPL SAT/TEXTURE SPRAY261755
 76.93PP1 SAT MDHH GL261784
 14.12PADLOCK261823

Total :  368.68

 164016 10/14/2015 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-247707 PARTS  331.30
 26.51PARTS001-248124

-149.09PARTS001-248402
 78.44FILTERS001-253005
 8.44FILTERS001-253071

 13.85FILTERS001-253233
 8.82FILTERS001-253234
 8.20THRD SLNT001-253302
 8.20THRD SLNT001-253303

 54.64THERMOSTATS001-253339
 135.53RELAY/CONNECTOR001-253396
 75.35SP-40001-253467
 64.36WINDOW SWITCH001-253650
 7.10FILTERS001-253656

 146.77FILTERS001-253777
 237.16DSC PAD/ROTORS001-253788
 45.33SEAL/BEARINGS001-253799

 140.03UNTRC FLUI001-253857
 24.72PADS001-253877
 16.41FILTERS001-253880
 37.26DSC PAD ST001-253888

Total :  1,319.33

 164017 10/14/2015 0000676  OAK HARBOR POLICE DEPARTMENT 100115 PETTY CASH  79.91
Total :  79.91

 164018 10/14/2015 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150005 SEP 2015/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  9,660.00
Total :  9,660.00

 164019 10/14/2015 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 790284670001 40 IN CLASS AQUOS HD  379.08

14Page:
26



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164019 10/14/2015 (Continued)0003007  OFFICE DEPOT
 8.25FILE790340881003

 50.59DVDS794184802001
 11.41CD SLEEVES794184921001

Total :  449.33

 164020 10/14/2015 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 872235 CHAIR  217.39
 217.39CHAIR879845

Total :  434.78

 164021 10/14/2015 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 405829 PRE-EMPLOYMENT/SPOHN  40.00
 25.00CHECK408098

Total :  65.00

 164022 10/14/2015 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO JS68112 DOOR MAINTENANCE  448.39
Total :  448.39

 164023 10/14/2015 0000089  OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 00077140 REBUILD KIT  147.46
Total :  147.46

 164024 10/14/2015 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0091985 TIRES  1,462.21
 971.99TIRES0092003
 55.88TIRES0092314
 78.12TIRES0092315
 82.46TIRES0092316
 82.46TIRES0092317

Total :  2,733.12

 164025 10/14/2015 0003164  PAINTERS ALLEY 33734 PAINT  121.94
Total :  121.94

 164026 10/14/2015 0001615  PART WORKS, INC 412637 URINAL SCALE REMOVER  114.58
Total :  114.58

 164027 10/14/2015 0007988  PASCO, CITY OF HC101504 REGISTRATION REFUND  450.00
Total :  450.00

 164028 10/14/2015 0007446  PICCONE, SARA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  72.32

15Page:
27



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164028 10/14/2015 (Continued)0007446  PICCONE, SARA
 40.00TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB
 59.60TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  171.92

 164029 10/14/2015 0004418  PIONEER TREE SERVICE & 13780 TREE SERVICES  1,467.45
Total :  1,467.45

 164030 10/14/2015 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164031 10/14/2015 0000730  POWELL, JANIS 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00
Total :  96.00

 164032 10/14/2015 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164033 10/14/2015 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0029197-IN MAX-1  192.40
 242.00SURVIVAIR PREMIER0029319-IN

Total :  434.40

 164034 10/14/2015 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 0029461-IN GAS CYLINDER  211.97
 150.65ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917
 173.42ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135
 13.40ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

 1,401.57POLE RELOCATE400001037250
Total :  1,951.01

 164035 10/14/2015 0000965  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 100915 LEASEHOLD TAX  30,485.89
Total :  30,485.89

 164036 10/14/2015 0007985  RICHLAND, CITY OF HC101509 REGISTRATION REFUND  225.00
Total :  225.00

 164037 10/14/2015 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1579 TAPING SERVICES  3,156.56
Total :  3,156.56

 164038 10/14/2015 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

16Page:
28



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 164038 10/14/2015 0003024 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM

 164039 10/14/2015 0004528  ROBERTS-EDLIN, LISA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  88.90
Total :  88.90

 164040 10/14/2015 0000780  SABALAUSKY, JANET EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  64.04
Total :  64.04

 164041 10/14/2015 0000781  SAFEWAY 808065 GROCERIES  29.99
Total :  29.99

 164042 10/14/2015 0006455  SCHNEIDER, BRIAN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  143.00
Total :  143.00

 164043 10/14/2015 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164044 10/14/2015 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-748737 ELEMENT  164.55
Total :  164.55

 164045 10/14/2015 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 15-3924 FLANGE  258.59
 196.03CLAMP15-4177

Total :  454.62

 164046 10/14/2015 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 100715 PETTY CASH  149.63
Total :  149.63

 164047 10/14/2015 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH09-2015 SEP 2015/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00
Total :  1,500.00

 164048 10/14/2015 0000817  SHELLEY, TIM 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164049 10/14/2015 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9407519563 SHREDDING SERVICE  60.48
 73.04SHREDDING SERVICE9407519674

Total :  133.52

 164050 10/14/2015 0005003  SILVEIRA, MANUEL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  151.00

17Page:
29



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  151.00 164050 10/14/2015 0005003 0005003  SILVEIRA, MANUEL

 164051 10/14/2015 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-311916 AIR CYLINDER  188.57
Total :  188.57

 164052 10/14/2015 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 13694 ANALYSIS  3,240.65
 38.11TREKKER TRAX141414

 2,431.93T-ZONE141415
 130.42CORNERSTONE436254

Total :  5,841.11

 164053 10/14/2015 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00103874 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  207.00
Total :  207.00

 164054 10/14/2015 0002901  SMITH & LOVELESS, INC 105795 VALVE CHECK/GASKET/O-RING  215.53
Total :  215.53

 164055 10/14/2015 0007865  SMITH, IRVIN OR DONNA 100915 ANIMAL LICENSE REFUND  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164056 10/14/2015 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0080142-IN GASKET  375.91
 1,770.84ARM VALVE0080344-IN

Total :  2,146.75

 164057 10/14/2015 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW655612 PC 09-22-15  108.40
 56.24CITY NOTICESWCW658857
 37.93LODGING TAX GRANTWCW659365

Total :  202.57

 164058 10/14/2015 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3276484821 ICEBAGS  200.29
 593.88TONER3277330384
 186.95TONER3277330385
 126.53CANDLES3277330386
 50.75TITAN ROLLING DUFFEL3277790919
 10.85POSTCARDS3277790920
 5.75MARKERS3278393965

 31.05PENS/TAGS3278393966
 46.72POSTCARDS3278393968

18Page:
30



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164058 10/14/2015 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
 71.72DVDS3278393969
 83.68CORK BOARD/POUCH3278393970

 123.73PACKING TAPE/DVDS3278393971
 5.75MARKERS3278393972

 14.12MARKERS3278393973
 7.27MARKERS3279046443
 7.60MARKERS3279046444

 102.20CARDSTOCK/CALCULATOR TAPE3279046445
 2,830.83TONER3279046446

 55.89HEATER3279046447
 17.57MOUSE PAD/SCISSORS/STAIN REMOVER3279046448
 8.72USB PORT3279046449

 507.49TONER3279046450
 184.78PRINTER3279046452
 51.56BAGS/MOUSE PAD/STAPLER/TAPE DISPENSER/CH3279046453
 42.60FOLDERS3279046454
 65.21EXTERNAL DRIVE3279046455
 52.17CORK BOARD3279046457
 16.62MARKERS3279046458
 6.84MARKERS3279046459

Total :  5,509.12

 164059 10/14/2015 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009622 BOOTS/DALTON  156.74
 133.68BOOTS/CARROLL0009629
 200.00BOOTS/JANSEN0009682

Total :  490.42

 164060 10/14/2015 0006673  SUMMIT SAFETY SHOES 105107 BOOTS  661.82
Total :  661.82

 164061 10/14/2015 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1073929 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44
 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1073934
 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1073935
 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1073937
 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1073940
 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1073949

19Page:
31



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164061 10/14/2015 (Continued)0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL
 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1074771

Total :  278.29

 164062 10/14/2015 0007736  SYSTEMS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY, INC 27652 CAMERA SYSTEM/LIGHT BAR/P17B  4,534.32
 4,534.32CAMERA SYSTEM/LIGHT BAR/P18B27653
 4,534.32CAMERA SYSTEM/LIGHT BAR/P327654
 4,534.32CAMERA SYSTEM/LIGHT BAR/P2B27655

Total :  18,137.28

 164063 10/14/2015 0007568  THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP 3002155090 ELEVATOR SERVICE  304.36
Total :  304.36

 164064 10/14/2015 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 100115 COURT/BC FEES  12,919.11
Total :  12,919.11

 164065 10/14/2015 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W375 SHIPPING  30.32
 40.48SHIPPING0000A0182W385

Total :  70.80

 164066 10/14/2015 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 091815 LONG TERM CARE  269.78
Total :  269.78

 164067 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,366.68
Total :  2,366.68

 164068 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,778.00
Total :  1,778.00

 164069 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,325.59
Total :  1,325.59

 164070 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  925.59
Total :  925.59

 164071 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  579.69
Total :  579.69

20Page:
32



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164072 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  240.43
Total :  240.43

 164073 10/14/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591001286149 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  4.35
Total :  4.35

 164074 10/14/2015 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 5080174 AUG 2015/LOCATES  95.48
 101.64SEP 2015/LOCATES5090173

Total :  197.12

 164075 10/14/2015 0007978  WALSH, ROBERT 100715 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  12.50
Total :  12.50

 164076 10/14/2015 0007388  WALSTAD, TIM 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164077 10/14/2015 0007977  WARNER, ALEXANDER TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  79.88
 312.96TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  392.84

 164078 10/14/2015 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 20115777 TRAINING/NIIRO  75.00
Total :  75.00

 164079 10/14/2015 0000985  WASTE MANAGEMENT 100815 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,553.08
Total :  1,553.08

 164080 10/14/2015 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT DIST, INC 788390.2 INNER CHAMBER  169.82
Total :  169.82

 164081 10/14/2015 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC S864710 RESISTOR  42.59
Total :  42.59

 164082 10/14/2015 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1286 SEP 2015/ANIMAL SHELTER  8,333.37
Total :  8,333.37

 164083 10/14/2015 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 261818 JOINT  12.22
 61.63FILTERS261862
 43.82HOS CLMP/SHUT OFF/BLADE262967

21Page:
33



10/14/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

 2:57:04PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  117.67 164083 10/14/2015 0001000 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC.

 164084 10/14/2015 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 276093 FLAG REPAIR  108.70
Total :  108.70

 164085 10/14/2015 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3896583 ALARM MONITORING  65.23
 42.07CURRENT NET CHARGES3905027
 65.88ALARM MONITORING3907975

Total :  173.18

 164086 10/14/2015 0007982  WILLIAMSON, TYLER 5203 MOORAGE REFUND  192.04
Total :  192.04

 164087 10/14/2015 0007980  WILSON, NANCY WTR-15-00059 WATER SERVICE INSPECT 2  77.00
Total :  77.00

 164088 10/14/2015 0004247  WINKEL, TOM 4033 MOORAGE REFUND  129.18
Total :  129.18

 164089 10/14/2015 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164090 10/14/2015 0001037  WORK OUTFITTERS 50590 BOOTS/VON HADEN  202.85
Total :  202.85

 164091 10/14/2015 0006775  WORKSAFE SERVICE, INC 214670 DRUG TESTING  52.00
Total :  52.00

Bank total :  1,023,822.61 194 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,023,822.61Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 194

22Page:
34



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Appointment - Marty Malloy to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Ed Green, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Mayor requests Council to review the application and approve his appointment of Marty Malloy to the 
Community Advisory Board.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Community Advisory Board (CAB) is part of the police department as delineated in OHMC 2.50 
and is charged with enhancing police community relations.  

The board consists of nine (9) appointed positions; five of whom are City Residents; two (2) of whom

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Appointment - Marty Malloy to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Ed Green, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Mayor requests Council to review the application and approve his appointment of Marty Malloy to the 
Community Advisory Board.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Community Advisory Board (CAB) is part of the police department as delineated in OHMC 2.50 
and is charged with enhancing police community relations.  

The board consists of nine (9) appointed positions; five of whom are City Residents; two (2) of whomThe board consists of nine (9) appointed positions; five of whom are City Residents; two (2) of whom 
are business owners in the City of Oak Harbor; one (1) high school student; one (1) non resident. 

Marty Malloy is the non-resident nominee to fill the non-resident position created when Terry Lacey 
resigned on June 15, 2015. Terry Lacey was originally appointed on May 21, 2013, to fulfill the 
unexpired non-resident position, and then re-appointed for a four (4)-year term on July 1, 2014.

If appointed, Mr. Malloy will serve the remainder of the four (4)-year term, which will expire on April 1, 
2018.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

The board consists of nine (9) appointed positions; five of whom are City Residents; two (2) of whom 
are business owners in the City of Oak Harbor; one (1) high school student; one (1) non resident. 

Marty Malloy is the non-resident nominee to fill the non-resident position created when Terry Lacey 
resigned on June 15, 2015. Terry Lacey was originally appointed on May 21, 2013, to fulfill the 
unexpired non-resident position, and then re-appointed for a four (4)-year term on July 1, 2014.

If appointed, Mr. Malloy will serve the remainder of the four (4)-year term, which will expire on April 1, 
2018.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

35



ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography of Marty Malloy
ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography of Marty Malloy

36

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444765444_at.pdf


37



38



39



40



41



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1744: Wireless 
Facilities Modification 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1744

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This report presents a required code amendment to establish an expedited review process for 
modifications to existing wireless communications towers and base stations. 

In 2012 the US Congress passed the “Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012”. Section
6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the “Spectrum Act”) has mandated that “local governments approve, and cannot

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1744: Wireless 
Facilities Modification 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1744

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This report presents a required code amendment to establish an expedited review process for 
modifications to existing wireless communications towers and base stations. 

In 2012 the US Congress passed the “Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012”. Section 
6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the “Spectrum Act”) has mandated that “local governments approve, and cannot 6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the “Spectrum Act”) has mandated that “local governments approve, and cannot
deny, an application requesting modification of an existing tower or base station if such modification does 
not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station.” The purpose of this act is 
to facilitate and expedite the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless
capacity.  An amendment to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) is necessary to accommodate 
the Spectrum Act’s requirements. This amendment will create a new Chapter (19.30) in the OHMC titled 
“Wireless Facilities Modifications.”

Discussion

OHMC 19.29, (Wireless Communications Facilities) establishes locations and options for wireless 

facilities including: micro facilities
[1]

; mini facilities
[2]

; monopole I
[3]

; and monopoles II
[4]

. OHMC 19.29 
focuses primarily on the construction of new facilities, while this chapter permits collocation of wireless 
facilities on existing structures, it was enacted well in advance of the Spectrum Act and does not provide 
for an expedited review process.

The expedited review created by this amendment is contingent upon the determination that the 
modification does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station. 
Substantially change is defined as:

a) The proposed facilities modification would not increase the height of the eligible support

6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the “Spectrum Act”) has mandated that “local governments approve, and cannot 
deny, an application requesting modification of an existing tower or base station if such modification does 
not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station.” The purpose of this act is 
to facilitate and expedite the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless 
capacity.  An amendment to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) is necessary to accommodate 
the Spectrum Act’s requirements. This amendment will create a new Chapter (19.30) in the OHMC titled 
“Wireless Facilities Modifications.”

Discussion

OHMC 19.29, (Wireless Communications Facilities) establishes locations and options for wireless 

facilities including: micro facilities
[1]

; mini facilities
[2]

; monopole I
[3]

; and monopoles II
[4]

. OHMC 19.29
focuses primarily on the construction of new facilities, while this chapter permits collocation of wireless 
facilities on existing structures, it was enacted well in advance of the Spectrum Act and does not provide 
for an expedited review process.

The expedited review created by this amendment is contingent upon the determination that the 
modification does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station. 
Substantially change is defined as:

a) The proposed facilities modification would not increase the height of the eligible support

42



structure by more than ten percent (10%), or twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater; or

           b)  The mounting of equipment that would involve adding an appurtenance to the body of the 
eligible support structure would not protrude from the edge of the structure more than twenty (20) feet, or 
more than the width of the structure at the level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater.

A modification meeting these criteria is also exempt from the requirements of the State Environmental 
Policy Act (RCW 43.21C.0384).

Code Amendment Process

Creation of Chapter 19.30 is a legislative action. OHMC 19.80.020 requires legislative code 
amendments meet two criteria:

            1)  Must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (November 2014); and,

            2)  Must substantially promote public health, safety, and welfare.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan is achieved by meeting Goal 2 and Policy 2d of the Utility 
Element which states:

            Utilities Goal 2: Process permit requests for utilities in a fair and timely manner to ensure  
predictability.

            Utilities Policy 2d: The City should review and amend existing regulations as necessary 
to provide clear and objective standards for maintenance, repair, installation and replacement 
of utilities. Such changes shall be consistent with other Goals and Policies of the Comprehensive 
Plan for construction practices, restoration of City property/right-of-way, environmental 

structure by more than ten percent (10%), or twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater; or

           b)  The mounting of equipment that would involve adding an appurtenance to the body of the 
eligible support structure would not protrude from the edge of the structure more than twenty (20) feet, or 
more than the width of the structure at the level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater.

A modification meeting these criteria is also exempt from the requirements of the State Environmental 
Policy Act (RCW 43.21C.0384).

Code Amendment Process

Creation of Chapter 19.30 is a legislative action. OHMC 19.80.020 requires legislative code 
amendments meet two criteria:

            1)  Must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (November 2014); and,

            2)  Must substantially promote public health, safety, and welfare.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan is achieved by meeting Goal 2 and Policy 2d of the Utility 
Element which states:

            Utilities Goal 2: Process permit requests for utilities in a fair and timely manner to ensure  
predictability.

            Utilities Policy 2d: The City should review and amend existing regulations as necessary 
to provide clear and objective standards for maintenance, repair, installation and replacement 
of utilities. Such changes shall be consistent with other Goals and Policies of the Comprehensive 
Plan for construction practices, restoration of City property/right-of-way, environmental Plan for construction practices, restoration of City property/right-of-way, environmental 
protection and oak tree preservation.

Public health, safety, and welfare are substantially promoted by providing the opportunity to enhance the 
wireless infrastructure creating a safer environment for Oak Harbor residents. 

This amendment is categorically exempt from the State Environmental Policy Act (WAC 197-11-800
(19). In conformance with RCW 36.70A.106(1), a Notice of Intent to adopt development regulation 
amendments was transmitted to the Department of Commerce.

This amendment establishes application submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for permit 
review, and the approval process. Following adoption of this amendment, Development Services staff will 
prepare an application based on the new Chapter 19.30 guidelines and requirements. Staff will also 
amend Schedule A of the Master Fee Schedule to include this application and review fee.

[1] A micro facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or 
less than four feet in height and with an area not more than 580 square inches.

[2] A mini facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or 

Plan for construction practices, restoration of City property/right-of-way, environmental 
protection and oak tree preservation.

Public health, safety, and welfare are substantially promoted by providing the opportunity to enhance the 
wireless infrastructure creating a safer environment for Oak Harbor residents. 

This amendment is categorically exempt from the State Environmental Policy Act (WAC 197-11-800
(19). In conformance with RCW 36.70A.106(1), a Notice of Intent to adopt development regulation 
amendments was transmitted to the Department of Commerce.

This amendment establishes application submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for permit 
review, and the approval process. Following adoption of this amendment, Development Services staff will 
prepare an application based on the new Chapter 19.30 guidelines and requirements. Staff will also 
amend Schedule A of the Master Fee Schedule to include this application and review fee.

[1] A micro facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or 
less than four feet in height and with an area not more than 580 square inches.

[2] A mini facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or 

43



less than 10 feet in height and with an area not more than 50 square feet.

[3] A monopole I is a wireless communications facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 60 
feet in height) and antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height.

[4] A monopole II is a wireless communication facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 
150 feet in height) and antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.11 grants cities the authority to regulate their affairs.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission unanimously moved to forward a recommendation for City Council approval 
following their Public Hearing September 22, 2015. Minutes from that meeting are included as 
Attachment 1.  This item was presented to the City Council at their September 23, 2015 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission, September 22, 2015 staff report and public hearing minutes.
2. Ordinance No. 1744 (Wireless Facilities Modifications)

less than 10 feet in height and with an area not more than 50 square feet.

[3] A monopole I is a wireless communications facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 60 
feet in height) and antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height.

[4] A monopole II is a wireless communication facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 
150 feet in height) and antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.11 grants cities the authority to regulate their affairs.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission unanimously moved to forward a recommendation for City Council approval 
following their Public Hearing September 22, 2015. Minutes from that meeting are included as 
Attachment 1.  This item was presented to the City Council at their September 23, 2015 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission, September 22, 2015 staff report and public hearing minutes.
2. Ordinance No. 1744 (Wireless Facilities Modifications)

44

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444425819_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444425855_at.pdf


1 

Date: September 22, 2015 
Subject: Wireless Facilities Modifications 

– Code Amendment

FROM: Dennis Lefevre, AICP, Senior Planner 

PURPOSE 
This report continues the Planning Commission review of the draft ordinance and will allow 
opportunity for public comment during the public hearing.  

BACKGROUND 
In 2012 the US Congress passed the “Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012”. 
Section 6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the “Spectrum Act”) has mandated that “local governments 
approve, and cannot deny, an application requesting modification of an existing tower or base 
station if such modification does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower 
or base station.” The purpose of this act is to facilitate and expedite the deployment of equipment 
and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless capacity. Attachment 1 provides the full text 
of Section 6409. The Federal Communications Commission issued a report and order on October 
21, 2014 clarifying and implementing statutory requirements included in Section 6409. The full 
text of this report and order may be found at https://www.fcc.gov/document/wireless-
infrastructure-report-and-order. 

An amendment to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) is necessary to accommodate the 
Spectrum Act’s requirements. This amendment is anticipated to create a new Chapter (19.30) in 
the OHMC titled “Wireless Facilities Modifications.” 

DISCUSSION 
Chapter 19.29, OHMC (Wireless Communications Facilities – Attachment 2) establishes 
locations and options for wireless facilities including: micro facilities1; mini facilities2; 
monopole I3; and monopoles II4. Chapter 19.29 focuses primarily on the construction of new 
facilities, while this chapter permits collocation of wireless facilities on existing structures, it 
does not provide an expedited application and review process nor provide for mandatory 
approval if specific criterion are not met. 

Creation of Chapter 19.30 is a legislative action and is consistent with goals and policies 
established in the City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan (November 2014) and serves to 
implement Goal 2 and policy 2d of the Utility Element. 

1 A micro facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or less than four feet in 
height and with an area not more than 580 square inches. 
2 A mini facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or less than 10 feet in height 
and with an area not more than 50 square feet. 
3 A monopole I is a wireless communications facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 60 feet in height) and 
antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height. 
4 A monopole II is a wireless communication facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 150 feet in height) and 
antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height. 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report 

ATTACHMENT 1

45

https://www.fcc.gov/document/wireless-infrastructure-report-and-order
https://www.fcc.gov/document/wireless-infrastructure-report-and-order


2 
 

Utilities Goal 2: Process permit requests for utilities in a fair and timely manner to ensure 
predictability. 

Utilities Policy 2d: The City should review and amend existing regulations as necessary to 
provide clear and objective standards for maintenance, repair, installation and replacement of 
utilities. Such changes shall be consistent with other Goals and Policies of the Comprehensive 
Plan for construction practices, restoration of City property/right-of-way, environmental 
protection and oak tree preservation. 

This expedited review is contingent upon the determination that the modification does not 
substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station. Substantially change 
is defined as: 
 a)  The proposed facilities modification would not increase the height of the eligible 
 support structure by more than ten percent (10%), or twenty (20) feet, whichever is 
 greater; or 
 
 b)  The mounting of equipment that would involve adding an appurtenance to the body of 
 the eligible support structure would not protrude from the edge of the structure more than 
 twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the structure at the level of the appurtenance, 
 whichever is greater. 
 
A modification meeting these criteria is also exempt from the requirements of the State 
Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C.0384). 
 
This amendment establishes application submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for 
permit review, and the approval process. Following adoption of this amendment, Development 
Services staff will prepare an application based on the new Chapter 19.30 guidelines and 
requirements. Staff will also amend Schedule A of the Master Fee Schedule to include this 
application and review fee. The proposed Chapter 19.30 is Attachment 3.  
 
This amendment is categorically exempt from the State Environmental Policy Act (WAC 197-
11-800(19). The following steps represent a proposed schedule for this code amendment: 
 
9/22 PC Public Hearing 
9/23 CC Workshop 
10/20 CC Public Hearing/Adoption 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. Conduct the public hearing and invite comments from the public and interested citizens 
 on this  code amendment. 
2. Revise proposed amendment, as necessary. 
3. Forward a recommendation to the City Council for approval of draft Ordinance 1744, 
 Wireless Facilities Modifications. 
 
 

46



3 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act 
2. Chapter 19.29, OHMC, Wireless Communications Facilities 
3. Proposed Ordinance No. 1744 (Wireless Facilities Modifications) 

47



Attachment 1 
 

47 USC 1455.  

SEC. 6409. WIRELESS FACILITIES DEPLOYMENT. 

§ 1455. Wireless facilities deployment 
 
(a) FACILITY MODIFICATIONS.— 
 
 (1) In General - Notwithstanding section 704 of the Telecommunications Act of  1996 
(Public Law 104–104) or any other provision of law, a State or local government  may not deny, 
and shall approve, any eligible facilities request for a modification of an  existing wireless 
tower or base station that does not substantially change the physical  dimensions of such 
tower or base station. 
 
 (2) Eligible Facilities Request - For purposes of this subsection, the term “eligible 
 facilities request” means any request for modification of an existing wireless tower or 
 base station that involves: 
  (A) collocation of new transmission equipment; 
  (B) removal of transmission equipment; or 
  (C) replacement of transmission equipment. 
 
 (3) Applicability of Environmental Laws - Nothing in paragraph (1) shall be construed to 
 relieve the Commission from the requirements of the National Historic Preservation Act 
 or the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969. 
 
(b) FEDERAL EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
 
 (1) Grant - If an executive agency, a State, a political subdivision or agency of a State, or 
 a person, firm, or organization applies for the grant of an easement or right-of-way to, in, 
 over, or on a building or other property owned by the Federal Government for the right to 
 install, construct, and maintain wireless service antenna structures and equipment and 
 backhaul transmission equipment, the executive agency having control of the building or 
 other property may grant to the applicant, on behalf of the Federal Government, an 
 easement or right-of-way to perform such installation, construction, and maintenance. 
 
 (2) Application - The Administrator of General Services shall develop a common form 
 for applications for easements and rights-of-way under paragraph (1) for all executive 
 agencies that shall be used by applicants with respect to the buildings or other property of 
 each such agency. 
 
 (3) Fee 
  (A) In general, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Administrator of  
  General Services shall establish a fee for the grant of an easement or right-of-way  
  pursuant to paragraph (1) that is based on direct cost recovery. 
  (B) Exceptions - The Administrator of General Services may establish exceptions  
  to the fee amount required under subparagraph (A)— 
   (i) in consideration of the public benefit provided by a grant of an   
   easement or right-of-way; and 

48



Attachment 1 
 

   (ii) in the interest of expanding wireless and broadband coverage. 
 
 (4) Use of fees collected - Any fee amounts collected by an executive agency pursuant to 
 paragraph (3) may be made available, as provided in appropriations Acts, to such agency 
 to cover the costs of granting the easement or right-of-way. 
 
(c) MASTER CONTRACTS FOR WIRELESS FACILITY SITINGS 
 
 (1) In general - notwithstanding section 704 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 or 
 any other provision of law, and not later than 60 days after February 22, 2012, the 
 Administrator of General Services shall— 
  (A) Develop 1 or more master contracts that shall govern the placement of  
  wireless service antenna structures on buildings and other property owned by the  
  Federal Government; and 
  (B) In developing the master contract or contracts, standardize the treatment of  
  the placement of wireless service antenna structures on building rooftops or  
  facades, the placement of wireless service antenna equipment on rooftops or  
  inside buildings, the technology used in connection with wireless service antenna  
  structures or equipment placed on Federal buildings and other property, and any  
  other key issues the Administrator of General Services considers appropriate. 
 
 (2) Applicability - The master contract or contracts developed by the Administrator of 
 General Services under paragraph (1) shall apply to all publicly accessible buildings and 
 other property owned by the Federal Government, unless the Administrator of General 
 Services decides that issues with respect to the siting of a wireless service antenna 
 structure on a specific building or other property warrant nonstandard treatment of such 
 building or other property. 
 
 (3) Application - The Administrator of General Services shall develop a common form or 
 set of forms for wireless service antenna structure siting applications under this 
 subsection for all executive agencies that shall be used by applicants with respect to the 
 buildings and other property of each such agency. 
 
(d) EXECUTIVE AGENCY DEFINED - In this section, the term ‘‘executive agency’’ has the 
meaning given such term in section 102 of title 40. 
(Pub. L. 112–96, title VI, § 6409, Feb. 22, 2012, 126 
Stat. 232.) 
 

49



Attachment 2 
 

Chapter 19.29 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES 

Sections: 

19.29.010    Purpose. 

19.29.020    Development standards for micro facilities. 

19.29.030    Development standards for mini facilities. 

19.29.040    Development standards for macro facilities. 

19.29.050    Development standards for monopole I. 

19.29.060    Development standards for monopole II. 

19.29.070    Additional permit criteria for monopole I and monopole II. 

19.29.080    Exemption. 

19.29.090    Obsolescence. 

19.29.010 Purpose. 

In addition to the general purposes of the comprehensive plan and this title, this chapter is 
included in order to provide for a wide range of locations and options for wireless 
communications providers while minimizing the unsightly characteristics associated with 
wireless communications facilities and to encourage creative approaches in locating wireless 
communications facilities which will blend in with the surroundings of such facilities. (Ord. 
1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.020 Development standards for micro facilities. 

(1) Micro facilities are permitted in all zones. 

(2) A micro facility shall be located on existing buildings, poles or other existing support 
structures. A micro facility may locate on buildings and structures; provided, that the interior 
wall or ceiling immediately adjacent to the facility is not designated residential space. 

(3) Antennas equal to or less than four feet in height (except omni-directional antennas which 
can be up to six feet in height) and with an area of not more than 580 square inches in the 
aggregate (e.g., one-foot diameter parabola or two-foot by one-and-one-half-foot panel as viewed 
from any one point) are exempt from the height limitation of the zone in which they are located. 
Structures which are nonconforming with respect to height may be used for the placement of 
omni-directional antennas providing they do not extend more than six feet above the existing 
structure. Placement of an antenna on a nonconforming structure shall not be considered to be an 
expansion of the nonconforming structure. 

(4) The micro facility shall be exempt from design review if the antenna and related components 
are the same color as the existing building, pole or support structure on which it is proposed to be 
located. 

(5) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronic equipment shall be contained wholly 
within a building or structure, or otherwise appropriately concealed, camouflaged or located 
underground. 

50



Attachment 2 
 

(6) In single-family residential (PRE, R-1 and R-2) zones, micro facilities for a specific wireless 
provider shall be separated by a distance equal to or greater than 1,320 linear feet from other 
micro facilities of the same wireless provider. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.030 Development standards for mini facilities. 

(1) Mini facilities are permitted in all zones except single-family residential (PRE, R-1 and R-2) 
zones. 

(2) The mini facility may be located on buildings and structures; provided, that the immediate 
interior wall or ceiling adjacent to the facility is not a designated residential space. 

(3) The mini facility shall be exempt from design review if the antenna and related components 
are the same color as the existing building, pole or support structure on which it is proposed to be 
located. 

(4) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronic equipment shall be contained wholly 
within a building or structure, or otherwise appropriately concealed, camouflaged or located 
underground. 

(5) Mini facilities shall comply with the height limitation specified for all zones except as 
follows: Omni-directional antennas may exceed the height limitation by 10 feet or, in the case of 
nonconforming structures, the antennas may extend 10 feet above the existing structure. Panel 
antennas may exceed the height limitation if affixed to the side of an existing nonconforming 
building and they blend in architecturally with the building. Placement of an antenna on a 
nonconforming structure shall not be considered to be an expansion of the nonconforming 
structure. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.040 Development standards for macro facilities. 

(1) Macro facilities are permitted in all zones except single-family residential (PRE, R-1 and R-
2) zones. 

(2) Macro facilities may be located on buildings and structures; provided, that the immediate 
interior wall or ceiling adjacent to the facility is not a designated residential space. 

(3) The macro facility shall be exempt from design review if the antenna and related components 
are the same color as the existing building, pole or support structure on which it is proposed to be 
located. 

(4) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronic equipment shall be contained wholly 
within a building or structure, or otherwise appropriately concealed, camouflaged or located 
underground. 

(5) Macro facilities shall comply with the height limitation specified for all zones, except as 
follows: Omni-directional antennas may exceed the height limitation by 15 feet, or, in the case of 
nonconforming structures, the antennas may extend 15 feet above the existing structure. Panel 
antennas may exceed the height limitation if affixed to the side of an existing building and 
architecturally blends in with the building. Placement of an antenna on a nonconforming 

51



Attachment 2 
 

structure shall not be considered to be an expansion of the nonconforming structure. (Ord. 1555 
§ 12, 2009). 

19.29.050 Development standards for monopole I. 

(1) Monopole I facilities are only permitted in the industrial (I) zone. 

(2) Monopole I facilities are permitted in community commercial (C-3), highway service 
commercial (C-4), highway corridor commercial (C-5), planned business park (PBP), planned 
industrial park (PIP), and public facilities (PF) zones with a conditional use permit. 

(3) Monopole I facilities are not permitted in residential (PRE, R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4), 
residential office (RO), neighborhood commercial (C-1) or central business district (CBD) zones, 
except when expressly provided for in this chapter. 

(4) Antennas equal to or less than 15 feet in height or up to four inches in diameter may be a 
component of a monopole I facility. Antennas which extend above the wireless communications 
support structure shall not be calculated as part of the height of the monopole I wireless 
communications support structure. For example, the maximum height for a monopole I shall be 
60 feet and the maximum height of antennas which may be installed on the support structure 
could be 15 feet, making the maximum permitted height of the support structure and antennas 75 
feet (60 feet plus 15 feet). 

(5) Co-location on an existing support structure shall be permitted. Macro facilities are the 
largest wireless communications facilities allowed on monopole I. 

(6) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronics equipment and the associated cabling 
connecting the equipment shelter or cabinet to the monopole I facilities shall be concealed, 
camouflaged or placed underground. Monopole I facilities shall be subject to review by the 
planning commission using the procedures and review criteria specified in Chapter 19.48 OHMC 
and this chapter. 

(7) Monopole I facilities shall be landscaped in conformance with Chapter 19.46 OHMC. 

(8) Monopole I facilities adjacent to a single-family zone shall be set back a distance equal to the 
height of the wireless communications support structure from the nearest single-family lot line. 
(Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.060 Development standards for monopole II. 

(1) Monopole II facilities are only permitted in the industrial (I) zone; provided the wireless 
communications support structure shall be designed to accommodate two or more wireless 
communications facilities. 

(2) Monopole II facilities are permitted in highway service commercial (C-4), planned business 
park (PBP), planned industrial park (PIP), and public facilities (PF) zones with a conditional use 
permit. 

52



Attachment 2 
 

(3) Monopole II facilities are not permitted in residential (PRE, R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4), 
residential office (RO), neighborhood commercial (C-1) or central business district (CBD) zones, 
except when expressly provided for in this chapter. 

(4) Monopole II facilities which exceed 60 feet in height or are located within 300 feet of a 
residential zone shall require a conditional use permit. 

(5) Co-location of wireless communications facilities on an existing support structure shall be 
permitted. 

(6) Macro facilities are the largest permitted wireless communications facilities allowed on a 
monopole II facility. Antennas which extend above the monopole II wireless communications 
support structure shall not be calculated as part of the height of the wireless communications 
support structure. For example, the maximum height for a monopole II facility shall be 150 feet 
and the maximum height of antennas which may be installed on the support structure could be 15 
feet, making the maximum permitted height of the support structure and antennas 165 feet (150 
feet plus 15 feet). 

(7) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronics equipment and the associated cabling 
connecting the equipment shelter or cabinet to the monopole I facilities shall be concealed, 
camouflaged or placed underground. Monopole I facilities shall be subject to review by the 
planning commission using the procedures and review criteria specified in Chapter 19.48 OHMC 
and this chapter. 

(8) Monopole II facilities shall be landscaped in conformance with Chapter 19.46 OHMC. 

(9) Monopole II facilities adjacent to a single-family zone shall be set back a distance equal to 
the height of the wireless communications support structure from the nearest single-family lot 
line. 

(10) Monopole II facilities shall be separated from each other by a distance equal or greater than 
1,320 feet. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.070 Additional permit criteria for monopole I and monopole II. 

In addition to the permit criteria specified in Chapters 19.48 and 19.67 OHMC, the following 
specific criteria shall be met before a site plan review or conditional use permit can be granted: 

(1) Antennas may not extend more than 15 feet above their supporting structure, monopole, 
building or other structure. 

(2) Site location and development shall preserve the pre-existing character of the surrounding 
buildings and land uses and the zone district to the extent consistent with the function of the 
communications equipment. Wireless communications towers shall be integrated through 
location and design to blend in with the existing characteristics of the site to the extent practical. 
Existing on-site vegetation shall be preserved or improved, and disturbance of the existing 
topography shall be minimized, unless such disturbance would result in less visual impact of the 
site to the surrounding area. 

53



Attachment 2 
 

(3) Accessory equipment facilities used to house wireless communications equipment should be 
located within buildings or placed underground when possible. When they cannot be located in 
buildings, equipment shelters or cabinets shall be screened and landscaped in conformance with 
Chapter 19.46 OHMC. 

(4) No equipment shall be operated so as to produce noise in levels above 45 dB as measured 
from the nearest property line on which the attached wireless communications facility is located. 

(5) In any proceeding regarding the issuance of site plan review or a conditional use permit under 
the terms of this chapter, federal law prohibits consideration of environmental effects of radio 
frequency emissions to the extent that the proposed facilities comply with the Federal 
Communications Commission regulations concerning such emission. 

(6) Towers, antennas or other objects that penetrate the 100:1 angle slope criteria established in 
Federal Aviation Regulation (FAR) Part 44 (Sections 77.13(a)(1) and 77.13(a)(2)(I), 
respectively) shall be reviewed for compatibility with airport operations. No tower, antenna or 
other object shall constitute a hazard to air navigation, interfere with the safe operation of aircraft 
or deny the existing operational capability of Ault Field. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.080 Exemption. 

The following are exempt from the requirement of a conditional use permit, and shall be 
considered a permitted use in all zones where wireless and attached wireless communications 
facilities are permitted: Minor modifications of existing wireless communications facilities and 
attached wireless communications facilities, whether emergency or routine, so long as there is 
little or no change in the visual appearance. Minor modifications are those modifications, 
including the addition of antennas, to conforming wireless and attached wireless communications 
facilities that meet the performance standards set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.090 Obsolescence. 

A wireless communications facility or attached wireless communications facility shall be 
removed by the facility owner within six months of the date it ceases to be operational or if the 
facility falls into disrepair. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

54



 

Planning Commission 
September 22, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
September 22, 2015 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Greg Wasinger, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson and Cecil Pierce  
 Absent: Mike Piccone, Jes Walker-Wyse and Ana Schlecht 

Staff Present:  Senior Planners, Cac Kamak and Dennis Lefevre; Associate 
Planner Ray Lindenburg  

 
Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE AUGUST 25, 2015 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
MARITIME ZONING ORDINACE – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) and reviewed the background 
behind the ordinance, how the ordinance was formulated and the adoption process.  Mr. Kamak 
recommended that the Planning Commission conduct the public hearing and forward a 
recommendation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Wasinger opened the public hearing for public comment. None present for comment. 
Hearing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion  
The Planning Commission asked if the regulations would affect the existing businesses and live-
aboards in the Maritime Zoning District. Mr. Kamak said neither wouldn’t be affected since 
established businesses are not building new structures and the live-aboards are not on land. 
There was discussion about the lack of public transportation in the Maritime Zoning District.  
There was a suggestion to use the word “shall” instead of “may” in the second to last sentence 
in Section 19.20.930(6).  Mr. Kamak pointed out that inserting “shall” would require parking 
regardless of the use while the conditional use process allows the flexibility to mitigate or 
address potential impacts that a use can have on the district and other uses.  Planning 
Commissioners agreed to keep the language as is. 
 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE MARITIME 
ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS AS STATED. 

 
WIRELESS FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS – Public Hearing 
Mr. Lefevre reported that this code amendment responds to the “Spectrum Act” which mandates 
that local governments approve, and cannot deny, an application requesting modification of an 
existing tower or base station is such modification does not substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base station.  The purpose of this act is to facilitate and expedite 
the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless capacity. 

Mr. Lefevre stated that an amendment creating Chapter 19.30 titled “Wireless Facilities 
Modifications” accommodates the Spectrum Act’s requirements.  New Chapter 19.30 
establishes application submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for permit review, 
and the approval process.    
 

55



 

Planning Commission 
September 22, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 

Mr. Wasinger opened the public hearing for public comment. None present for comment. 
Hearing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE DRAFT ORDINANCE 
1744. 

 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Wasinger stated that Mr. Kamak informed him that there is no new information to report at 
this time.  
 
ADJOURN: 8:00 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

56



Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1744 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 19.30 TO 
THE OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED "WIRELESS FACILITIES 
MODIFICATIONS" RELATING TO COLLOCATION, REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT 
OF WIRELESS FACILITIES; ESTABLISHING DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS FOR 
COLLOCATION, REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF WIRELESS TRANSMISSION 
FACILITIES TO CONFORM TO FEDERAL LAW AND REGULATIONS; ESTABLISHING 
AN APPLICATION SUBMITTAL AND APPROVAL PROCESS; PROVIDING FOR 
TERMINATION OF NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, in 1934, Congress enacted the Communications Act of 1934, creating the FCC and 
granting it authority over common carriers engaged in the provision of interstate or foreign 
communications services; and 

WHEREAS, in 1996 Congress enacted Pub. L. No. 104-104, 110 Stat. 70 (the "1996 Act"), 
amending the Communications Act of 1934 and implementing regulations applicable to both 
wireless and wireline communications facilities for the purpose of removal of barriers to entry 
into the telecommunications market while preserving local government zoning authority except 
where specifically limited under the 1996 Act; and 

WHEREAS, in the 1996 Act, Congress imposed substantive and procedural limitations on the 
traditional authority of state and local governments to regulate the location, construction, and 
modification of wireless facilities and incorporated those limitations into the Communications 
Act of 1934; and 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted regulations that have been codified as part of the Municipal 
Code of the City establishing local requirements for the location, construction and modification 
of wireless facilities; and 

WHEREAS, in 2012 Congress passed the "Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 
2012" (the "Spectrum Act") (PL-112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. §1455(a)); and 

WHEREAS, Section 6409 (hereafter "Section 6409") of the Spectrum Act implements additional 
substantive and procedural limitations upon state and local government authority to regulate 
modification of existing wireless antenna support structures and base stations; and 

WHEREAS, Congress through its enactment of Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act has mandated 
that local governments approve, and cannot deny, an application requesting modification of an 
existing tower or base station if such modification does not substantially change the physical 
dimensions of such tower or base station; and 

WHEREAS, the 1996 Act empowers the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") to 
prescribe such rules and regulations as may be necessary in the public interest to carry out the 

ATTACHMENT 2

57



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 2 
 

provisions of the 1996 Act and subsequently added portions of the 1996 Act such as Section 
6409; and 

WHEREAS, the FCC, pursuant to its rule making authority, adopted and released a Notice of 
Proposed Rulemaking in September of 2013 (in re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by 
Improving Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 
11-59; FCC 13-122) which focused in part upon whether or not the FCC should adopt rules 
regarding implementation of Section 6409; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2014, the FCC issued its report and order, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 
13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153, in the above-described proceeding (the "Report and 
Order" or "Order") clarifying and implementing statutory requirements related to state and local 
government review of infrastructure siting, including Section 6409, with the intent of facilitating 
and expediting the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless 
capacity; and 

WHEREAS, the rules adopted by the FCC in its Report and Order implementing Section 6409 
are intended by the FCC to spur wireless broadband deployment, in part, by facilitating the 
sharing of infrastructure that supports wireless communications through incentives to collocate 
on structures that already support wireless facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Report and Order also adopts measures that update the FCC's review processes 
under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 ("NEPA") and section 106 of the National 
Historic Preservation Act of 1966 ("NHPA"), with a particular emphasis on accommodating new 
wireless technologies that use smaller antennas and compact radio equipment to provide mobile 
voice and broadband service; and 

WHEREAS, on January 5, 2015, the FCC released an Erratum to the Report and Order making 
certain amendments to the provisions of the Report and Order related to NEPA and Section 106 
of the NHPA; and 

WHEREAS, that part of the Report and Order related to implementation of Section 6409, 
amends 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 1 – PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE) by adding new Subpart 
CC §1.40001 and establishing both substantive and procedural limitations upon local 
government application and development requirements applicable to proposals for modification 
to an existing antenna support structure or an existing base station ("Eligible Facility Request 
Rules"); and 

WHEREAS, the Order, among other things, defines key terms utilized in Section 6409, 
establishes application requirements limiting the information that can be required from an 
applicant, implements a 60-day shot clock and tolling provisions, establishes a deemed approved 
remedy for applications not timely responded to, requires cities to approve a project permit 
application requesting modification of an existing tower or base station that does not 
substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station, and establishes 
development standards that govern such proposed modifications; and 

58



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 3 
 

WHEREAS, the Report and Order provides that the Eligible Facility Request Rules will be 
effective ninety (90) days following publication in the Federal Register; and 

WHEREAS, the Order was published in the Federal Register on Thursday, January 8, 2015, 
Federal Register; Vol. 80; No. 5, resulting in the Eligible Facility Request Rules becoming 
effective on April 8, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Order is subject to appeal, however, even if an appeal is filed, the appeal will 
not automatically result in delay of implementation of the Eligible Facility Request Rules; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is required under Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act 
and the Eligible Facility Request Rules established in the Order, to adopt and implement local 
development and zoning regulations that are consistent with Section 6409 and the Order; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with RCW 36.70A.106 and WAC 365-196-630, a notice of intent to 
adopt the proposed new development regulations was sent to the State of Washington 
Department of Commerce and to other state agencies to allow for a sixty (60) day review and 
comment period, which comment period ended prior to adoption of this ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of September, 2015, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed 
public hearing related to the proposed interim development and zoning regulations set forth in 
the proposed ordinance; and 

WHEREAS; the City Council considered the proposed development and zoning regulations on 
the 20th day of October, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed development and zoning regulations are 
reasonable and necessary in order to bring the City's development regulations into compliance 
with the mandate imposed upon the City by Congress pursuant to Section 6409 and the 
regulations imposed upon the City by the FCC pursuant to its Report and Order, and are 
therefore in the public interest; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as 
follows: 

Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.30 entitled "Wireless Facilities 
Modifications" to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 4 
 

CHAPTER 19.30 
WIRELESS FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS 

 
Sections: 
19.30.010 Title 
19.30.020 Adoption of Findings and Conclusions 
19.30.030 Purpose and Intent 
19.30.040 Definitions 
19.30.050 Applicability – Relationship to Other Rules and Regulations 
19.30.060 Permit Classification 
19.30.070 Application Submittal Requirements 
19.30.080 Review of Application; Approval 
19.30.090 Substantial Change Criteria 
19.30.100 Nonconforming Structure; Termination 
19.30.110 Enforcement 
 
19.30.010  Title.  This chapter shall be known and referred to as the "Wireless Facilities 
Modification Code" or "WFM Code".  Unless the context indicates otherwise, a reference herein 
to "this code" or "this chapter" shall mean and refer to the Wireless Facilities Modification Code. 
 
19.30.020  Adoption of Findings and Conclusion.  The recitals set forth in the ordinance 
adopting this code are adopted as findings and conclusions of the City Council. 
 
19.30.030  Purpose and Intent.  The purpose and intent of this chapter are to: 
 
(1) To implement §6409 of the "Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012" (the 

"Spectrum Act") (PL-112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. §1455(a)) which requires the City to 
approve any eligible facilities request for a modification of an existing tower or base 
station that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base 
station; 

 
(2) To implement the FCC rules set forth at 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 1 – PRACTICE AND 

PROCEDURE) new Subpart CC §1.40001 (Wireless Facility Modifications), which rules 
implement §6409 of the Spectrum Act;  

 
(3) To establish procedural requirements and substantive criteria applicable to review and 

approval or denial of applications for an eligible facilities modification; 
 
(4) To ensure that application submittal requirements are related to information reasonably 

necessary to the determination of whether or not the proposed modification will result in 
a substantial change in the physical dimensions of the eligible support structure; 

 
(5) To exempt facilities modifications approval under this chapter as eligible facilities 

requests from zoning and development regulations that are inconsistent with or 
preempted by Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act; 

 

60



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 5 
 

(6) To preserve the City's right to continue to enforce and condition approvals under this 
chapter on compliance with generally applicable building, structural, electrical and safety 
codes and with other laws codifying objective standards reasonably related to health and 
safety; 

 
(7) To promote timely decisions under this chapter; 
 
(8) To ensure that decisions are made consistently and predictably;  
 
(9) To incorporate provisions of RCW 43.21C.0384 that exempt eligible facilities 

modifications from review under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c), (State Environmental Policy 
Act); 

 
(10) To recognize that Section 6409(a)(1) of the Spectrum Act operates to preempt any 

provision of the State Environmental Policy Act (RCW Ch. 43.21C) to the extent that any 
such provision, including RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c), would prohibit a City from approving 
any eligible facilities request for a modification of an existing wireless tower or base 
station that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base 
station; and 

 
(11) To provide for termination of wireless facilities modifications approved pursuant to this 

chapter, as nonconforming structures in the event that §6409(a) of the Spectrum Act is 
found to be unconstitutional or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable and 
such modifications would otherwise have been in derogation of development regulations 
in place at the time of receipt of a completed application. 

 
19.30.040  Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and 
enforcement of this chapter, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.  Any term or phrase 
not defined herein shall have the meaning that is given to that term or phrase in Section 19.08 of 
the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 
present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the 
singular include the plural.  The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory and 
the word "may" is always discretionary.  References to governmental entities (whether persons 
or entities) refer to those entities or their successors in authority.  If specific provisions of law, 
regulation or rule referred to herein be renumbered or amended, then the reference shall be read 
to refer to the renumbered or amended provision. 
 
(1) "Approval authority" is the public official, or designee, who has authority under the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to administratively issue project permit approvals. 
 
(2) "Applicant" shall mean and refer to the person, and such person's successor in interest, 

owning and/or operating the transmission equipment proposed in an eligible facilities 
modification application to be collocated, removed or replaced. 

 
(3) "Authorized person" is the person, employees, agents, consultants, and contractors, 

authorized in writing by applicant to complete and submit an eligible facilities 

61



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 6 
 

modification application on behalf of applicant and who is authorized to receive any 
notices on behalf of applicant of any action taken by the City regarding the application. 

 
(4) "Base station" shall mean and refer to the structure or equipment at a fixed location that 

enables wireless communications licensed or authorized by the FCC, between user 
equipment and a communications network.  The term does not encompass a tower as 
defined in this chapter or any equipment associated with a tower. 
 
(a) The term includes, but is not limited to, equipment associated with wireless 

communications services such as private, broadcast, and public safety services, as 
well as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as 
microwave backhaul. 

 
(b) The term includes, but is not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or 

fiber-optic cable, regular and backup power supplies, and comparable equipment, 
regardless of technological configuration (including Distributed Antenna Systems 
and small-cell networks). 

 
(c)  The term includes any structure other than a tower that, at the time an eligible 

facilities modification application is filed with the City under this chapter, 
supports or houses equipment described in paragraphs (i) – (ii) above, and that has 
been reviewed and approved under the applicable zoning or siting process, or 
under another State, county or local regulatory review process, even if the 
structure was not built for the sole or primary purpose of providing such support. 

 
(d) The term does not include any structure that, at the time a completed eligible 

facilities modification application is filed with the City under this section, does 
not support or house equipment described in paragraphs (a) – (b) above. 

 
(5) "City" shall mean and refer to the City of Oak Harbor. 
 
(6) "City Code" shall mean and refer to the codified ordinances of the City. 
 
(7) "Collocation" shall mean and refer to the mounting or installation of transmission 

equipment on an eligible support structure for the purpose of transmitting and/or 
receiving radio frequency signals for communications purposes. 

 
(8) "Conceal" or "Concealment" shall mean and refer to eligible support structures and 

transmission facilities designed to look like some feature other than a wireless tower or 
base station. 

 
(9) "Deemed approved" shall mean and refer to a wireless facilities modification application 

that has been deemed approved upon the City's failure to act, and has become effective, 
as provided pursuant to the FCC Eligible Facilities Request Rules. 

 

62



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 7 
 

(10) "Eligible support structure" shall mean and refer to any existing tower or base station as 
defined in this chapter, provided that it is in existence at the time the eligible facilities 
modification application is filed with the City under this chapter. 

 
(11) "Existing" shall, for purpose of this chapter and as applied to a tower or base station, 

mean and refer to a constructed tower or base station that has been reviewed and 
approved under the applicable zoning or siting process of the City, or under another State, 
county or local regulatory review process; provided that, a tower that has not been 
reviewed and approved because it was not in a zoned area when it was built, but was 
lawfully constructed, is existing for purposes of this definition. 

 
(12) "Proposed facilities modification" shall mean and refer to a proposal submitted by an 

applicant to modify an eligible support structure which the applicant asserts is subject to 
review under Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act, and involving: 

 
 (a) collocation of new transmission equipment; 
 
 (b) removal of transmission equipment; or 
 
 (c) replacement of transmission equipment. 
 
(13) "FCC" shall mean and refer to the Federal Communications Commission or its successor. 
 
(14) "FCC Eligible Facilities Request Rules" shall mean and refer to 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 

1 – PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE), Subpart CC §1.40001 as established pursuant to 
its Report and Order in, In re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving 
Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-
59; FCC 14-153, or as may be thereafter amended. 

 
(15) "Site" shall, for towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, mean and refer to 

the current boundaries of the leased or owned property surrounding the tower and any 
access or utility easements currently related to the site, and, for other eligible support 
structures, shall mean and be further restricted to, that area in proximity to the structure 
and to other transmission equipment already deployed on the ground. 

 
(16) "Small cell facility" shall mean and refer to a personal wireless services facility that 

meets both of the following qualifications: 
 

(a) Each antenna is located inside an antenna enclosure of no more than three (3) 
cubic feet in volume or, in the case of an antenna that has exposed elements, the 
antenna and all of its exposed elements could fit within an imaginary enclosure of 
no more than three (3) cubic feet; and 

 
(b) Primary equipment enclosures are no larger than seventeen (17) cubic feet in 

volume.  The following associated equipment may be located outside the primary 
equipment enclosure and if so located, are not included in the calculation of 

63



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 8 
 

equipment volume: electric meter, concealment, telecomm demarcation box, 
ground-based enclosures, battery back-up power systems, grounding equipment, 
power transfer switch, and cut-off switch. 

 
(17) "Small cell network" shall mean and refer to a collection of interrelated small cell 

facilities designed to deliver personal wireless services. 
 
(18) "Spectrum Act" shall mean and refer to the "Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation 

Act of 2012" (Public Law 112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. §1455(a)). 
 
(19) "Substantial change criteria" shall mean and refer to the criteria set forth in this chapter at 

OHMC 19.30.090. 
 
(20) "Transmission Equipment" shall mean and refer to equipment that facilitates transmission 

for any wireless communication service licensed or authorized by the FCC, including, but 
not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, and regular and 
backup power supply.  The term includes equipment associated with wireless 
communications services including, but not limited to, private, broadcast, and public 
safety services, as well as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as 
microwave backhaul. 

 
(21) "Tower" shall mean and refer to any structure built for the sole or primary purpose of 

supporting any antennas and their associated facilities, licensed or authorized by the FCC, 
including structures that are constructed for wireless communications services including, 
but not limited to, private, broadcast, and public safety services, as well as unlicensed 
wireless services and fixed wireless services such as microwave backhaul, and the 
associated site. 

 
(22) "Wireless facilities modification" shall mean and refer to any proposed facilities 

modification that has been determined pursuant to the provisions of this chapter to be 
subject to this chapter and which does not result in a substantial change in the physical 
dimensions of an eligible support structure. 

 
(23) "Wireless facilities modification application" or "application" shall, unless the context 

clearly requires otherwise, mean and refer to a written document submitted to the City 
pursuant to this chapter for review and approval of a proposed facilities modification. 

 
(24) "Wireless facilities modification permit" or "permit" shall, unless the context clearly 

requires otherwise, mean and refer to a written document issued by the approval authority 
pursuant to this chapter approving an eligible facilities modification application. 

 
19.30.050  Applicability – Relationship to Other Rules and Regulations. 
 
(1) Sole and Exclusive Procedure.  Except as may be otherwise provided in this chapter, and 

not withstanding any other provisions in the City Code, the provisions of this chapter 
shall be the sole and exclusive procedure for review and approval of a proposed facilities 

64



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 9 
 

modification which the applicant asserts is subject to review under Section 6409 of the 
Spectrum Act.  To the extent that other provisions of the City Code establish a parallel 
process for review and approval of a project permit application for a proposed facilities 
modification, the provisions of this chapter shall control.  In the event that any part of an 
application for project permit approval includes a proposed wireless facilities 
modification, the proposed wireless facilities modification portion of the application shall 
be reviewed under the provisions of this chapter.  In the event that an application for 
project permit approval includes a proposal to modify an eligible support structure, and 
the applicant does not assert in the application that the proposal is subject to review under 
Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act, such proposal shall not be subject to review under this 
chapter and may be subject to review under other applicable provisions of the City Code. 

 
(2) Non-conforming Structures.  This chapter shall not apply to a proposed facility 

modification to an eligible support structure that is not a legal conforming, or legal non-
conforming, structure at the time a completed eligible wireless facilities modification 
application is filed with the City.  To the extent that the non-conforming structures and 
use provisions of the City Code would operate to prohibit or condition approval of a 
proposed facilities modification application otherwise allowed under this chapter, such 
provisions are superseded by the provisions of this chapter and shall not apply. 

 
(3) Replacement of Eligible Support Structure.  This chapter shall not apply to a proposed 

facility modification to an eligible support structure that will involve replacement of the 
tower or base station. 

 
(4) First Deployment; Base Station.  This chapter shall not apply to a proposed wireless 

facility modification to a structure, other than a tower, that does not, at the time of 
submittal of the application, already house or support transmission equipment lawfully 
installed within or upon, or attached to, the structure. 

 
(5) Interpretation.  Interpretations of this chapter shall be guided by Section 6409 of the 

Spectrum Act; the FCC Eligible Facilities Request Rules, the FCC's Report and Order in, 
In re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving Wireless Facilities Siting 
Policies, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153; and 
Sections 19.30.020 (Adoption of Findings and Conclusions) and 19.30.030 (Purpose and 
Intent) of this Code. 

 
(6) SEPA Review.  Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, decisions pertaining to 

an eligible wireless facilities modification application are not subject to, and are exempt 
from, the requirements of RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c), if: 

 
(a) The proposed wireless facilities modification would not increase the height of the 

eligible support structure by more than ten percent (10%), or twenty (20) feet, 
whichever is greater; or 

 
(b) The mounting of equipment that would involve adding an appurtenance to the 

body of the eligible support structure would not protrude from the edge of the 

65



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 10 
 

structure more than twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the structure at the 
level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater; (See RCW 43.21C.0384 and 
WAC 197-11-800(25)) 

 
(c)  The authority to condition or deny an application pursuant to Chapter 43.21 RCW 

is preempted, or otherwise supplanted, by Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act. 
 

(7) Reservation of Authority.  Nothing herein is intended or shall operate to waive or limit 
the City's right to enforce, or condition approval on, compliance with generally 
acceptable building, structural, electrical, and safety codes and with other laws codifying 
objective standards reasonably related to health and safety. 

 
19.30.060  Permit Classification. An eligible wireless facilities modification permit shall be 
classified as an administrative permit subject to review and approval or denial by the approval 
authority. 
 
19.30.070  Application Submittal Requirements; Determination of Completeness. 
 
(1) Purpose.  This section sets forth the submittal requirements for an eligible wireless 

facilities modification application.  The purpose of the submittal requirements is to 
ensure that the City has all information and documentation that is reasonably necessary to 
determine if the applicant's proposed facilities modification will substantially change the 
physical dimensions of an eligible support structure.  The submittal requirements are not 
intended to require the applicant to establish the need for the proposed modifications or to 
justify the business decision to propose such modification. 

 
(2) Submittal Requirements.  No eligible wireless facilities modification application shall be 

deemed complete unless it is, in writing, accompanied by the applicable application and 
review fee, includes the required submittals, and is attested to by the authorized person 
submitting the application on behalf of the applicant, certifying the truth and accuracy of 
the information provided in the application.  The application shall include the following 
submittals, unless waived by the approval authority: 

 
(a) The following contact information for the Authorized Person: 
 

(i) Name; 
(ii) Title; 
(iii) Mailing Address; 
(iv) Phone Number; and 
(v) Electronic Mail Address (optional). 
 

(b) The legal and dba names, mailing address, Washington tax number, and contact 
phone number(s) of Applicant. 

 
(c) If a corporation, the name and address of the registered agent of Applicant in 

Washington State, and the state of incorporation of Applicant. 

66



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 11 
 

 
(d) If Applicant is an entity, other than a corporation, such as a partnership or limited 

liability company, the names and business addresses of the principals. 
 
(e) An assertion that the proposed wireless facilities modification is subject to review 

under Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act. 
 
(f) If the applicant is not the owner or person in control of the eligible support 

structure and/or site, the following shall be required: 
 
 An attestation that the owner or person in control of the eligible support structure 

and/or site has consented to the proposed wireless facilities modification.  If the 
eligible support structure is located in a public right-of-way, the applicant must 
also attest that applicant has authorization to install, maintain and operate 
transmission equipment in, under and above the public right-of-way. 

 
(g) If the applicant proposes a modification involving collocation of transmission 

equipment or the replacement of transmission equipment, the following shall be 
required: 

 
 Complete copies of the underlying land use approvals for siting of the tower or 

base station proposed to be modified, establishing that, at the time of submittal of 
the application, such tower or base station constituted an eligible support 
structure. 

 
(h) If the applicant proposes a modification that will result in an increase in height of 

the eligible support structure, the following shall be required: 
 
 Record drawings, as-built plans, or the equivalent, showing the height of the 

eligible support structure, (a) as originally constructed and granted approval by 
the City or other applicable zoning or similar regulatory authority, or (b) as of the 
most recent modification that received city, or other local zoning or regulatory 
approval, prior to the passage of the Spectrum Act, whichever height is greater. 

 
(i) If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure, which 

structure, or proposed modification of the same, is subject to pre-existing 
restrictions or requirements imposed by a reviewing official or decision-making 
body pursuant to authority granted under the City Code, or an ordinance or a 
municipal code of another local government authority, the following shall be 
required: 

 
 A copy of the document (e.g., CUP or SUP) setting forth such pre-existing 

restrictions or requirements together with a certification that the proposed wireless 
facilities modification conforms to such restrictions or requirements; provided 
that, such certification shall have no application to the extent the proposed 
facilities modification relates solely to an increase in height, increase in width, 

67



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 12 
 

addition of cabinets, or new excavation, that does not result in a substantial 
change in the physical dimensions of the eligible support structure. 

 
(j) If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure, which 

structure, or proposed modification of the same, is subject to pre-existing 
concealment restrictions or requirements, or was constructed with concealment 
elements, the following shall be required: 

 
 Applicant shall set forth the facts and circumstances demonstrating that the 

proposed modification would not defeat the existing concealment elements of the 
eligible support structure.  If the proposed modification will alter the exterior 
dimensions or appearance of the eligible support structure, applicant shall include 
a detailed visual simulation depicting how the eligible support structure will 
appear after the proposed modification is complete.  The visual simulation shall 
depict to scale the eligible support structure in relation to the trees, landscaping 
and other structures adjacent to, or in the immediate vicinity of, the eligible 
support structure. 

 
(k) If the applicant proposes a modification that will protrude from the edge of a non-

tower eligible support structure, the following shall be required: 
 
 Record drawings, as-built plans, or the equivalent, showing at a minimum the 

edge of the eligible support structure at the location of the proposed modification. 
 
(l) If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure that will 

(a) include any excavation, (b) would result in a protrusion from the edge of a 
tower that exceeds an existing protrusion of any transmission equipment attached 
to a tower, or (c) would protrude from the edge of a non-tower eligible support 
structure, the following shall be required: 

 
 A description of the boundaries of the site together with a scale drawing based on 

an accurate traverse, with angular and lineal dimensions, depicting the boundaries 
of the site in elevation and dimensions of the new or replacement transmission 
equipment.  The City may require a survey by a land surveyor licensed in the state 
of Washington when, in the judgment of the approval authority, a survey is 
reasonably necessary to verify the boundaries of the site to determine if the 
proposed facilities modification would result in a substantial change in the 
physical dimensions of the eligible support structure. 

 
(m) If the applicant proposes a modification to the eligible support structure that 

includes hardening through structural enhancement, the following shall be 
required: 

 
 A technical report by a qualified engineer accredited by the state of Washington, 

demonstrating that the structural enhancement is performed in connection with 
and is necessary to support the proposed collocation, removal, or replacement of 

68



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 13 
 

transmission equipment and conforms to applicable code requirements.  The City 
may retain the services of an independent technical expert to review, evaluate and 
provide an opinion regarding the applicant's demonstration of necessity. 

 
(n) If the applicant proposes a modification to a tower, the following shall be 

required: 
 
 A stamped report by a state of Washington registered professional engineer 

demonstrating that the tower with the proposed modifications will comply with 
applicable structural, electrical and safety codes, including by way of example, 
and not limitation, EIA/TIA-222-Revision G, published by the American National 
Standards Institute (as amended), allowable wind speed for the applicable zone in 
which the tower is located, and describing the general structural capacity of the 
tower with the proposed modifications, including: 

 
(i) The number and type of antennas that can be accommodated; 
 
(ii) The basis for the calculation of capacity; and 
 
(iii) A written statement that the proposal complies with all federal guidelines 

regarding interference and ANSI standards as adopted by the FCC, 
including but not limited to nonionizing electromagnetic radiation (NIER) 
standards. 

 
The City may retain the services of an independent technical expert to review, 
evaluate, and provide an opinion regarding the applicant's demonstration of 
compliance. 
 

(o) If the applicant proposes a modification to a base station, the following shall be 
required: 

 
A stamped report by a state of Washington registered professional engineer 
demonstrating that the base station, with the proposed modifications, will comply 
with applicable structural, electrical and safety codes. 
 

(p) If the applicant proposes a modification requiring, alteration to the eligible 
support structure, excavation, installation of new equipment cabinets, or any other 
activities impacting or altering the land, existing structures, fencing, or 
landscaping on the site, the following shall be required: 

 
 A detailed site plan and drawings, showing the true north point, a graphic scale 

and, drawn to an appropriate decimal scale, indicating and depicting, (a) the 
location, elevation and dimensions of the existing eligible support structure, (b) 
the location, elevation and dimensions of the existing transmission equipment, (c) 
the location, elevation and dimensions of the transmission equipment, if any, 
proposed to be collocated or that will replace existing transmission equipment, (d) 

69



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 14 
 

the location, elevation and dimensions of any proposed new equipment cabinets 
and the intended use of each, (e) any proposed modification to the eligible support 
structure, (f) the location of existing structures on the site, including fencing, 
screening, trees, and other significant site features, and (g) the location of any 
areas where excavation is proposed showing the elevations, depths, and width of 
the proposed excavation and materials and dimensions of the equipment to be 
placed in the area excavated. 

 
(q) Copies of any environmental documents required by any federal agency.  These 

shall include the environmental assessment required by 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 1 
– PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE), Section 1.1307, as amended, or, in the event 
than an FCC environmental assessment is not required, a statement that described 
the specific factors that obviate the requirement for an environmental assessment. 

 
(3) Waiver of Submittal Requirement.  The approval authority may waive any submittal 

requirement upon determination that the required submittal, or part thereof, is not 
reasonably related to the substantial change criteria.  A waiver, to be effective, must be in 
writing and signed by the Development Services Director. 

 
(4) When Received.  An eligible wireless facilities modification application, and any 

supplemental submittals, shall be deemed received by the City upon the date such 
application, or supplemental submittal, is filed with the Development Services 
Department.  An application, and any supplemental submittals, must be filed in person 
during regular business hours of the City and must be accompanied by the applicable 
permit review fee(s).  Any application received by the City without contemporaneous 
payment, or deposit, of the applicable permit review fees will be rejected. 

 
(5) Completed Application; Determination; Tolling. 
 

(a) Determination of Completeness.  The approval authority shall, within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of the application, review the application for completeness.  An 
application is complete if it includes the applicable permit review fee(s) and 
contains all of the application submittal requirements set forth at OHMC 
19.30.070(2) of this chapter, unless waived by the Development Services 
Department pursuant to OHMC 19.30.070(3).  The determination of completeness 
shall not preclude the Development Services Department from requesting 
additional information or studies either at the time of the determination of 
completeness or subsequently if new or additional information is required, or 
substantial changes in the proposed action occur, or the proposed wireless 
facilities modification is modified by applicant, as determined by the 
Development Services Director. 

 
(b) Incomplete Application.  The Development Services Director shall notify the 

applicant within thirty (30) days of receipt of the application that the application 
is incomplete.  Such notice shall clearly and specifically delineate all missing 
documents or information. 

70



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 15 
 

 
(c) Tolling Timeframe for Review.  The application review period begins to run 

when the application is received, and may be tolled when the approval authority 
determines that the application is incomplete and provides notice as set forth 
below.  The application review period may also be tolled by mutual agreement of 
the Development Services Director and applicant.  The timeframe for review is 
not tolled by a moratorium on the review of eligible facility modification 
applications. 

 
(i) To toll the timeframe for review for incompleteness, the Development 

Services Director must provide written notice to the applicant within thirty 
(30) days of the date of receipt of the application, clearly and specifically 
delineating all missing documents or information.  Such delineated 
information is limited to submittals set forth in OHMC 19.30.070(2) and 
any supplemental information requested by the approval authority that is 
reasonably related to determining whether the proposed wireless facilities 
modification will substantially change the physical dimension of an 
eligible support structure. 

 
(ii) The timeframe for review begins running again when the City is in receipt 

of applicant's supplemental submission in response to the Development 
Services Director’s notice of incompleteness. 

 
(iii) Following a supplemental submission, the a Development Services 

Department shall have ten (10) days to notify the applicant that the 
supplemental submission did not provide the information identified in the 
original notice delineating missing information.  The timeframe is tolled in 
the case of second or subsequent notices pursuant to the procedures 
identified in this paragraph (5)(c)(iii).  Except as may be otherwise agreed 
to by the applicant and the Development Services Department, second or 
subsequent notices of incompleteness may not specify missing documents 
or information that was not delineated in the original notice of 
incompleteness. 

 
(iv) A notice of incompleteness from the City will be deemed received by the 

Applicant upon the earlier of, personal service upon the authorized person, 
delivery by electronic mail to the authorized person (if such delivery is 
authorized for receipt of notice by the authorized person), or three (3) days 
from deposit of the notice in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, and 
in an envelope properly addressed to the authorized person using the 
address set forth in the application. 

 
(d) Modification of Application.  In the event that after submittal of the application, 

or as a result of any subsequent submittals, applicant modifies the proposed 
wireless facilities modification described in the initial application, the application 
as modified will be considered a new application subject to commencement of a 

71



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 16 
 

new application review period; provided that, applicant and the approval authority 
may, in the alternative, enter into a mutually agreeable tolling agreement allowing 
the City to request additional submittals and additional time that may be 
reasonably necessary for review of the modified application. 

 
19.30.080  Review of Application; Approval. 
 
(1) Review of Application.  The Development Services Department shall review an eligible 

wireless facilities modification application to determine if the proposed facilities 
modification is subject to this chapter, and if so, if the proposed wireless facilities 
modification will result in a substantial change to the physical dimensions of an eligible 
support structure. 

 
(2) Timeframe for Review.  Within sixty (60) days of the date on which the City receives an 

eligible wireless facilities modification application, less any time period that may be 
excluded under the tolling provisions of this chapter or a tolling agreement between the 
applicant and the Development Services Department, the Department shall approve the 
application and contemporaneously issue a wireless facilities modification permit unless 
the Development Services Department determines that the application is not subject to 
this chapter, or the proposed wireless facilities modification will substantially change the 
physical dimension of an eligible support structure. 

 
(3) Approval; Denial.  A wireless facilities modification application shall be approved, and a 

wireless facilities modification permit issued, upon determination by the Development 
Services Department that the proposed facilities modification is subject to this chapter 
and that it does not substantially change the physical dimensions of an eligible support 
structure.  An eligible facilities application shall be denied upon determination by the 
Development Services Department that the proposed wireless facilities modification is 
not subject to this chapter or will substantially change the physical dimensions of an 
eligible support structure.  A proposed wireless facilities modification will substantially 
change the physical dimensions of an eligible support structure if it meets any of the 
substantial change criteria. 

 
(4) Deemed Approved Application.  An application that has been deemed approved shall be 

and constitute the equivalent of a wireless facilities modification permit, except as may 
be otherwise determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, and shall be subject to 
generally applicable enforcement and compliance requirements in the same manner as a 
wireless facilities modification permit issued pursuant to this chapter. 

 
(5) Denial of Application.  A denial of a wireless facilities modification application shall set 

forth in writing the reasons for the denial and shall be provided to the applicant. 
 
(6) Code Requirements.  Any wireless facilities modification permit issued pursuant to this 

chapter, and any application that has been deemed approved, shall be and is conditioned 
upon compliance with any generally applicable building, structural, electrical, and safety 
codes and other laws codifying objective standards reasonably related to health and 

72



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 17 
 

safety.  Violation of any such applicable code or standard shall be deemed to be a 
violation of the wireless facilities modification or deemed approved application. 

 
(7) Term of Wireless Facilities Modification Permit.  A wireless facilities modification 

permit issued pursuant to this chapter, and any deemed approved application, shall be 
valid for a term of one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of issuance, or the date 
the application is deemed approved. 

 
(8) Remedies.  Notwithstanding any other provisions in the City Code, no administrative 

review is provided for review of a decision to condition, deny or approve an application.  
Applicant and the City retain any and all remedies that are available at law or in equity, 
including by way of example and not limitation, those remedies set forth in the FCC 
Eligible Facilities Request Rules and remedies available under the Land Use Petition Act.  
In the event no other time period is provided at law for bringing an action for a remedy, 
any action challenging a denial of an application or notice of a deemed approved remedy, 
shall be brought within thirty (30) days following the date of denial or following the date 
of notification of the deemed approved remedy.  (Note:  The FCC Report and Order in In re 
Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket Nos. 
13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153, Par's 234-236, provides that the City shall have thirty 
(30) days from the date of notification by the applicant of a deemed granted remedy to bring a legal action 
in a court of competent jurisdiction to challenge the deemed granted remedy, and that the applicant shall 
have thirty (30) days from the date of denial to bring a legal action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
challenging a denial of the application.) 

 
19.30.090  Substantial Change Criteria.  A proposed facilities modification will substantially 
change the physical dimensions of an eligible support structure if it meets any of the following 
criteria: 
 
(1) For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, it increases the height of the 

tower by more than ten percent (10%) or by the height of one (1) additional antenna array 
with separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed twenty (20) feet, 
whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it increases the height of the 
structure by more than ten percent (10%) or more than ten (10) feet, whichever is greater; 

 
 Changes in height should be measured from the original support structure in cases where 

deployments are or will be separated horizontally, such as on buildings' rooftops; in other 
circumstances, changes in height should be measured from the dimensions of the tower or 
base station, inclusive of originally approved appurtenances and any modifications that 
were approved prior to the passage of the Spectrum Act.  (Note:  The FCC Report and Order in 
In re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket 
Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153, Par's 234-236, provides that the City shall have 
thirty (30) days from the date of notification by the applicant of a deemed granted remedy to bring a legal 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction to challenge the deemed granted remedy, and that the applicant 
shall have thirty (30) days from the date of denial to bring a legal action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
challenging a denial of the application.) 

 
(2) For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, it involves adding an 

appurtenance to the body of the tower that would protrude from the edge of the tower 

73



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 18 
 

more than twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the tower structure at the level of 
the appurtenance, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it involves 
adding an appurtenance to the body of the structure that would protrude from the edge of 
the structure by more than six (6) feet. 

 
(3) For any eligible support structure, it involves installation of more than the standard 

number of new equipment cabinets for the technology involved, but not to exceed four 
(4) cabinets; or, for towers in the public right-of-way and the base stations, it involves 
installation of any new equipment cabinets on the ground if there are no pre-existing 
ground cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves installation of ground 
cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves installation of ground cabinets that 
are more than ten percent (10%) larger in height or overall volume than any other ground 
cabinets associated with the structure; 

 
(a) it entails any excavation or deployment outside the current site; 
 
(b) it would defeat the concealment elements of the eligible support structure; or 
 
(c) it does not comply with conditions associated with the siting approval of the 

construction or modification of the eligible support structure or base station 
equipment, provided however that this limitation does not apply to any 
modification that is noncompliant only in a manner that would not exceed the 
thresholds identified in this section OHMC 19.30.090. 

 
(Note:  The FCC rules refer to the date of passage of the Spectrum Act.  The Spectrum Act was enacted on 
February 22, 2012.  Presumably the FCC intended to refer to the date of enactment as the date of passage.) 
 

19.30.100  Non-conforming Structure; Termination. 
 
(1) Application.  The provisions of this section OHMC 19.30.100 shall apply to any facilities 

modification constructed, installed, placed or erected pursuant to a wireless facilities 
modification permit, or pursuant to a deemed approved remedy, which facilities 
modification did not conform to zoning and/or development regulations, exclusive of this 
chapter, in effect at the time the completed wireless facilities modification application 
was filed. 

 
(2) Non-conforming Structure Determination.  A facilities modification to which this section 

applies is subject to termination as a non-conforming structure upon the following 
conditions: 

 
(a) Final, Non-Appealable Decision.  An appellate court, in a final and non-

appealable decision, determines that §6409(a)(1) of the Spectrum Act is 
unconstitutional or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable; and 

 
(b) Notice of Non-Conforming Structure Determination.  The City provides written 

notice to the applicant that the City has determined that the facilities modification 

74



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 19 
 

did not conform to zoning and/or development regulations, exclusive of this 
chapter, in effect at the time the completed wireless facilities modification 
application was filed and that the facilities modification constitutes a non-
conforming structure pursuant to the provisions hereof and must be made 
conforming or the facilities modification terminated. 

 
(3) Conformance; Termination.  Upon receipt of notice of the City's non-conforming 

structure determination, applicant shall abate the non-conformance by either, confirming 
the site to the zoning and development regulations in effect at the time the completed 
wireless facilities modification application was filed, or removing the facilities 
modification and returning the site to the condition that existed prior to the construction, 
installation, placement or erection of the facilities modification.  The time period for 
conformance shall be one (1) year from the date of the City's notice of the non-
conforming structure determination. 

 
(4) Health and Safety Codes.  Nothing in this section shall relieve the applicant from 

compliance with applicable building, structural, electrical, and safety codes and with 
other laws codifying objective standards reasonably related to health and safety. 

 
(5) Administrative Appeal.  The applicant, or its successors or assigns, may appeal the City's 

determination of non-conformance to the City Hearing Examiner by filing a notice of 
appeal within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the determination of non-conformance, 
excluding holidays. 

 
19.30.110  Enforcement; Violation.  Compliance with the provisions of this chapter is 
mandatory.  Any violation hereof is subject to enforcement under the code enforcement 
provisions set forth under Chapter 19.100, Oak Harbor Municipal Code. 

 
Section Two.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 
 
Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after publication. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2015. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (    ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Scott Dudley, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        

75



 
Wireless Facilities Modification 
Ordinance No. 1744 - 20 
 

 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2015\Eligible Facilities Modifications Ord #1.docx 

76



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1746: Impact 
Fee Retention Code Amendment

FROM: Steve Powers, Director of Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1746

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor collects impact fees as allowed by RCW 82.02.020 for the purpose of partially
funding growth-related infrastructure projects.  The City’s impact fee code is found in Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code (OHMC) Chapter 3.63.  State law originally allowed for the collected impact fees to be 
held by municipalities for up to six years before they needed to be expended on qualified projects.  RCW 
82.02.070 now provides that collected fees may be retained for up to ten years.  The proposed 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1746: Impact 
Fee Retention Code Amendment

FROM: Steve Powers, Director of Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1746

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor collects impact fees as allowed by RCW 82.02.020 for the purpose of partially 
funding growth-related infrastructure projects.  The City’s impact fee code is found in Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code (OHMC) Chapter 3.63.  State law originally allowed for the collected impact fees to be 
held by municipalities for up to six years before they needed to be expended on qualified projects.  RCW 
82.02.070 now provides that collected fees may be retained for up to ten years.  The proposed 82.02.070 now provides that collected fees may be retained for up to ten years.  The proposed 
ordinance amends OHMC Section 3.63.070 so the City’s retention timeframes mirror those found in 
State law.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 82.020.070

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item has not previously been presented to the City Council.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No. 1746

82.02.070 now provides that collected fees may be retained for up to ten years.  The proposed 
ordinance amends OHMC Section 3.63.070 so the City’s retention timeframes mirror those found in 
State law.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 82.020.070

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item has not previously been presented to the City Council.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No. 1746

77

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444672178_at.pdf


78



Impact Fee Retention Code Amendment 
Ordinance No. 1746 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 1746 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON AMENDING OAK 
HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 3.63.070, FUND CREATED – USE OF FUNDS, 
INCREASING FROM SIX TO TEN YEARS THE TIME PERIOD ALLOWED FOR RETEN-
TION OF COLLECTED IMPACT FEES, AS ALLOWED BY RCW 82.02.070. 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor collects impact fees as allowed by RCW 82.02.020 for the 
purpose of partially funded growth-related infrastructure projects; and 

WHEREAS, State law originally allowed for collected impact fees to be held by municipalities 
for up to six years before they needed to be expended; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 82.02.070 now provides that collected fees may be retained for up to ten 
years; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to have the provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code mirror 
those found in State law 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, do ordain as fol-
lows: 

Section One. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 3.63.070, Fund Created – Use of Funds, last 
amended by Section 8 of Ordinance 1103 in 1997; is hereby amended to read as follows: 

3.63.070 Fund created – Use of funds. 
(1)  A neighborhood park and recreational facilities capital improvement fund, a community 

park and recreational facilities capital improvement fund, and a transportation and capital 
improvement fund are hereby created. The finance director shall be the fund manager. 
Park and recreation facilities and transportation impact fees shall be placed in the appro-
priate interest bearing deposit account for each fund. 

(2) Impact fees paid to the city shall be held and disbursed as follows: 

(a)  When the council appropriates capital improvement project funds for a project, it 
may appropriate part of the costs of construction from the appropriate capital im-
provement fund. Moneys appropriated from other city sources shall comprise both 
the public share of the project cost and an advancement of that portion of the pri-
vate share that has not yet been collected in impact fees; 

(b) The first money spent by the department on a project after a council appropriation 
 shall be deemed to be the fees from the capital improvement fund; 

(c) Fees collected after a project has been fully funded by means of one or more 
council appropriations may be deemed to constitute reimbursement to the city of 
the public moneys advanced for the private share of the project; 

79



Impact Fee Retention Code Amendment  
Ordinance No. 1746 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 (d) All interest earned on the impact fees paid as herein provided shall be retained in  
  the account and expended for the purpose or purposes for which the impact fees  
  were imposed. 
 
(3) Capital improvement impact fees for parks and recreational facilities or transportation  
 shall be expended only in conformance with the capital facilities element of the Oak Har-

bor comprehensive plan. 
 
(4) Park and recreational facilities and transportation projects shall be funded by a balance  
 between the capital improvement fund fees and other sources of public funds, and shall 

not be funded solely by impact fees. 
 
(5) Impact fees shall be expended or encumbered for a permissible use within six ten years of  
 receipt, unless there exists an extraordinary or compelling reason for fees to be held long-

er than six  ten years. The city supervisoradministrator, or his or her designee, may rec-
ommend to the council that the city hold fees beyond six ten years in cases where ex-
traordinary or compelling reasons exist. Such reasons shall be identified in written find-
ings by the council. 

 
(6) The finance director shall provide an annual report on each impact fee account showing  
 the source and amount of all moneys received and the system improvements that were 

financed by impact fees. Impact fees shall be considered expended or encumbered on a 
first in, first out basis. 

 
Section Two.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect five days from and after its pas-
sage, approval and publication as required by law. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 20th day of October 2015. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
        
    

____________________________ 
       Scott Dudley, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk   
 

80



Impact Fee Retention Code Amendment  
Ordinance No. 1746 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________    
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:   

81



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Enginner

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Clean Water Facility Project Update to City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Updates requested by City Council.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Enginner

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Clean Water Facility Project Update to City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Updates requested by City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. 10/20/2015 Staff Report

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. 10/20/2015 Staff Report

82

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444777018_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update October 20, 2015 
1 

CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – October 20, 2015
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  

RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS FOUR WEEKS) 
• Outfall Construction nearing completion with pipe in place and final backing activities underway.
• Barge removal anticipated in mid-October.
• Site Preparation Package A is substantially complete. (Archaeological Investigation)
• Concurrence from State and Tribes regarding demolition activities.
• Site Plan Application notice of decision has been issued.
• Shoreline notice of decision has been issued.
• A City Council Workshop reviewing the 60% Cost Estimate / Bio-solids Options / Community

Room / Finance workshop was conducted on September 30th.

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Resolutions regarding the Community Room and Solids Dryer Alternative will be presented at the

October 20th City Council Meeting.
• Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation) bids were opened and responsive.  A Guaranteed

Maximum Price Amendment No. 4 (GMP#4) with Hoffman regarding this phase of the project will
be presented at the October 20th City Council Meeting.

• A Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 5 (GMP #5) for procurement of a dryer will be
presented at the October 20th City Council Meeting.

• In conjunction with the GMP #4, contract amendments for services during construction with
Carollo, KBA, and ERCI will be presented at the October 20th City Council Meeting.  Contract
amendments will include planning efforts to assist in determining how the new Clean Water
Facility will integrate into Windjammer Park.

• 90% Design is expected to begin this month with an expected completion in February.

DESIGN STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design Carollo Engineers have submitted 60% design drawings 

and are proceeding with the 90% documents after the 
presentation to the City Council on September 30th. 

60% 

Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete, 
the bidding process is complete, and  GMP #4 scheduled 
for Council approval on October 20th 

completed 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Site Plan Permit
• Shoreline Master Plan Permit

• Notice of Decision has been issued.
• Notice of Decision has been issued.

83



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 20, 2015 
2 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
Outfall Construction The outfall pipe has been installed and the 

environmental backfilling activities are underway.   
The work is nearing completion.  The barge will be 
removed in mid-October. 

October 2015 

Site Preparation A Excavation activities started promptly after award on 
6/16/15 and are substantially complete.  Data 
gathered from Site Prep A was presented to the EPA, 
DAHP, DOE and Tribes to allow for the use of stone 
columns. 

August 2015 
(substantially complete) 

Groundbreaking on 
CWF 

Tentative date for mid November. November 2015 

 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) GMP #4 underway Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  Bids were opened 
on September 17 and will be presented to City Council on 
October 20th as part of GMP #4. 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffmancompleted cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% Design is expected 
to begin in Octoberr. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

GMP #5 underway Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer will be presented at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

Community Room TBD Cost estimates and funding for the community room were 
presented with the 60% cost estimateon September 30th.  A 
Resolution regarding the community room will be presented at 
the October 20th City Council Meeting. 

 
  

84



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 20, 2015 
3 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has submitted has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate 
of 1.9% for 20 years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship 
and green project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also 
offered. The 2016 CWSRF agreement is currently being drafted. 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

Application for 2017 CWSRF funding was submitted October 16, 2015. 

Bonds The City’s financial advisor for the project, PFM, presented options for issuing 
bonds for the new Clean Water Facility at the September 30th City Council Special 
Workshop.  The City is reviewing our funding options with regards to CWSRF vs. 
Bonds to develop the most advantageous funding program for the project. The 
goal is to reduce the overall burden on the rate payers. City staff initiated 
preparation of POS statement necessary to issue revenue bonds. 

Rates HDR presented potential rate impacts of the new Clean Water Facility to City 
Council at a Special Workshop held September 30th.  Staff is currently reviewing 
the impacts of the funding sources listed above, current bond rates and the 
estimated cost of the project to determine how the project rates might be 
impacted by the construction cost increases and lower financing rates. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 

Upcoming activities Description 
Ground breaking 
Ceremony 

The project team anticipates a ground breaking ceremony in mid-November as 
Site Prep B begins.  Preparations will begin in earnest after City Council has 
approved GMP #4.  

In-progress or recently 
completed activities Description 

September 30 – City 
Council Special Workshop  

Staff presented results of the 60% cost estimate, an analysis of bio-solids 
handling options, discussion about the community room and how all of this will 
related to funding and rates. 

  

  
  

  

85



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 20, 2015 
4 

 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
Mail  
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

 

We are here 

86

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-33: Clean Water 
Facility - Bio-solids Handling

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution 15-33 Adopting a Bio-solids Dryer Option for 
Construction of the Clean Water Facility.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant. After an extensive site selection 
process, City Council selected the Windjammer Vicinity on August 14, 2012 by Resolution 12-17. 
 Selecting the Windjammer Vicinity requires attention to appearance and aesthetics.   In addressing the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.a
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-33: Clean Water 
Facility - Bio-solids Handling

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution 15-33 Adopting a Bio-solids Dryer Option for 
Construction of the Clean Water Facility.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant. After an extensive site selection 
process, City Council selected the Windjammer Vicinity on August 14, 2012 by Resolution 12-17. 
 Selecting the Windjammer Vicinity requires attention to appearance and aesthetics.   In addressing the  Selecting the Windjammer Vicinity requires attention to appearance and aesthetics.   In addressing the 
plant operation, the solid waste from the facility has potential public impacts.

As part of the treatment process, the new treatment plant will generate a solid waste called bio-solids.  
State and federal law require stabilization and beneficial reuse of this material.  Many options exist to 
meet the regulations, but based upon Oak Harbor’s specific requirements the options were limited to 
landfilling, lime stabilization and a biosolids dryer.  These options were evaluated in light of capital and 
operating cost, aesthetics, suitability of the option in Windjammer Park, and practical beneficial reuse on
Whidbey Island.  Exhibit 1 provides a comparison/evaluation of the options. 

The landfilling option cannot be considered a viable long term solution due to state regulations.  In 
comparing the lime stabilization system with the bio-solids dryer, the dryer is the recommended option.  
The bio-solids dryer is a more expensive option but the additional cost is offset by:

1. Reduced truck traffic through the city
2. The dryer operations lessen impacts on Windjammer Park
3. Decreased amounts and handling of the material
4. Reduced trucking costs
5. Avoidance of handling lime
6. Suitability of bio-solids for beneficial reuse on Whidbey Island

 Selecting the Windjammer Vicinity requires attention to appearance and aesthetics.   In addressing the 
plant operation, the solid waste from the facility has potential public impacts.

As part of the treatment process, the new treatment plant will generate a solid waste called bio-solids.  
State and federal law require stabilization and beneficial reuse of this material.  Many options exist to 
meet the regulations, but based upon Oak Harbor’s specific requirements the options were limited to 
landfilling, lime stabilization and a biosolids dryer.  These options were evaluated in light of capital and 
operating cost, aesthetics, suitability of the option in Windjammer Park, and practical beneficial reuse on 
Whidbey Island.  Exhibit 1 provides a comparison/evaluation of the options. 

The landfilling option cannot be considered a viable long term solution due to state regulations.  In 
comparing the lime stabilization system with the bio-solids dryer, the dryer is the recommended option.  
The bio-solids dryer is a more expensive option but the additional cost is offset by:

1. Reduced truck traffic through the city
2. The dryer operations lessen impacts on Windjammer Park
3. Decreased amounts and handling of the material
4. Reduced trucking costs
5. Avoidance of handling lime
6. Suitability of bio-solids for beneficial reuse on Whidbey Island

87



The attached Resolution 15-33 selects a biosolids dryer and authorizes the project team to proceed with 
final design, permitting and procurement.  

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $0                                

Appropriation Source:                        Wastewater Fund  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Special Workshop.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

While there have been many previous council actions on the Clean Water Facility, no formal action has 
been taken by City Council on this particular topic.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-33 - Adopting a Bio-solids Dryer Option for construction of the Clean Water Facility
2. Exhibit 1 - Summary of Bio-solids Alternatives

The attached Resolution 15-33 selects a biosolids dryer and authorizes the project team to proceed with 
final design, permitting and procurement.  

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $0                                

Appropriation Source:                        Wastewater Fund  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Special Workshop.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

While there have been many previous council actions on the Clean Water Facility, no formal action has 
been taken by City Council on this particular topic.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-33 - Adopting a Bio-solids Dryer Option for construction of the Clean Water Facility
2. Exhibit 1 - Summary of Bio-solids Alternatives

88

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444413368_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444413406_at.pdf


Resolution No. 15-33 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-33 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BIO-SOLIDS DRYER OPTION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 

THE CLEAN WATER FACILITY 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor is constructing a wastewater treatment plant called the Clean Water 
Facility; and 

WHEREAS, as result of a public selection process the City of Oak Harbor will locate the Clean Water Facility 
in Windjammer Park; and 

WHEREAS, the Windjammer Park location requires attention to the appearance and aesthetics of the Clean 
Water Facility; and 

WHEREAS, the Clean Water Facility requires treatment and disposal of solid waste called bio-solids in 
accordance with state and federal regulations; and 

WHEREAS, several potential biosolids options were evaluated in light of regulatory acceptance, aesthetics, 
impact to the City’s road system, capital and operational costs, beneficial/sustainable biosolids disposal on 
Whidbey Island, and suitability within the Windjammer Park location; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that: 

1. Select a biosolids dryer as the preferred bio-solids alternative for the facility
2. Use a bio-solids dryer as the basis for any regulatory permits associated with the project.
3. Incorporate a bio-solids dryer into the final contract documents for the Clean Water Facility.

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 20st day of October, 2015.

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

__________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to form: 

___________________________ _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

89



Resolution 15-33 - Clean Water Facility - Bio-solids Handling 90



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-34: Clean Water 
Facility - Addressing the 
inclusion of a community use 
room into construction of the 
Clean Water Facility

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council consider Resolution 15-34 Addressing the inclusion of a 
community use room into the construction of the Clean Water Facility.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.b
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-34: Clean Water 
Facility - Addressing the 
inclusion of a community use 
room into construction of the 
Clean Water Facility

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council consider Resolution 15-34 Addressing the inclusion of a 
community use room into the construction of the Clean Water Facility.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant. After an extensive site selection 
process, City Council selected the Windjammer Vicinity on August 14, 2012 by Resolution 12-17. 
 Selecting the Windjammer Vicinity provides an opportunity to construct community use facilities into the 
project. 

Many wastewater facilities in the state have community use or interpretative facilities.  Since the Clean 
Water Facility requires an administrative/maintenance building, adding a second floor for a community use 
room was an attractive concept due to the view of the harbor and park.  The design team included this 
room into the design process to determine the cost feasibility of the proposal.

While a community use room at this location is an attractive idea, the funding for such a facility was not 
determined.  Since sewer fund revenues could finance only a portion of the facility, other city funding 
sources would be responsible for the majority of the costs (both capital and operating).  In light of the 
uncertain funding, the project schedule anticipated review of the facility at the 60% completion milestone, 
with the assumption that the second floor could be taken out of the project if the City chose not to pursue 
the community use room. 

On September 30, 2015 the project team provided information regarding the community use room at a 
Special City Council Workshop.  The following facts were presented

The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant. After an extensive site selection 
process, City Council selected the Windjammer Vicinity on August 14, 2012 by Resolution 12-17. 
 Selecting the Windjammer Vicinity provides an opportunity to construct community use facilities into the 
project. 

Many wastewater facilities in the state have community use or interpretative facilities.  Since the Clean 
Water Facility requires an administrative/maintenance building, adding a second floor for a community use 
room was an attractive concept due to the view of the harbor and park.  The design team included this 
room into the design process to determine the cost feasibility of the proposal.

While a community use room at this location is an attractive idea, the funding for such a facility was not 
determined.  Since sewer fund revenues could finance only a portion of the facility, other city funding 
sources would be responsible for the majority of the costs (both capital and operating).  In light of the 
uncertain funding, the project schedule anticipated review of the facility at the 60% completion milestone, 
with the assumption that the second floor could be taken out of the project if the City chose not to pursue 
the community use room. 

On September 30, 2015 the project team provided information regarding the community use room at a 
Special City Council Workshop.  The following facts were presented

91



 The community use room was approximately 4,000 square feet.
 The community use room includes space for 146 people in an auditorium seating configuration.
 The community use room included an elevator and small catering kitchen.
 The estimated additional cost for the community room was $2.37 million (based on Concept A)
 Complete funding has not been identified for this expense although it is anticipated that utilities 

would fund approximately half of the cost while the general fund and/or grants would fund the 
remaining balance.

 The facility would require a long term operating strategy which will include marketing.

The attached Resolution 15-34 includes a community use room in final design and procurement for the 
Clean Water Facility.  City Council may adopt the resolution as presented, recommend alterations to the 
configuration (such as size or seating capacity) or decline to adopt the resolution which would result in 
removing the community room from future design efforts.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $2.37 Million (estimated)

Appropriation Source:                Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Workshop.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

 The community use room was approximately 4,000 square feet.
 The community use room includes space for 146 people in an auditorium seating configuration.
 The community use room included an elevator and small catering kitchen.
 The estimated additional cost for the community room was $2.37 million (based on Concept A)
 Complete funding has not been identified for this expense although it is anticipated that utilities 

would fund approximately half of the cost while the general fund and/or grants would fund the 
remaining balance.

 The facility would require a long term operating strategy which will include marketing.

The attached Resolution 15-34 includes a community use room in final design and procurement for the 
Clean Water Facility.  City Council may adopt the resolution as presented, recommend alterations to the 
configuration (such as size or seating capacity) or decline to adopt the resolution which would result in 
removing the community room from future design efforts.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $2.37 Million (estimated)

Appropriation Source:                Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Workshop.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

While there have been many previous council actions on the Clean Water Facility, no formal action has 
been taken by City Council on this particular topic.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-34 - Addressing the Inclusion of a Community Use Room into the construction of the 
Clean Water Facility
2. Presentation graphics from September 30, 2015 Special Council Workshop

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

While there have been many previous council actions on the Clean Water Facility, no formal action has 
been taken by City Council on this particular topic.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-34 - Addressing the Inclusion of a Community Use Room into the construction of the 
Clean Water Facility
2. Presentation graphics from September 30, 2015 Special Council Workshop

92

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444413959_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444413959_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444413993_at.pdf


Resolution No. 15-34 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-34 

A RESOLUTION ADDRESSING THE INCLUCSION OF A COMMUNITY USE ROOM INTO 

THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE CLEAN WATER FACILITY 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor is constructing a wastewater treatment plan called the Clean Water 
Facility; and 

WHEREAS, as result of a public selection process the City of Oak Harbor will locate the Clean Water Facility 
in Windjammer Park; and 

WHEREAS, the Windjammer Park location requires attention to the appearance and aesthetics of the Clean 
Water Facility; and 

WHEREAS, The Clean Water Facility’s proximity to Windjammer Park and Puget Sound provides an 
opportunity for a community use room; and 

WHEREAS, a community use room was included in the 60% design of the Clean Water Facility; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor engaged in a public review process which included design charrettes, open 
houses, and on-line communications addressing the appearance and aesthetics of the Clean Water Facility; and 

WHEREAS, in light of the unique functional requirements of the Clean Water Facility, the selected an 
architectural concept with Resolution 15-27; and 

WHEREAS: the project 60% cost estimates included a community use room. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that: 

1. Include a community use room in the final design of the project

2. Include the community use room in the project construction procurement process.

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 20st day of October, 2015.

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

__________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

93



Resolution No. 15-34 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 

 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk   Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

94



Concept B – With Community Use Room 

Concept B – Without Community Use Room 

Resolution 15-34 - Clean Water Facility - Adressing the inclusion of a community use room into construction of the Clean Water Facility95



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #4

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #4) in the amount of 
$5,109,549 plus Sales Tax ($444,531) with Hoffman Construction for construction of Site Preparation
B-Deep Excavation, Shoring and Stone Columns.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction of the wastewater treatment plant involves extensive excavations on the selected site.  Site 
Preparation Package A GMP #3 successfully evaluated Cultural Resource concerns for the site.  The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #4

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #4) in the amount of 
$5,109,549 plus Sales Tax ($444,531) with Hoffman Construction for construction of Site Preparation 
B-Deep Excavation, Shoring and Stone Columns.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction of the wastewater treatment plant involves extensive excavations on the selected site.  Site 
Preparation Package A GMP #3 successfully evaluated Cultural Resource concerns for the site.  The Preparation Package A GMP #3 successfully evaluated Cultural Resource concerns for the site.  The 
next stage of the work, Site Preparation Package B, involves installing a sheet pile shoring system, 
installing stone columns, demolition of some existing structures, and excavating the structures to grade 
(approximately 25 feet in depth). 

In order to accomplish Site Preparation B, the work was divided into three bidding packages and 

advertised for bid.  Bids were opened on September 17th.  A summary of the results of each package is 
shown below:

Bid Package #1-Excavation

Bidder Amount

Pellco Construction $1,239,735.00

Interwest Construction $1,248,517.00

Package Estimate $915,000.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Pellco Construction, in the 
amount of $1,239,735.00. 

Preparation Package A GMP #3 successfully evaluated Cultural Resource concerns for the site.  The 
next stage of the work, Site Preparation Package B, involves installing a sheet pile shoring system, 
installing stone columns, demolition of some existing structures, and excavating the structures to grade 
(approximately 25 feet in depth). 

In order to accomplish Site Preparation B, the work was divided into three bidding packages and 

advertised for bid.  Bids were opened on September 17th.  A summary of the results of each package is 
shown below:

Bid Package #1-Excavation

Bidder Amount

Pellco Construction $1,239,735.00

Interwest Construction $1,248,517.00

Package Estimate $915,000.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Pellco Construction, in the 
amount of $1,239,735.00. 

96



 

Bid Package #2 - Stone Columns

 

Bidder                                                             Amount

Malcolm Drilling                                           $483,000.00

Condon Johnson                                             $485,732.00

Advanced Geosolutions                                 $557,520.00

Hayward Baker                                               $689,938.00

Package Estimate                                           $513,000.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Malcolm Drilling, in the 
amount of $,483,000.00. 

Bid Package #3 - Sheet Piles and Tie Backs

Bidder                                                             Amount

Condon Johnson                                             $2,197,000.00

Pacific Piles                                                    $2,735,903.00

Package Estimate                                           $2,900,000.00

 

Bid Package #2 - Stone Columns

 

Bidder                                                             Amount

Malcolm Drilling                                           $483,000.00

Condon Johnson                                             $485,732.00

Advanced Geosolutions                                 $557,520.00

Hayward Baker                                               $689,938.00

Package Estimate                                           $513,000.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Malcolm Drilling, in the 
amount of $,483,000.00. 

Bid Package #3 - Sheet Piles and Tie Backs

Bidder                                                             Amount

Condon Johnson                                             $2,197,000.00

Pacific Piles                                                    $2,735,903.00

Package Estimate                                           $2,900,000.00

Pacific Piles                                                    $2,735,903.00

Package Estimate                                           $2,900,000.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Condon Johnson, in the 
amount of $2,197,000.00. 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #4) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project.  This 
GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, contingency, GC/CM 
fee, Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  At the advice of 
Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those amounts are 
included in the contract.

The Negotiated Support Services include a tower crane reservation commitment for the project. In the 
current busy construction market, obtaining the necessary tower crane requires making a reservation in 
advance in order to have it available at time of construction.  Such a reservation requires a $32,000 down 
payment and also entails a penalty if the commitment doesn’t materialize.  Hoffman will proceed with the 
crane reservation with Morrow Cranes and the NSS amount reflects the potential penalty.  This penalty 
amount will only be charged if the crane rental is cancelled.  Otherwise this NSS amount will be applied 
to the future crane rental. 

Pacific Piles                                                    $2,735,903.00

Package Estimate                                           $2,900,000.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Condon Johnson, in the 
amount of $2,197,000.00. 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #4) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project.  This 
GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, contingency, GC/CM 
fee, Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  At the advice of 
Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those amounts are 
included in the contract.

The Negotiated Support Services include a tower crane reservation commitment for the project. In the 
current busy construction market, obtaining the necessary tower crane requires making a reservation in 
advance in order to have it available at time of construction.  Such a reservation requires a $32,000 down 
payment and also entails a penalty if the commitment doesn’t materialize.  Hoffman will proceed with the 
crane reservation with Morrow Cranes and the NSS amount reflects the potential penalty.  This penalty 
amount will only be charged if the crane rental is cancelled.  Otherwise this NSS amount will be applied 
to the future crane rental. 

97



GMP #4 totals to $5,109,549 plus $444,531 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.
 April 21, 2015 - GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687. 
 June 16, 2015 - GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the 

amount of $908,872
 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

GMP:
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 

equipment, etc.)
 WWTP construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $5,109,549 + Sales Tax ($444,531)   

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

GMP #4 totals to $5,109,549 plus $444,531 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.
 April 21, 2015 - GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687. 
 June 16, 2015 - GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the 

amount of $908,872
 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

GMP:
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 

equipment, etc.)
 WWTP construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $5,109,549 + Sales Tax ($444,531)   

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision 
for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital 
Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision 
for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital 
Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

98



12-2-14 - Authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) 
equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.

4-21-15 - Authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of $2,337,687.

6-16-15 - Authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount of $908,872.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate

ATTACHMENTS

12-2-14 - Authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) 
equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.

4-21-15 - Authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of $2,337,687.

6-16-15 - Authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount of $908,872.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate

ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 4 (GMP#4)
2. Attachment B - GMP #4 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of Award for Packages A, B, C
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#3)

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 4 (GMP#4)
2. Attachment B - GMP #4 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of Award for Packages A, B, C
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#3)

99

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416247_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416279_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416317_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416351_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416403_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416445_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444416481_at.pdf


CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment A 100



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment A 101



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment A 102



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment A 103



City of Oak Harbor,  Washington

Clean Water Facility Project
24-Sep-15

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 Rev3  10/2/15

GMP Amendment No 4 Recapitulation

Addition of Site Prep B -- Deep Excavation; Shoring, Stone Cols.

1 Direct Cost of Work

2 Bid Pack 1  - Item A - Exc. Demo & Util Relo Pellco 1,239,735$   

3 Bid Pack 1 - Item B - Stone Columns Malcolm 483,000$    

4 Bid Pack 1- Item C - Sheet Piling / Tie-backs Condon 2,197,000.00$     

5 Subcontractor Bonding Included

6 Total Direct Costs 3,919,735$   

7

8 Negotiated Support Services

9 See Detail 577,461$    

10 Tower Crane Reservation Commitment 80,250$    

11 Total NSS 657,711$    

12

13 Total NSS and Direct Costs 4,577,446$   

14

15 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 160,211$    

16

17 Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 4,737,656$   

18

19 Specified General Conditions 162,180$    

20

21 Sub-Total 4,899,836$   

22

23 GCCM Fee at 4.28% 209,713$    

24

25 Total GMP Cost 5,109,549$   

26 Washington State Sales Tax @ 8.7% 444,531$    

28 Total Amendment No 4 (Incl. Sales Tax) 5,554,080$   

Previously Issued Amendments

Preconstruction Services 790,050$    

GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 2,553,317$   

Washington State Sales Tax on Amendment 1 222,139$    

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 2,164,488$   

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 908,872$    

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment 12,192,946$   

CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment B 104



Building: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Job No: 5109214

Location: Oak Harbor , WA Precon -> Sheet No: 1

Engineer: Carollo Const -> 22 wks Estimator: THT

Subject: GMP Amendment 4 - SP-B NSS GSF -> Date: 9/24/15

Estimated Labor Estimated Matl Estimated Total  

Acct Quantity UOM Unit Labor Unit Material Cost Notes

006088 Builders Risk Insurance 1 ls 0 8,100 8,100 8,100 NSS for premium

007001 Supervision

  Office Manager - Full Time 22 Wk 1,368 30,096 0 30,096 NSS

  Safety Mgr - 2 days/mo 11 Days 443 4,875 0 4,875 NSS

007012 Supervisory Travel

  Temp housing 22 wks 0 375 8,250 8,250 NSS

007024 Construction Photos

  Aerial Photographs 5 Mo 455 2,275 2,275 NSS

   General 5.5 Mo 30 165 165 NSS

007026 Plans & Blueprints

  Miscellaneous 5.5 Mo 0 250 1,375 1,375 NSS

007060 Equip Rental- Hoffman LS 0 0 0  

  Radios - 4 ea 88 Wks 0 19 1,650 1,650 NSS

  Pick-up - 1ea  Job Services 22 Wks 0 150 3,300 3,300 NSS

  Forklift  8000# Reach AT 5.5 Mo 1,925 10,588 10,588 NSS

  Dewatering Pumps  - 4ea 5.5 Mo 200 1,100 1,100 NSS

Misc 5.5 Mo 0 500 2,750 2,750 NSS

007061 Equip Rental- Others 0 LS 0 0 0 NSS

  Baker Tank Mob  / Demob 2 Ea 1,000 2,000 2,000 NSS

  Baker Tank Rental 66 wks 1,934 127,644 127,644 NSS

007063 Gas, Oil & Maintenance  

  Gas, Oil & Fuel - Excl Radios 147,382 $ 0 0.20 29,476 29,476 NSS

007065 Transport Equipment 5.5 mo 750 4,125 4,125 NSS

  Forklift in and out 1 ea 3,000 3,000 3,000 NSS

007069 Small Tools 6 mo 600 3,300 3,300 NSS

007080 Use Taxes on Materials 8.7% PC 0 254,558 22,147 22,147 NSS

007083 Tax and Fringe

007098 Computer Charges 22 Wks 0 50 1,100 1,100 NSS

010500 Survey & Layout

  Survey and layout 12 Wks 0 2,917 35,004 35,004 NSS

015100 Temp Electrical SF 0 0.22 0 0 NSS

  Power Distribution Unit Ea 3,500 0 0 NSS

  Power Spiders 6 ea 375 2,250 2,250 NSS

  Spider Cord 1,200 lf 3 3,600 3,600 NSS

  Generator Light Towers 2 ea 4,000 8,000 8,000 NSS

  Pole Mount Floods 4 ea 1,500 6,000 6,000 NSS

015110 Utilities Power Reimb Mo 0 650 0 0 By Owner

015120 Utilties Water Bill 0 Mo 0 100 0 0 NSS

  Meter and BF Preventer 1 ea 3,000 3,000 NSS

  Water Charges 44,000 cf 0.05 1,980 1,980 NSS

015150 Temp Sanitation

  Latrines  - 6 each 5.5 Mo 0 5,940 32,670 32,670 NSS

  Handwash Station  - 1 each 5.5 Mo 125 688 688 NSS

  Drop Boxes and Disposal 11 lds 0 800 8,800 8,800 NSS

015180 Temp Water 5.5 Mo 0 160 880 880 NSS

Hoffman Construction Company

      Estimate Summary

Description

Print Date:  10/2/2015 Page 2 of 6 Form Rev. 1

CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment B 105



Building: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Job No: 5109214

Location: Oak Harbor , WA Precon -> Sheet No: 1

Engineer: Carollo Const -> 22 wks Estimator: THT

Subject: GMP Amendment 4 - SP-B NSS GSF -> Date: 9/24/15

Estimated Labor Estimated Matl Estimated Total  

Acct Quantity UOM Unit Labor Unit Material Cost Notes

Hoffman Construction Company

      Estimate Summary

Description

015200 Temp. Structures  

  Misc. Temp. Struct 5.5 Mo 1,000 5,500 450 5,950 NSS

Temp Stair Tower Setup 1 Ea 8,000 8,000 8,000 NSS

Temp Stair Tower Rental 12 Wks 300 3,600 3,600 NSS

015210 Temp Protection

Tree protection 1 ls 750 750 750 NSS

015220 Temp Roads & Parking

  Dust Control 5.5 Mo 0 750 4,125 4,125 NSS

015240 Temp Work Base 0 CY 0 10 0 0

Expanded laydown area 0 sf 0 4.15 0 0 w/direct cost

Dewatering  Conveyance Piping 1 ls 7,500 7,500 NSS

015282 Drug Tests 75 ea 0 85 6,375 6,375 NSS

015284 Safety Awards

  Group Leader Awards 0 ea 0 1,000 0 0 NSS

015290 First Aid 1 LS 0 1,200 1,200 1,200 NSS

015300 Temporary Barricades

   Additional Temp Fencing Setup 1,000 LF 0 1.5 1,500 1,500 NSS

   Fence Rental 5.5 MO 325 1,788 1,788 NSS

   Cable Rail at Sheet Piling

Posts 8'oc - weld to sheet 114 EA 135 15,390 20 2,280 17,670 NSS

Cable 2 rows 1,750 LF 4 6,300 5 8,750 15,050 NSS

Toeboard 870 LF 3 2,349 3 2,610 4,959 NSS

015800 Construction Signs 30 ea 150 4,500 150 4,500 9,000 NSS

    Project Signs 1 ea 650 650 650 NSS

015920 F O Equipment & Supply 5.5 Mo 0 800 4,400 4,400 NSS

  Furniture 0 LS 0 3,000 0 0 Existing

  Document Printer/Scanner 5.5 Mo 450 2,475 2,475

  Document Printer mob/demob 0.0 LS 0 1,500 0 0

  Scanner 0 mo 0 40 0 0

  Fax 0.0 mo 0 100 0 0

015940 Phone & Postage 5.5 Mo 0 850 4,675 4,675 NSS

  Hookup  0 Ea 0 750 0 0 NSS

   Data Line and Maint 5.5 Mo 0 125 688 688 NSS - Faciltiies

017990 Job Services 1,188 MH 90 106,920 0 106,920 NSS

Subtotals > 175,930 401,531 577,461 0

Print Date:  10/2/2015 Page 3 of 6 Form Rev. 1

CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment B 106



Tower Crane Reservation 

9 month Lead

Initial Commitment Quan Unit Total

Inbound Freight 1 16,250$        16,250$        

2 Mos Rental 2 32,000$        64,000$        

Total Initial Commit 80,250$      

CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment B 107



Specified General Conditions & Staffing

Weeks Weekly Rate Total

Trevor Thies 11 3,270$            35,970$          

Bryan Shirley 15 3,818$            57,270$          

Ben Larson 21 2,745$            57,645$          

150,885$        

Other LS GC 11,295$          

Total Specified GC 162,180$        

CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment B 108



Amendment No. 4  Site Prep B -- Assumptions and Qualifications

1

GMP price is based upon bids for work as described in bid package 1 - 'Site Prep B' and related drawings and specifications issued by 

Carollo "Site Preparation and Mass Excavation" and related addendums

2

Stone columns are only included for phase 1 buildings, which does not include solids, admin or maintenance buildings. A unit price 

for an additional mobilization and the additional stone columns will be carried forward to a future GMP amendment 

3

Strands may have been assumed by bidders for tie-back anchors versus double corrosion protected rods as the system is design 

build. This should not effect the performance of this temporary shoring wall

4

Negotiated Support Services and Specified General Conditions are based upon a 22 week schedule for completion of this package of 

work

5 Sheet piles are to be left in place. Cost to cut them down below grade will be included  in a future bid package

6

Initial tower crane commitment is to fund a deposit on the tower crane rental, expected to begin in Q2 of 2016. The amount shown 

is forfeited,  should the project not proceed as expected. Additional costs for tower crane rental for the full amount required to 

service the project will be submitted in a future amendment

CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment B 109



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment C 110



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment C 111



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment C 112



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 113



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 114



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 115



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 116



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 117



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 118



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 119



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 120



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 121



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 122



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 123



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 124



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 125



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 126



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 127



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 128



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 129



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 130



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 131



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 132



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 133



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 134



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 135



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 136



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 137



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 138



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 139



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 140



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 141



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 142



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 143



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 144



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 145



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 146



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 147



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 148



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 149



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 150



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 151



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 152



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 153



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 154



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 155



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 156



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 157



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 158



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 159



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 160



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 161



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 162



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 163



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 164



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 165



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 166



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 167



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 168



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 169



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 170



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 171



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 172



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 173



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 174



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 175



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 176



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 177



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 178



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 179



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 180



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 181



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 182



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 183



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 184



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 185



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 186



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 187



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 188



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 189



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 190



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 191



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 192



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 193



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 194



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 195



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 196



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 197



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 198



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 199



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 200



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 201



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 202



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 203



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 204



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 205



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 206



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 207



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 208



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 209



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 210



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 211



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 212



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 213



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 214



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 215



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 216



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 217



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 218



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 219



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 220



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 221



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 222



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 223



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 224



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 225



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 226



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 227



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 228



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 229



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 230



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 231



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 232



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 233



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 234



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 235



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 236



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 237



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 238



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 239



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 240



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 241



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 242



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 243



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 244



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 245



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 246



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 247



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 248



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 249



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 250



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 251



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 252



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 253



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 254



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 255



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 256



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 257



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 258



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 259



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 260



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment D 261



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment E 262



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment E 263



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment E 264



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment E 265



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment F 266



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment F 267



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment F 268



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment F 269



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment G 270



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment G 271



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment G 272



CWF - GC/CM GMP #4 - Attachment G 273



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #5

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #5) in the amount of 
$2,028,222 plus Sales Tax ($176,455) with Hoffman Construction for pre-purchase of a biosolids dryer.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An integral component of the City’s new Clean Water Facility involves stabilization and beneficial reused 
of the solid waste, called biosolids, generated by the process.  The project team evaluated various 
technologies and recommended use of a biosolids dryer.  The City Council accepted this 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.b
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #5

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #5) in the amount of 
$2,028,222 plus Sales Tax ($176,455) with Hoffman Construction for pre-purchase of a biosolids dryer.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An integral component of the City’s new Clean Water Facility involves stabilization and beneficial reused 
of the solid waste, called biosolids, generated by the process.  The project team evaluated various 
technologies and recommended use of a biosolids dryer.  The City Council accepted this technologies and recommended use of a biosolids dryer.  The City Council accepted this 
recommendation in Resolution 15-33.

Previously Hoffman Construction issued a request for proposals for solids dryers.  4 qualified 
manufactures submitted proposals with the results summarized below:

Manufacturer Amount

Haarslev Industries $1,879,205.00

Huber Technologies $2,650,000.00

Andritz $3,964,685.00

J. Kruger $5,119,000.00

Package Estimate $3,500,000.00

A review committee consisting of Hoffman, Carollo, and City Staff reviewed the proposals.  In addition
to purchase cost, the units were reviewed for operations and maintenance cost, design and quality of the 
machine, local service availability, ease of installation, and number of installations.  Based on this 
comprehensive review, the reviewers recommend award to the low bidder Haarslev Industries. 

Hoffman Construction recommends award to Haarslev, in the amount of $1,879,205.00 (attached is a 

technologies and recommended use of a biosolids dryer.  The City Council accepted this 
recommendation in Resolution 15-33.

Previously Hoffman Construction issued a request for proposals for solids dryers.  4 qualified 
manufactures submitted proposals with the results summarized below:

Manufacturer Amount

Haarslev Industries $1,879,205.00

Huber Technologies $2,650,000.00

Andritz $3,964,685.00

J. Kruger $5,119,000.00

Package Estimate $3,500,000.00

A review committee consisting of Hoffman, Carollo, and City Staff reviewed the proposals.  In addition 
to purchase cost, the units were reviewed for operations and maintenance cost, design and quality of the 
machine, local service availability, ease of installation, and number of installations.  Based on this 
comprehensive review, the reviewers recommend award to the low bidder Haarslev Industries. 

Hoffman Construction recommends award to Haarslev, in the amount of $1,879,205.00 (attached is a 

274



Hoffman Construction recommends award to Haarslev, in the amount of $1,879,205.00 (attached is a 
recommendation of award).  This amount reflects the cost of the equipment, startup services and ancillary 
tasks.  The cost to install the equipment will be included in the later mechanical portion of the project.

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #5) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project.  This 
GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, contingency, GC/CM 
fee, Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  At the advice of 
Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those amounts are 
included in the contract.

GMP #5 totals to $2,028,222 plus $176,455 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.
 April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687. 
 June 16, 2015—GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the 

amount of $908,872
Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

Hoffman Construction recommends award to Haarslev, in the amount of $1,879,205.00 (attached is a 
recommendation of award).  This amount reflects the cost of the equipment, startup services and ancillary 
tasks.  The cost to install the equipment will be included in the later mechanical portion of the project.

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #5) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project.  This 
GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, contingency, GC/CM 
fee, Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  At the advice of 
Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those amounts are 
included in the contract.

GMP #5 totals to $2,028,222 plus $176,455 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.
 April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687. 
 June 16, 2015—GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the 

amount of $908,872
Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project  Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 
GMP:

 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 
equipment, etc.)

 WWTP construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $2,028,222 + Sales Tax ($176,455)   

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                           

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision 

 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 
GMP:

 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 
equipment, etc.)

 WWTP construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $2,028,222 + Sales Tax ($176,455)   

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                           

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision 

275



for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital 
Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

12-2-14 - Authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) 
equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00

4-21-15 - Authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of $2,337,687

6-16-15 - Authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation B in the amount of $908,872

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital 
Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

12-2-14 - Authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) 
equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00

4-21-15 - Authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of $2,337,687

6-16-15 - Authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation B in the amount of $908,872

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#5)
2. Attachment B - GMP #5 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendation of Award for GMP #5
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#3)

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#5)
2. Attachment B - GMP #5 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendation of Award for GMP #5
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#3)

276

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424183_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424210_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424240_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424288_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424357_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424402_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444424451_at.pdf


CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment A 277



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment A 278



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment A 279



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment A 280



City of Oak Harbor,  Washington

Clean Water Facility Project
1-Oct-15

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 Rev 1 -10/2/15

GMP Amendment No 5 Recapitulation

Pre-Purchase of Bio Solids Dryer 

1 Direct Cost of Work

2 Solids Dryer Pre-Purchase, including Alt 2 Haarslev 1,682,390$   

3 Bid Alternate No. 2 -- Additional Equipment 196,815$   

4

5 Bonds Included

6 Total Direct Costs 1,879,205$   

7

8 Negotiated Support Services

9 NA -$    

10

11 Total NSS -$    

12

13 Total NSS and Direct Costs 1,879,205$   

14

15 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 65,772$   

16

17 Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 1,944,977$   

18

19 Specified General Conditions NA -$    

20

21 Sub-Total 1,944,977$   

22

23 GCCM Fee at 4.28% 83,245$   

24

25 Total GMP Cost 2,028,222$   

26 Washington State Sales Tax @ 8.7% 176,455$   

28 Total Amendment No 5 (Incl. Sales Tax) 2,204,678$    

Previously Issued Amendments

Preconstruction Services 790,050$   

GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 2,553,317$   

Washington State Sales Tax on Amendment 1 222,139$   

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 2,164,488$   

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 908,872$   

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 5,554,080$   

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment 14,397,623$     

CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment B 281



October 2, 2015 

City of Oak Harbor 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Attention: Brett Arvidson 

RE: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 
Hoffman Project No, 5100014  

Brett, 

At the request of the City of Oak Harbor and utilizing documents provided by Carollo Engineers, namely 

specification section 11365A,  Hoffman has directly solicited pricing from named vendors for the 

Biosolids Drying Equipment.  The early procurement of this equipment will make the design process 

more efficient for Carollo by allowing them to arrange the facility around the specific characteristics of 

the chosen equipment.  

Proposals received from vendors for the equipment included total capital costs and additional data that 

supported a calculation of a 15 year operations and maintenance life cycle for the equipment. The 

capital cost components included a breakout for the initial shop drawing and engineering support 

services.  These would be the only costs realized prior to construction of the facility.   

Hoffman proposes to procure this equipment under the ‘Heavy Civil’ provision of RCW39.10.370 as an 

element of our negotiated self-performed work. Ultimately, the installation of this equipment will be 

assigned to a process mechanical contractor, or will be performed by Hoffman, should we mutually 

determine that self-performance of certain mechanical work is in the best interest of the project.  

Hoffman will retain the warranty responsibility in behalf of the vendor, whereas the installation 

contractor will warrant their own workmanship.  

For the Biosolids Dryer equipment, we are recommending an award to Haarslev. The total capital cost 

quoted by Haarslev was lowest at a total of $1,879,205. This amount includes the larger 3000lb/hr 

capacity dryer and additional conveying equipment defined in Bid Alternate No. 2.  In addition to lowest 

capital cost of the equipment, the Haarslev proposal outlined total operations and maintenance costs 

over a  15 year operation span that was the lowest of all responding vendors.  

To allow Hoffman to enter into agreement with Haarslev, we request that the City of Oak Harbor 

approve GMP amendment No. 5 to our contract, submitted under separate cover.    

CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment C 282



1505 Westlake Ave. North, Suite 500 
Seattle, Washington 98109 

Ph: 206-286-6697  Lic. #HOFFMCC164NC 

Attached is a detailed bid comparison for the equipment for your use and review.  Please call with any 

questions you may have.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

Trevor H. Thies 

Sr. Project Manager 

Attachment 

 

 

  

 

 

CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment C 283



Project: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Work Item: BioSolids Dryer Date Printed: 10/2/2015

Job No: 5100014 Bid Package: EP01.03 File:    BC 11365J

WBS
Spec

Section

HCCO

Budget
Andritz Haarslev Industries Huber Technologies I. Kruger Inc.

  
BioSolids Dryer 11365J $3,964,685 $1,682,390 $2,085,096 $3,652,000

Alternate #1 Not Provided $1,300,280 lump sum $3,196,980/Lump Sum $4,115,475/Lump Sum
Alternate #2 Not Provided $196,815 $564,904 $1,467,000
Alternate #3 Not Provided $196,815/Lump Sum $554,345/Lump Sum $1,440,000/Lump Sum

Unit Price: Additional travel at start-up Not Provided $690/each $2,225/each $3,200/each
Unit Price: Factory rep at start-up € 1,100 (euro)/day $815/day $1,000/day $1,320/day

$0 $3,964,685 $1,879,205 $2,650,000 $5,119,000 $0

Proposal incomplete

Vendor Contact for this RFQ Name Bob Hill Keith Hamilton John Lewis Jim Georger

Vendor Email Address bob.hill@andritz.com
keith.hamilton@haarsle

v.com john@hhusa.net
jim.georger@veolia.c
om

Manufacture Represented Andritz Haarslev Huber Kruger
Lead Time after approved submittals Per Spec Per Spec Per Spec Per Spec

Total Estimated Shipping Weight lbs 200,005 lbs 108,000 lbs Not Provided Not Provided
Day Rate for On-site Technical Assistance $ Not provided $1,000/day $1,000/day Not Provided

Transportation and Freight to Site Included Yes/No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Point of Origin Pitlsburg, Texas US/Germany Germany Not Provided

Title Transfer Location DDP Site Site Site Site Site
On-site Submittal Review Yes/No No No No No 

Number of Addenda Acknowledged # 4 4 4 4
Submitted/Signed RFQ Forms Correctly Yes/No Incomplete Yes Yes Incomplete

We recommend that this work be awarded to:  Haarslev Approved:  Yes ____  /  No ____

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Subcontract/Purchase Agreement Amount:  $1,879,205

1505 WESTLAKE AVENUE NORTH, SUITE 500 We recommend that this work be bonded:  Yes

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98109 Estimated Bond Cost:  Included in base

http://www.hoffmancorp.com Hoffman Construction Company By:  ___________________________ ___________________________
Trevor Thies,  OM

Date:  10/2/2015 Date:  ________________

Description of Work

B
id

 C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 /

 A
w

a
rd

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment C 284



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 285



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 286



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 287



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 288



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 289



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 290



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 291



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 292



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 293



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 294



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 295



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 296



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 297



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 298



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 299



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 300



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 301



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 302



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 303



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 304



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 305



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 306



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 307



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 308



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 309



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 310



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 311



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 312



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 313



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 314



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 315



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 316



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 317



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 318



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 319



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 320



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 321



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 322



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 323



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 324



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 325



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 326



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 327



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 328



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 329



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 330



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 331



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 332



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 333



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 334



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 335



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 336



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 337



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 338



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 339



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 340



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 341



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 342



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 343



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 344



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 345



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 346



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 347



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 348



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 349



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 350



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 351



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 352



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 353



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 354



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 355



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 356



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 357



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 358



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 359



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 360



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 361



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 362



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 363



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 364



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 365



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 366



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 367



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 368



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 369



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 370



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 371



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 372



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 373



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 374



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 375



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 376



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 377



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 378



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 379



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 380



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 381



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 382



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 383



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 384



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 385



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 386



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 387



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 388



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 389



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 390



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 391



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 392



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 393



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 394



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 395



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 396



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 397



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 398



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 399



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 400



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 401



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 402



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 403



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 404



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 405



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 406



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 407



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 408



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 409



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 410



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 411



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 412



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 413



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 414



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 415



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 416



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 417



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 418



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 419



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 420



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 421



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 422



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 423



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 424



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 425



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 426



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 427



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 428



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 429



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 430



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 431



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 432



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment D 433



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment E 434



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment E 435



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment E 436



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment E 437



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment F

438



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment F

439



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment F

440



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment F

441



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment G 442



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment G 443



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment G 444



CWF - GC/CM GMP #5 - Attachment G 445



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 12

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The attached amendment to Carollo Engineers contract includes revisions in several areas.  While the 
amendment 11 was targeted at providing construction related services through Guaranteed Maximum 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.c
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 12

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The attached amendment to Carollo Engineers contract includes revisions in several areas.  While the 
amendment 11 was targeted at providing construction related services through Guaranteed Maximum amendment 11 was targeted at providing construction related services through Guaranteed Maximum 
Price (GMP) #3 – Site Preparation Package A, this amendment includes an expansion of the design 
services along with construction support.  The attached contract amendment includes the following scope
changes.

-        Incorporation of architectural concept B

-        Design of the north and south parking lots

-        Construction services through deep excavation (Site prep B & C)

-        Revising the park plan to incorporate impacts due to the Clean Water Facility

-        Increased public outreach and planning

The attached Carollo Engineers Contract Amendment No. 12 reflects the proposed scope of work in 
detail.  The additional scope of services has increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by
$1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to $9,605,341.  The project will 
require further Carollo contract amendments for services during construction as new GMP’s are brought
forward.  

amendment 11 was targeted at providing construction related services through Guaranteed Maximum 
Price (GMP) #3 – Site Preparation Package A, this amendment includes an expansion of the design 
services along with construction support.  The attached contract amendment includes the following scope 
changes.

-        Incorporation of architectural concept B

-        Design of the north and south parking lots

-        Construction services through deep excavation (Site prep B & C)

-        Revising the park plan to incorporate impacts due to the Clean Water Facility

-        Increased public outreach and planning

The attached Carollo Engineers Contract Amendment No. 12 reflects the proposed scope of work in 
detail.  The additional scope of services has increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by 
$1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to $9,605,341.  The project will 
require further Carollo contract amendments for services during construction as new GMP’s are brought 
forward.  

446



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $1,496,877                  

Appropriation Source:        Wastewater Fund / General Fund      

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Special Workshop

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $1,496,877                  

Appropriation Source:        Wastewater Fund / General Fund      

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Special Workshop

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 
Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 12
2. Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA and Previous Amendments
3. Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 
Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 12
2. Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA and Previous Amendments
3. Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

447

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444751597_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444751636_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444777515_at.pdf


Amendment No.  12 10/9/2015 Page 1 of 2 

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Oak Harbor Amendment 12 Form.docx

Consultant Agreement Amendment  
Number 12 

Organization and Address 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 

Phone: 360-279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:  Engineering 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan 
Project Number:  8549A.00 (Amendments 1-5) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6 - 12) 

Execution Date 
09/16/10 

Completion Date (Prior) 
July 2016 

Project Title:  Engineering, Facilities Plan and 
Preliminary Design 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
$9,605,341 

Description of Work:  This Amendment authorizes services to complete additional design phase 
services and construction phase services associated with Site Preparation Packages B and C. 

The City of Oak Harbor 
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Carollo Engineers, Inc. 
and executed on  09/16/10 and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.  

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add the following:  
Please see the attached Engineering Services Insert (Exhibit A). The requirements in this insert 
are hereby incorporated into the original agreement. 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work. 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO:  July 2016 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
The maximum total contract value is increased from $8,109,264 to $9,605,341. This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment 12 services. 

Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 448



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 449



SRF Specification Insert 1 Revised 10/24/2014 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
 

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES INSERT 
 

Revised 10/24/14 
 

 
The following clauses will be incorporated into contracts for engineering services receiving 
financial assistance from the Washington State Department of Ecology Water Pollution Control 
Revolving Fund.  In the event of conflict within the contract these clauses shall take precedence  
 
Compliance with State and Local Laws 
The engineering services provider (CONTRACTOR) shall assure compliance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, requirements, and ordinances as they pertain to the design, 
implementation, and administration of the approved project. 
 
State Interest Exclusion 
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of 
Ecology Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  Neither the State of Washington nor any of 
its departments or employees are, or shall be, a party to this contract or any subcontract. 
 
Third Party Beneficiary  
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of 
Ecology Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  All parties agree that the State of Washington 
shall be, and is hereby, named as an express third-party beneficiary of this contract, with full 
rights as such. 
 
Cost Basis of Contract  
No contract may be written for "cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost" or "percentage of construction 
cost." The cost basis for this contract must be cost-reimbursement, unit price, fixed-price, time 
and materials, or any combination of these four methods. 
 
Funding Recognition 
Documents produced under this agreement shall inform the public that the project received 
financial assistance from the Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  
Washington State Department of Ecology’s and the EPA’s logomust be on all signs and 
documents. Logos will be provided as needed. 
 
Access to the work site and to records   
The CONTRACTOR shall provide for access to their records by Washington State Department 
of Ecology and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) personnel. 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 450

PLosacco
Text Box
Exhibit A



SRF Specification Insert 2 Revised 10/24/2014 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain accurate records and accounts to facilitate the Owner’s audit 
requirements and shall ensure that all subcontractors maintain auditable records.  These records 
shall be separate and distinct from the CONTRACTOR’s other records and accounts. 
 
All such records shall be available to the Owner and to Washington State Department of Ecology 
and EPA personnel for examination. All records pertinent to this project shall be retained by the 
CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) years after the final audit. 
 
Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary 
Exclusion  
 

1. The CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from 
contracting with the federal government, or from receiving contracts paid for with federal 
funds.  If the CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to the statements contained in the 
certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they cannot.   

 
2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to the Washington State 

Department of Ecology if at any time the CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was 
erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 
3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 

transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and 
voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions 
and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.  You may contact 
the Washington State Department of Ecology for assistance in obtaining a copy of the 
regulations.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of 
Federal Regulations, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction.   

 
5. The CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this 

clause titled “Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary 
Exclusion” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

 
6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower 

tier covered transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment 
requirements.    

 
7. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in 

the Code of Federal Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding 
agreement, or pursuance of legal remedies, including suspension and debarment. 

 
8. The CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file that it and all lower tier 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 451



SRF Specification Insert 3 Revised 10/24/2014 

recipients or contractors are not suspended or debarred and will make this proof available 
to the Washington State Department of Ecology upon request.  The 
RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in http://www.sam.gov/ and print a copy 
of completed searches to document proof of compliance. 

 
This term and condition supersedes EPA Form 5700-49, “Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters.” 
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises  
 
General Compliance (40 CFR Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s Program for Participation By Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 40 CFR Part 
33.   
 
Non-discrimination Provision (40CFR Appendix A to Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in 
the performance of this contract. The CONTRACTOR shall carry out applicable requirements of 
40 CFR part 33 in the award and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial 
assistance agreements. Failure by the CONTRACTOR to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or other 
legally available remedies. 
 
Six Good Faith Efforts (40 CFR Part 33 Subpart C).   
The CONTRACTOR agrees to make the following good faith efforts whenever procuring 
subcontracts, equipment, services and supplies.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain records 
documenting compliance with the following six good faith efforts. 
 
 Ensuring Disadvantaged Business Enterprises are made aware of contracting 

opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities.  
For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government recipients, this will include placing 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever 
they are potential sources.  Qualified Women and Minority business enterprises may be 
found on the Internet at www.omwbe.wa.gov or by contacting the Washington State 
Office of Minority and Women’s Enterprises at (866) 208-1064. 

 Making information on forthcoming opportunities available to Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises and arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where 
the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process. This includes, whenever 
possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar 
days before the bid or proposal closing date. 

 Considering in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could 
subcontract with Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. For Indian Tribal, State and local 
Government recipients, this will include dividing total requirements when economically 
feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process.  

 Encourage contracting with a consortium of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises when a 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 452



SRF Specification Insert 4 Revised 10/24/2014 

contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually. 
 Using services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority 

Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 
 If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, requiring the subcontractors to take the six 

good faith efforts in paragraphs 1 through 5 above. 
 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 453



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT ACTIVITIES 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) has completed 60 Percent Design documents for the City of Oak 
Harbor (City) wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Certain elements of the 60 Percent Design 
must be revised and finalized to accommodate recommended and anticipated scope revisions. 
These include but are not limited to: modifying the architectural design theme to reflect public 
input; modifying the Administration Building to eliminate the Training Room from the project; 
finalizing the design of Headworks facilities per Value Engineering recommended at 30 Percent 
Design; completing Site Preparation B and C Bid Packages; completing site/civil design of City 
Beach Street and parking/access to the north and south of the CWF; and 
evaluating/incorporating other potential Value Engineering decisions to be made between 60 
and 90 Percent Design. Construction of Site Preparation B (shoring and excavation) and Site 
Preparation C (micro-pile installation) is needed to maintain schedule as final design is 
completed. Finally, mitigation activities related to park planning and additional public process 
support are required to support ongoing construction activities.  
 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
Consultant will provide the following services: 
 
 Complete additional public process support during final design and construction of Site 

Preparation B and C packages. 
 Complete Final Design Documents for the CWF in coordination with the General 

Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) and City staff to incorporate additional Value 
Engineering ideas as accepted. 

 Support additional permitting efforts to complete the Outfall Project and as needed for 
approval of CWF design documents. 

 Evaluate and incorporate value engineering concepts developed following 30% and 60% 
design. 

 Assist the City in preparing staffing and operations planning efforts in order to prepare to 
operate the CWF. 

 Complete mitigation activities, including a plan to integrate the CWF into the Windjammer 
Park as a requirement of the Conditional Use Permit. 

 Complete construction support and oversight, inspection and other engineering services for 
Site Preparation Packages B and C based on a GC/CM delivery method. It is assumed that 
the Owner will provide field staff including the City’s Project Manager and Field Inspectors, 
as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant will provide 
the following staff over the duration of Site Preparation Packages B and C:  
- Project Manager (PM). 
- Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/FI) to assist with construction support and field 

engineering services.  
- Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 

construction.  

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 454



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

- Geotechnical Engineer (GE) to provide submittal review, timely interpretations of 
geotechnical issues, and inspection of stone column, sheet pile shoring system and 
micropile installation. 

- Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 
planning and outfall construction. 

 
 
The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM’s 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant’s level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 200 – Public Process Support - Construction 
Task 300 – Public Process Support - Design 
Task 400 - CWF Final Design and Permitting 
Task 500 - Project Delivery Coordination 
Task 600 - Operational Planning and Commissioning Support 
Task 800 - Engineering Services During Construction 
Task 900 - Windjammer Park Conceptual Plan 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
This Scope of Services is based on a duration of eight (8) months, as currently estimated. 
 

Milestone Schedule Estimate 
Design Complete June 2016 

Site Preparation (Phase C) 
Final Completion June 2016 

 
 
TASK 200 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT – CONSTRUCTION  
 
Subtask 240 – Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  
 
Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach. Consultant 
services will include: 
 

 Continue to assist City in implementing construction communications as defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. 

 Maintain website for construction and project activities, including updating of Project 
Library page for ease of navigation and to easily capture history of project. Update 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 455



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

website on a weekly basis during outfall construction, and overall monthly for ease of 
navigation for ongoing final design/project activities. 

 Support Public Process related to construction of Site Preparation Packages B and C. 
This will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total nine). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 36). 

 Support briefing coordination to update community groups about project, including 
coordination of presentations. 

 Lead logistics to implement a Groundbreaking event for facility, including event 
invitation, planning, day-of logistics, and keepsake.  

 
Task 200 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

2. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two subconsultant staff.  
3. Construction duration assumed to be 36 weeks for weekly activities.  
4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask 

(including stakeholder briefing presentation materials). 
5. Maintain an ongoing list of project fence graphics/banners and coordinate with contractor 

for wayfinding.  
6. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 

by City staff/consultants.  
7. Direct costs associated with day-of logistics, notification and keepsake for 

Groundbreaking shall be invoiced directly to City. 
Task 200 Deliverables: 

1. Weekly construction outreach materials/web updates. 
2. Groundbreaking notifications. 
3. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics for construction outreach.  

 
TASK 300 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT – DESIGN  
 
Subtask 340 – Public Meetings/City Council Workshops  
 
Provide additional materials to support public process associated with design and permitting 
activities. Consultant services will include: 
 

 Development of an alternate architectural concept (Concept B) for public comment. 
 Preparation for and attending two (2) additional public meetings to review architectural 

concepts and develop recommended approach. 
 Development of additional site landscaping renderings to assist in defining parking and 

site access requirements to the north and south of the CWF. 
 Development of renderings to assist in viewshed analysis for public comment and as 

required by the City permitting process. 
 Development of one (1) rendering showing the Lab/Administration Facility as a single-

story, without a training facility. 
 
Assist in planning for and delivering joint Public Meetings/City Council Workshops, defined 
below. For each meeting coordinate with City staff to: Participate in up to two (2) planning 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 456



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

sessions via phone; assist City to arrange for suitable meeting location; prepare meeting plan; 
produce up to six (6) display boards; assist with development of PowerPoint presentation; 
develop sign-in sheet and public comment form; develop draft and final agenda; develop draft 
and final meeting announcement postcard and display ad notification; provide one (1) facilitator 
and one (1) support staff; and produce one (1) draft and one (1) final meeting summary 
(minutes).   
 
Assist in planning and soliciting public input on facility name by conducting online survey. 
Participate in up to two (2) planning sessions via phone; develop draft and final survey 
announcement postcard and display ad notification; and produce one (1) draft and one (1) final 
survey summary for Council consideration.  
 

Public Meeting/Council Workshop Objectives 
P1 – Public Meeting No. 1, Q4 2015 
(Input on Final Design Progress) 

Report Project Status at 90/100% design 
Obtain Input to Assist With Final Design Decisions 
Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P2 – Public Meeting No. 2, Q2 2016 
 

Report Project Status/current opportunity for input 

P3 – Facility Naming Online survey associated with project naming 
 
 
Subtask 360 – Council Meeting/Workshop Participation  
 
Support monthly presentation development for Council meetings, and attend up to two Council 
meetings or workshops in a speaking capacity.  
 
Subtask 370 – Public/Stakeholder Involvement Product Development  
 
In consultation with City staff develop three (2) one-page double-sided project update fliers. 
Draft content and develop two (2) full-size (11x17 double-sided) project newsletter/mailer. 
Prepare two (2) display ads associated with newsletter content for publication in Whidbey News-
Times  
 
Task 300 Assumptions: 

1. Public Meetings may be held in conjunction with City Council Workshops to enhance 
efficiency for sharing information. 

2. The City will pay for meeting locations and facilities. 
3. The City will coordinate with local paper to publish announcements and include notices 

of meetings on their website. 
4. The City will coordinate posting and distribution of meeting announcements.  
5. The City will pay for all costs related to meeting notifications, including printing and 

postage.  
6. The City will pay for all costs related to printing meeting boards. 
7. Consultant will participate in planning meetings via phone, unless coordinated with 

meetings identified in Subtask 240.  
8. Any other planning or Council meeting attendance shall be captured in Subtask 240. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 457



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

9. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants. 

10.  The City will be responsible for distributing materials to the public, including paying for 
printing, advertisements, and postage. 

 
Task 300 Deliverables: 

1. Up to four (4) renderings and boards for alternate landscaping concept (Concept B). 
2. Materials and participation in two (2) additional public meetings to review and discuss 

architectural concepts. 
3. Site renderings of the Windjammer Vicinity showing parking and site access options to 

the north and south of the CWF. 
4. One (1) rendering of a single-story Lab/Administration Facility. 
5. Up to six (6) renderings illustrating viewsheds for public comment and in compliance with 

the City permitting process. 
6. Public meeting materials. 
7. Naming survey. 
8. Council Workshop Materials. 
9. Project Update Fliers. 
10. Project Newsletter/Mailer. 

 
TASK 400 – CWF FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING 
 
The objective of this task is to complete work requested by the City and GC/CM to complete 
final design and permitting of the CWF, between 30 Percent Design and Final Design. 
 
Subtask 471 – 60 Percent Design 
 
Complete Cone Penetration Testing (CPT) on the site to better define depth to glacial till layers 
at key locations around the proposed CWF site. 
 
Subtask 472 – 90 Percent Design 
 
Complete Final Design documents incorporating decisions by the City and recommendations by 
the GC/CM. These include: 
 

 Finalize site/civil design to include City Beach Street alignment and grade; 
 Complete architectural design for Concept B without a Training Facility; 
 Design parking, access, and stormwater conveyance/treatment to the north and south of 

the CWF; 
 Coordinate utility relocation on the north side of the CWF. Coordinate PSE applications, 

design support (drawing backgrounds), and final design coordination for both temporary 
and final power. Coordinate water, natural gas, and fiber optic cable relocations. 

 Finalize process, structural, mechanical, electrical, and site design based on VE ideas 
proposed by the GC/CM and adopted by the City.  
 
 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 458



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

Subtask 475 – Early Site Preparation  
 
Prepare two (2) additional separate and early sets of design documents for completing site 
preparation for the new CWF. Site preparation is expected to include: demolition of existing 
WWTP facilities; utility relocation; installation of shoring and dewatering systems; excavation; 
and stockpiling of excavated material; foundation stabilization work including stone columns and 
micropiles. 
 
Prepare two (2) stand-alone design documents (Site Prep B and Site Prep C) including 
technical specifications needed for the Early Site Preparation Packages. The documents will be 
suitable for bidding or negotiated self-performance by the GC/CM. 
 
Subtask 480 – Permit Coordination  
 
The objective of this subtask is to assist the City of Oak Harbor with additional permit support 
that has been identified as the site preparation and final design packages have been further 
defined for the CWF. These include 
 

 Continued coordination with the Washington Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) 
in obtaining the land lease for the outfall, supporting Contractor activities in negotiating 
the grounding of a barge on the intertidal zone, and coordinating approval of the 
sediment monitoring requirements. 

 Revision, review, and updates to the biological assessment in support of the Shoreline 
Conditional use Permit. 

 Extended coordination and meetings with the City to adjust the project's permit strategy 
and permit submittal requirements.  

 Final SERP Cross-cutter document update and submittal. 
 Additional forage fish sampling visits to comply with permit requirements made in the 

Biological Assessment prepared for the project. Difficulties in outfall construction have 
resulted in slower than anticipated completion of the intertidal work. Coordinate, conduct, 
and report on 12 additional forage fish monitoring events (18 total) according to the 
established protocol. 

 Preparation of a more complex boundary line adjustment (BLA) and extended 
coordination and resolution to address the title conflicts, limited recorded information, 
and City Beach easement on Windjammer Park parcel. 

 Permits and agency coordination to support the three (3) Site Preparation Packages 
including: 
- Grading Permit 
- Floodplain Permit 
- Foundation Permit 
- Coordination with Ecology 

 
Task 400 Assumptions: 

1. City will handle City Beach easement vacate coordination and execution. 
2. All permit applications fees will be paid directly by the City.  
3. Consultant will provide up to an additional twenty (20) hours for technical support and 

responses to agency comments. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 459



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

4. Additional permitting efforts associated with potential/conceptual mitigation measures 
that the City may choose to implement at a later phase are excluded from Consultant’s 
authorized scope and may be authorized by the City at a later date. Examples include: 
a. Renovation or restoration of structures within Windjammer Park. 
b. Traffic circulation improvements to City Beach St. 
c. North and south parking lots outside of the CWF parcel. 
d. Demolition of the Whidbey Island Bank building. 

 
Task 400 Deliverables: 

1. Final CWF construction documents incorporating City, Public, and GC/CM input between 
30 Percent Design and Final Design. 

2. Site Preparation Package B drawings and specifications. 
3. Bidding Support for Site Preparation Package B. 
4. Site Preparation Package C drawings and specifications. 
5. Bidding Support for Site Preparation Package C. 
6. Up to ten (12) additional brief forage fish sampling reports delivered to WDFW (1 per 

sampling event). 
7. Materials to provide final update for SERP cross-cutter documentation. 
8. Update letter to supplement biological assessment. 
9. Additional Development Permit Application Packages to support early site work. 

a. Three (3) Grading Permits 
b. Two (2) Floodplain Permits 
c. One (1) Foundation Permit 

10. One (1) update to the site plan figure prior to issuance of the Site Preparation Package 
foundation permit. 

 
TASK 500 – PROJECT DELIVERY COORDINATION 
 
The objective of this task is to develop, evaluate, and incorporate Value Engineering (VE) ideas 
with the City and GC/CM. Effort included in this task includes VE ideas accepted since 30 
Percent Design and anticipated between 60 Percent Design and Final Design. 
 
Subtask 520 – Evaluate/Implement VE Ideas  
 
Evaluate and review value engineering ideas based on 30% and 60% design documents. 
Assess preliminary cost impacts and O&M considerations with the City and GC/CM to 
determine if concept should be incorporated into final design. Conduct additional design 
coordination meetings with O&M staff for accepted ideas during implementation. 
 
Task 500 Deliverables: 

1. Preliminary assessment and recommendations on VE ideas at 30% and 60% design 
completion. 

2. Participate in VE evaluation meetings at 30% and 60% design completion. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 460



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

3. Conduct two (2) additional design review meetings with O&M to review the status of 
incorporated VE concepts. 

4. 60% CWF construction documents incorporating accepted value engineering concepts 
from 30% design including reorientation of the Headworks. 

5. 90% CWF construction documents incorporating accepted value engineering concepts 
from 60% design. 
 

TASK 600 – OPERATIONS PLANNING AND COMMISSIONING SUPPORT 
 
The objective of this task is to initiate the implementation plan that identifies the needs to 
transition the City of Oak Harbor O&M staff to operate the planned CWF, an advanced 
wastewater treatment plant.  
 
Subtask 610 – Staff Workload Plan 
 
The objective of this subtask is to provide an organizational staffing plan that identifies the 
detailed daily and preventative maintenance manpower needs for each process area, 
permitting, and overall plant operation and assigns specific roles/responsibilities/decision 
making authority for the seven (7) operations and maintenance positions supporting the CWF. 
This plan will also serve as a guidance tool for the City to consider such as current capabilities, 
skillset needs, potential personnel acquisition, or compensation tied to expertise. Finally, this 
plan will recommend an overarching schedule that focuses on the City's manpower needs 
during the design phase and construction phase transition periods.  
 
Consultant will participate in two (2) meetings to survey O&M staff and receive feedback from 
the City. 
 
Task 600 Deliverables: 

1. Draft and final Staff Workload Plan. 
2. Agenda and meeting minutes for two (2) meetings. 

 
TASK 800 – ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). In order to facilitate, the CWF project 
timeline, various site preparation activities, such as utility relocations, shoring, mass excavation, 
and ground improvements allow the site to be readied for the main plant construction work as 
the CWF design is being finalized.  
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Site Preparation Project (Project) based 
on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method, and as described 
herein. 
 
It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City’s Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project:  
 Project Manager (PM). 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 461



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

 Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/FI) to assist with construction support and field 
engineering services.  

 Geotechnical Engineer (GE) to provide submittal review, timely interpretations of 
geotechnical issues, and inspection of stone column, sheet pile shoring system and 
micropile installation.  

 Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 
construction.  

 
Subtask 810 – Project Management 
 
Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 
 

 Management of Consultant’s team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/FI to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities.  

 Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month’s accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes.  

 Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant’s efforts. 
 Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 

(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 
 

Subtask 810 Assumptions: 
1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 

budget for each major task. 
2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 

all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 
3. Project duration is approximately 8 months. 

 
Subtask 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 
2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

 
Subtask 820 – Project Meetings 
 
Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including:  
 
Subtask 821 – Construction Kick-off Conference 
 
Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project.  
 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 462



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

Subtask 822 – Progress Meetings 
 
Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFI’s), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project.  
 
Subtask 820 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 
2. Four (4) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, DM, PE/FI, and 

GE. 
3. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 

necessary materials and minutes. 
4. The Consultant’s PE/FI will attend up to 36 Weekly Progress Meetings, and GE will 

attend up to four (4) meetings. 
 

Subtask 820 Deliverables: 
1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 
2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 
3. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 

 
Subtask 830 – Field Services  
 
Provide a Project PE/FI to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/FI will be responsible for the following tasks: 
 

 Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

 Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel: Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Provide supplemental inspection of general, 
civil, and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection reports by others, and 
prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize weekly and monthly 
inspection reports for the City. 

 Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

 Track Requests for Information (RFI): Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFIs and clarifications to the GE 
when appropriate.  

 Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing for review.  

 Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications to the GC/CM.  

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 463



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

 Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM’s monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City’s Project Manager.  

 Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

 Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City’s Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs.  

 Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City’s Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

 Photographic Documentation of Construction: GE shall provide periodic photographic 
records of site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports.  

 Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested. Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved, and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

 
Subtask 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/FI will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/FI providing an average of eight (8) hours per week (20% commitment) over the 
eight (8) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is 
allocated to both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly 
progress meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

 
Subtask 830 Deliverables: 

1. Construction inspection reports and photographs. 
2. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 
3. Tracking logs for RFI’s, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 

requests, etc. 
 
Subtask 840 – Office Services During Construction 
 
Provide office engineering services during construction, including:  
 
Subtask 841 – Requests for Information (RFI) 
 
Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 464



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

Subtask 842 – Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 
 
Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 
 
Subtask 843 – Review of Schedule of Value 
 
Review contractor’s schedule of value, and provide comment to City for information and/or 
action.  
 
Subtask 844 – Record Drawings 
 
Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM’s as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM’s drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 
 
Subtask 845 – Claim Review 
 
As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 
 
Subtask 840 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 60 RFI’s with an average effort of two (2) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses. The GE’s scope of services included time to respond to 
geotechnical related RFI's. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services. 

4. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

5. Consultant’s effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

6. Budget is based on a total of 65 basic submittals at 4 hours of effort each to review and 
issue final responses. The GE’s scope of services includes time for detailed submittal 
review for dewatering, stone columns, soils and aggregates, sheet piling and tie-backs. 

7. Consultant’s effort includes services to review the contractor’s schedule of value. Written 
responses summarizing the review shall be provided to the City’s PM. 

8. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. Budget is 
based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 hours to 
produce record drawings from the information provided. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 465



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

9. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor’s work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

10. Budget is based on a total of one (1) claim to review and respond. 
11. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 

proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 
 

Subtask 840 Deliverables: 
1. Up to 60 written RFI responses. 
2. Up to 65 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
3. Written review comments regarding the proposed Schedule of Values. 
4. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM.  
5. Site Preparation Project record drawings in Auto CAD format. 
6. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 
 

TASK 900 – WINDJAMMER PARK CONCEPTUAL PLAN 
 
The objective of this task is to develop a conceptual plan to integrate the CWF with Windjammer 
Park.  
 
Subtask 910 – Project Initiation 
 
The project team will meet with the City of Oak Harbor (COH) to confirm project scope and work 
plan. The team will prepare a list of project goals and finalize the project schedule with key 
tasks, meetings, deliverables, responsible parties, milestones, required predecessors, and 
anticipated durations of each element and phase of work. This task requires an in person 
meeting and an initial pre-meeting phone call with COH staff to discuss the work plan and 
associated documents.  
 
Subtask 920 – City Council Work Session 
 
The project team will facilitate a half-day work session with the Oak Harbor City Council. This 
work session will serve to bring council members up to date with regards to the CWF design 
process, current Windjammer Park amenities and conditions, past Windjammer Park planning 
efforts and past and current City of Oak Harbor transportation and land-use planning efforts in 
the vicinity of the park. This overview will provide the Council a current perspective when 
determining the future program and vision for Windjammer Park. 
 
Subtask 921 – Site Analysis 

 
We will prepare a Site Analysis package to help inform the Council as to the current condition of 
the park and its amenities. The package will include a Site Analysis map for presentation that 
communicates the location and general condition of current and known future park elements 
including but not limited to: the Clean Water Facility (CWF), restrooms, kitchens, playgrounds, 
hard surface courts, swimming lagoon, parking lots, RV park, pedestrian and automobile 
connections, adjacent property uses, existing land forms, significant trees and plantings and 
park furnishings. Park elements will be inventoried, photographed and documented with 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 466



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

descriptions of current condition and estimated replacement costs. The Site Analysis will include 
dialogue, images, and diagrams and potential future development along Pioneer. 
 
Subtask 922 – Opportunities and Constraints 
 
We will prepare an Opportunities and Constraints map for presentation that will depict existing 
and proposed future park infrastructure. This map will serve to communicate our assumptions 
related to major constraints, validate our starting point for the planning effort, and gather 
feedback from Council that may give us early direction. Specific elements that need to be 
addressed include: Ball Fields, Swimming Lagoon, RV Park and the Bayshore Drive right of 
way. 
 
The critical outcomes from the work session will serve to define the Windjammer Park planning 
limits and the Windjammer Park program, determining the inclusion or omission of major 
constraints. Other outcomes include receipt of feedback on important goals and program 
elements from Council members and the charter of a Windjammer Park Stakeholder Committee 
(WPSC) to participate in the planning process moving forward. 
 
Subtask 930 – Alternative Development and Public Involvement 
 
The project team will support formation, coordinate and facilitate a Windjammer Park 
Stakeholder Committee and two public open houses. The WPSC will advise the design team on 
programming and aesthetics for the park and will be charged with making a recommendation to 
City Council. As the WPSC meets, the design team will develop and present park design 
alternatives for Windjammer Park. 
 
Subtask 931 – Public Open House and Stakeholder Committee 

 
Meeting Objectives 
WPSC Meeting #1  
(January)  

 Charter and Ground Rules  
 Explain Park requirements/constraints 
 Introduce design guidelines [seek 

feedback] 
 
 

WPSC Work Session 
#2/Public Open House 
(January/February) 

 Introduce the project and the WPSC to the 
community 

 Explain the project as an extension of the 
CWF 

 Present Park requirements/constraints 
 Gather general feedback from the 

community on values, priorities, and what 
the WPSC should be considering as they 
work with the design team 

  

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 467



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

Meeting  Objectives 
WPSC Work Session 
#3 
(February) 

 Present and gather feedback on two (2) 
alternatives including:  

- Program  
- Site layout  
- Integration or omission of specific 

proposed or existing infrastructure 
(i.e. roads, parking lots, RV park, 
etc.)  

 Specific focus will be given to the 
integration and/or omission of project 
elements based on City Council direction 

WPSC Meeting 
#4/Public Open 
House/Online Open 
House 
(March) 

 Present two (2) Park plan alternatives 
 Gather feedback from the WPSC and 

community on preferred alternative to 
inform final design 

WPSC Meeting #5 
(April) 

 Review preferred plan to be presented as 
recommendation to Council  

 Gather any final thoughts or feedback 
 
 
Subtask 932 – Alternative Development 
 
The design team will develop two (2) preliminary conceptual alternatives for Windjammer Park 
that respond to feedback and input from the City Council, WPSC, and the general public. The 
alternatives will clearly illustrate the scale, physical proportions, and inter-relationships of all 
agreed upon elements of the conceptual plan. The alternatives will conceptually identify the 
size, range of amenities and functional arrangements for new development such as parking, 
access, circulation, open space, programmed recreational space and building and site 
configurations. Supplemental illustrative graphics will be developed to further communicate 
design elements and park character and be suitable for presentation. The conceptual plan 
alternatives and associated graphics will be prepared using high quality, illustrative renderings 
that will be reviewed and refined for public presentation. 
 
Subtask 940 – Preferred Alternative Development 
 
The design team will use information gathered at the final open house to develop a preferred 
alternative for integration into the conceptual plan report. 
 
Subtask 950 – Conceptual Plan Documentation 
 
The design team will finalize the conceptual plan report which will include results of the site 
analysis; overview of the opportunities and constraints; documentation of discussions and 
decisions from the City Council work session, WPSC meetings and Public Open Houses; two 
(2) conceptual alternatives; the preferred conceptual plan for development of Windjammer Park; 
preliminary cost estimate and draft phasing strategy. 
  

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 468



pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Amendment 12 SOW_151006.docx 

 
 
Task 900 Deliverables: 

1. Agenda and meeting notes for Project Initiation meeting. 
2. Project schedule. 
3. Agenda, presentation materials and meeting notes for City Council Work Session. 
4. Site Analysis and Opportunities and Constraints maps. 
5. Park Inventory document. 
6. Park Program document. 
7. Meeting plans/agendas, presentation materials, facilitation, and meeting notes for five 

(5) public and WPSC meetings. 
8. Meeting announcements (2 per meeting, total 10). 
9. Online open house. 
10. Project website subpage. 
11. Two (2) Windjammer Park conceptual alternatives with supplemental illustrative graphics 

(up to 5). 
12. Preliminary cost estimates for two (2) alternatives. 
13. Preferred Conceptual Plan illustrative graphics. 
14. Updated preliminary cost estimate for preferred Conceptual Plan. 
15. Draft phasing strategy. 
16. Draft and final Conceptual Plan Report. 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 469



EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
Clean Water Facility
Amendment 12 Level of Effort Estimate 2.0%

October 9, 2015 Matson CAMP Hadler Misc. Misc Staff Enriquez Misc Lish 1.9 $10.00

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $85 $76 $58 $62 $42 $40 $27 $25
TASK 200 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT - CONSTRUCTION

Subtask 240 - Ongoing Planning and Material Development 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $74,000 $74,000

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $74,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $74,000

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT - DESIGN
Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/Council Workshops 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $43,000 $23,500 $86,500
Subtask 360 - Council Meetings/Workshop Presentations 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $6,000
Subtask 370 - Public/Stakeholder Involvement Product Development 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $20,000

Task 300 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,000 $43,000 $0 $23,500 $0 $112,500

TASK 400 - CWF FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING
Subtask 471 - 60% Design (CPT Field Work) 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,000 $21,000
Subtask 472 - 90% Design (Additional Site/Civil, Redesign Concept B) 8 16 48 200 144 80 496 $25,024 $47,546 $6,411 $78,981 $128,000 $80,000 $15,000 $301,981
Subtask 475 - Early Site Prep Package (Add Phases B & C) 16 12 24 120 32 60 60 40 24 388 $19,796 $37,612 $5,028 $62,437 $62,437
Subtask 480 - Permit Coordination (Additional Services to Complete) 16 32 88 24 24 24 208 $11,512 $21,873 $2,748 $36,132 $38,000 $12,000 $6,500 $92,632

Task 400 Subtotal 40 12 72 256 232 84 228 120 48 1,092 $56,332 $107,031 $14,187 $177,550 $38,000 $0 $140,000 $21,000 $80,000 $21,500 $478,050

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY COORDINATION
Subtask 520 - Evaluate/Implement VE Ideas 60 40 120 60 72 140 80 60 40 672 $37,444 $71,144 $8,892 $117,479 $10,000 $7,000 $134,479

Task 500 Subtotal 60 40 120 60 72 140 80 60 40 672 $37,444 $71,144 $8,892 $117,479 $0 $0 $10,000 $7,000 $0 $0 $134,479

TASK 600 - OPERATIONAL PLANNING AND COMMISSIONING SUPPORT
Subtask 610 - Operations Staff Planning 4 8 32 100 16 160 $9,664 $18,362 $2,161 $30,186 $30,186

Task 600 Subtotal 4 8 32 100 0 0 0 0 16 160 $9,664 $18,362 $2,161 $30,186 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,186

TASK 800 - ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION
Subtask 810 - Project Management 32 16 48 $3,216 $6,110 $667 $9,993 $9,993
Subtask 820 - Project Meetings 4 28 80 112 $7,120 $13,528 $1,533 $22,181 $7,500 $29,681
Subtask 830 - Field Services 216 216 $12,528 $23,803 $2,887 $39,218 $206,500 $245,718
Subtask 841 - Request for Information 60 60 16 136 $7,600 $14,440 $1,801 $23,841 $4,200 $28,041
Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 65 65 130 32 292 $14,060 $26,714 $3,735 $44,509 $8,500 $53,009
Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values 8 8 $464 $882 $107 $1,453 $1,453
Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 8 64 72 $3,024 $5,746 $895 $9,665 $9,665
Subtask 845 - Claim Review 2 4 8 8 22 $1,440 $2,736 $304 $4,480 $4,480

Task 800 Subtotal 38 0 32 445 133 130 64 0 64 906 $49,452 $93,959 $11,928 $155,339 $0 $0 $0 $226,700 $0 $0 $382,039

TASK 900 - WINDJAMMER PARK CONCEPTUAL PLAN
Subtask 910 - Project Initiation 8 8 $704 $1,338 $121 $2,162 $3,500 $6,000 $11,662
Subtask 920 - City Council Work Session 16 8 24 $2,016 $3,830 $357 $6,203 $5,000 $3,500 $15,000 $29,703
Subtask 930 - Alternative Development and Public Involvement 8 8 16 $1,312 $2,493 $236 $4,041 $47,000 $8,000 $26,000 $85,041
Subtask 940 - Preferred Alternative Development 8 8 16 $1,312 $2,493 $236 $4,041 $6,000 $13,000 $23,041
Subtask 950 - Conceptual Plan Documentation 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500 $7,500 $19,000 $31,000

Task 900 Subtotal 40 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 64 $5,344 $10,154 $950 $16,448 $0 $56,500 $28,500 $0 $79,000 $0 $180,448

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 182 60 280 861 437 354 372 180 168 2,894 $158,236 $300,648 $38,118 $497,002 $38,000 $176,500 $221,500 $254,700 $182,500 $21,500 $1,391,702
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $59,640

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $1,900 $8,825 $11,075 $12,735 $9,125 $1,075 $44,735
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,496,077

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total CostESA EI MWA Geo GW HAI

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS Project 
Manager

QA/QC 
Team

Design 
Manager

Senior 
Engineer 

PE/FE

Discipline 
Engineer

Staff 
Engineer

Sr. CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

WP/ 
Admin. 
Support

Carollo 
Hours

Page 1
CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 -  Attachment A 470



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 471



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 472



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 473



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 474



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 475



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 476



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 477



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 478



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 479



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 480



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 481



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 482



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 483



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 484



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 485



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 486



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 487



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 488



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 489



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 490



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 491



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 492



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 493



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 494



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 495



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 496



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 497



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 498



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 499



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 500



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 501



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 502



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 503



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 504



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 505



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 506



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 507



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 508



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 509



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 510



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 511



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 512



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 513



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 514



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 515



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 516



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 517



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 518



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 519



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 520



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 521



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 522



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 523



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 524



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 525



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 526



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 527



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 528



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 529



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 530



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 531



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 532



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 533



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 534



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 535



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 536



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 537



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 538



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 539



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 540



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 541



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 542



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 543



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 544



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 545



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 546



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 547



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 548



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 549



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 550



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 551



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 552



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 553



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 554



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 555



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 556



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 557



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 558



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 559



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 560



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 561



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 562



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 563



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 564



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 565



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 566



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 567



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 568



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 569



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 570



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 571



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 572



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 573



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 574



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 575



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 576



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 577



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 578



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 579



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 580



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 581



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 582



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 583



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 584



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 585



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 586



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 587



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 588



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 589



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 590



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 591



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 592



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 593



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 594



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 595



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 596



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 597



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 598



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 599



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 600



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 601



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 602



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 603



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 604



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 605



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 606



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 607



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 608



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 609



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 610



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 611



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 612



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 613



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 614



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 615



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 616



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 617



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 618



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 619



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 620



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 621



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 622



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 623



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 624



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 625



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 626



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 627



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 628



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 629



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 630



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 631



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 632



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 633



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 634



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 635



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 636



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 637



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 638



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 639



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 640



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 641



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 642



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 643



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 644



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 645



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 646



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 647



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 648



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 649



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 650



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 651



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 652



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 653



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 654



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 655



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 656



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 657



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 658



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 659



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 660



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 661



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 662



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 663



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 664



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 665



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 666



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 667



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 668



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 669



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 670



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 671



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 672



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 673



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 674



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 675



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 676



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 677



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 678



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 679



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 680



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 681



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 682



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 683



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 684



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 685



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 686



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 687



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 688



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 689



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 690



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 691



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 692



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 693



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 694



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 695



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 696



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 697



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 698



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 699



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 700



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 701



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 702



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 703



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 704



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 705



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 706



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 707



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 708



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 709



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 710



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 711



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 712



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 713



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 714



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 715



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 716



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 717



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 718



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 719



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 720



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 721



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 722



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 723



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 724



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 725



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 726



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 727



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 728



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 729



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 730



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 731



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 732



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 733



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 734



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 735



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 736



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 737



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 738



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 739



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 740



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 741



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 742



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 743



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 744



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 745



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 746



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 747



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 748



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 749



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 750



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 751



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 752



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 753



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 754



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 755



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 756



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 757



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 758



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 759



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 760



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 761



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 762



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 763



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 764



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 765



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 766



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 767



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 768



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 769



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 770



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 771



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 772



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 773



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 774



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 775



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 776



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 777



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 778



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 779



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 780



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 781



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 782



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 783



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 784



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 785



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 786



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 787



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 788



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 789



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 790



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 791



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 792



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 793



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 794



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 795



CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 796



Consultant Agreement Amendment 
Number: 11 
 

Organization and Address: 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: (360) 279-4521 

Original Agreement Title:  Engineering Services 
for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan 

Project Number: 8549A.00 (Amend 1-5) and 
8549A.10 (Amend 6-11) 

Execution Date 
09/06/2010 

Completion Date 
January 2016 

Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and 
Preliminary Design  ENG 15-02 (previously 
ENG 13-05 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
$8,109,264 

                   
Description of Work:  This Amendment authorizes services to complete construction phase 
services associated with the City of Oak Harbor Outfall Replacement Project. 
 
The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with 
Carollo Engineers, Inc.    and executed on    September 16, 2010 and identified as 
Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.        
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget.  Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work.                           
 
TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change  
                          
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
The maximum total contract value is increased from $7,907,388 to $8,109,264.  This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments.  Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment No. 11 services.    
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
By: Carollo Engineers, Inc.    By:  Scott Dudley, Mayor   
                                                                                                 
  
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
Brian R. Matson, Senior Vice President 
             
____________________________________   Date    
Consultant Signature 
Karl W. Hadler, Associate Vice President   

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 797



April 24, 2015  Page 1 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
OUTFALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Construction of a new marine outfall 
is needed to replace the existing outfall, which has ceased functioning.  
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Outfall Replacement Project (Project) 
based on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method, and as 
described herein. 
 
It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City’s Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project:  
 Project Manager (PM). 
 Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/FI) to assist with construction support and field 

engineering services.  
 Marine Outfall Design Engineer (ODE) to provide inspection of offshore marine activities, 

submittal review, and timely design interpretations and clarifications.  
 Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 

construction.  
 Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 

planning and outfall construction. 
 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM’s 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant’s level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 200 – Public Process Support – Construction  
Task 810 – Project Management 
Task 820 – Construction Meetings 
Task 830 – Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 – Office Services During Construction 
Task 850 – Baseline Sediment Sampling 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 798



April 24, 2015  Page 2 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

SCHEDULE 
 
This SOS is based on on-site staffing needs to support the construction duration of six (6) 
months, as currently estimated by the GC/CM Contractor.  
 

Milestone GC/CM Estimate of 
Construction Schedule 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) April 2015 

Substantial Completion October 2015 

Final Completion Clean Water Facility Start-Up 
 
TASK 200 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT – CONSTRUCTION  
 
Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach as outlined in 
subtasks: 
 
Subtask 210  – Construction Communications Plan 
 
Assist City in developing project strategy for construction communications, to be defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. Plan shall include a “Good Neighbor Plan” appendix, to be 
approved by City Council by resolution.  
 
Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Plan will be coordinated with City, GC/CM, and Third Party CM. 

2. One draft, with one round of reviews is assumed to finalize plan. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize plan is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 210 Deliverables: 

1. Construction Communications Plan with a “Good Neighbor Plan” Appendix, one (1) draft 
and one (1) final. 

 
Subtask 220 – Outfall Construction Launch Materials 
 
Support near-term activities to ready for launch of outfall construction in June 2015. This can 
include:  

 Up to three (3) print materials (e.g., bill stuffer, project one-pager, project newsletter); 
 One (1) display ad for media; 
 Review of and contribution toward Council briefing template for construction/project 

progress; and 
 Display/banner for construction fencing/way finding. 

 
Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 799



April 24, 2015  Page 3 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Limited time is assumed for ongoing Council template review and development (up to 
two (2) hours per month after creation for four (4) months). Any additional support for 
ongoing Council briefings review will require review of scope of work and budget.  

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize materials is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 220 Deliverables: 

1. Up to three (3) print materials for distribution. 

2. Up to one (1) display ad for media. 

3. One (1) display banner. 
 
Subtask 230 – Web Development Supporting Construction 
 
Ready website for construction, including refresh of Project Library page for ease of navigation 
and to easily capture history of project. Update website on a weekly basis during outfall 
construction.  
 
Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference.  

 
Subtask 230 Deliverables: 

1. Update project website library page. 

2. Weekly website updates during outfall construction. 
 
Subtask 240 – Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  
 
Support day-to-day activities and strategic planning associated with project construction. This 
will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total five (5)). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 25).  
 
Develop graphics and products that support project construction outreach (such as project base 
map, contact cards, comment cards, press releases, advertisements for project events), to be 
defined through development of Construction Communications Plan in Task 210.  
 
Subtask 240 Assumptions: 

1. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two (2) subconsultant staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed will be generated by other project 
staff, to be compiled and edited by Consultant for public consumption. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 800



April 24, 2015  Page 4 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask, 
to be further defined through completion of Task 210 (Construction Communications 
Plan). 

5. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

6. Event planning support for a project groundbreaking or other commemorative event is 
not included in this subtask. Subconsultant support for such an event would require 
additional conversation/definition of scope of work and roles/responsibilities. 

7. Consultant shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with this task.  
 
Subtask 240 Deliverables: 

1. Seven (7) additional project graphics/public communication products, on an as needed 
basis. 

 
TASK 810 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 
 

1. Management of Consultant’s team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/FI to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities.  

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month’s accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes.  

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant’s efforts. 

4. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 
 

Task 810 Assumptions: 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 
all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 

3. Project duration is approximately 24 weeks. 
 
Task 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 

2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 801



April 24, 2015  Page 5 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

TASK 820 – CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 
 
Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including:  
 
Subtask 821 – Construction Kick-off Conference 
 
Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project.  
 
Subtask 821 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 

2. Three (3) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, PE/FI, and ODE. 
 

Subtask 821 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 
 
Subtask 822 – Progress Meetings 
 
Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFI’s), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project.  
 
Subtask 822 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 
necessary materials and minutes. 

2. The Consultant’s PE/FI will attend Weekly Progress Meetings, and ODE will attend up to 
four (4) meetings. 
 

Subtask 822 Deliverables: 

1. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 
 
TASK 830 – FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide a Project PE/FI to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/FI will be responsible for the following tasks: 
 

1. Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 802



April 24, 2015  Page 6 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel: Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Coordinate with subconsultant performing 
forage fish sampling for Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). Provide supplemental 
inspection of general, civil, and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection 
reports by others, and prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize 
weekly and monthly inspection reports for the City. 

3. Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

4. Track Requests for Information (RFI): Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFIs and clarifications to the ODE 
when appropriate.  

5. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing to the ODE for review.  

6. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications by the ODE to the GC/CM.  

7. Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM’s monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City’s Project Manager.  

8. Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

9. Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City’s Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs.  

10. Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City’s Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

11. Photographic Documentation of Construction: Prepare periodic photographic records of 
site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports.  

12. Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested. Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved, and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 803



April 24, 2015  Page 7 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Task 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/FI will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/FI providing an average of six (6) hours per week (15% commitment) over the six 
(6) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is allocated to 
both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly progress 
meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

 
Task 830 Deliverables: 

1. Daily inspection logs and photographs. 

2. Monthly summary inspection reports. 

3. Review comments on Weekly Progress Meeting Minutes. 

4. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

5. Tracking logs for RFI’s, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

 
TASK 840 – OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide office engineering services during construction, including:  
 
Subtask 841 – Requests for Information (RFI) 
 
Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 841 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 20 RFI’s with an average effort of one (1) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses drafted by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services included 
time for detailed RFI review. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services and provide high quality submittals.  

 
Subtask 841 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 20 written RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 842 – Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 
 
Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 804



April 24, 2015  Page 8 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 842 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

2. Consultant’s effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 32 basic submittals at 0.5 hours of effort each to review 
and issue final responses by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services includes time for 
detailed submittal review. 

 
Subtask 842 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 32 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 843 – Review of Schedule of Value and Payment Applications 
 
Review contractor’s schedule of value, draft payment applications, and provide comment to City 
for information and/or action.  
 
Subtask 843 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to review the contractor’s schedule of value, and 
draft payment applications. Written responses summarizing the review shall be provided 
to the City’s PM. 

2. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review the schedule of values, and two (2) 
hours effort to review each draft payment application (up to 5 monthly payment 
applications, and 1 final payment application). 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. 

 
Subtask 843 Deliverables: 

1. Up to six (6) payment application responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 844 – Record Drawings 
 
Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM’s as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM’s drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 805



April 24, 2015  Page 9 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 844 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 
hours to produce record drawings from the information provided. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor’s work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

 
Subtask 844 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM.  

2. Outfall record drawings in Auto CAD format. 
 

Subtask 845 – Claim Review 
 
As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 
 
Subtask 845 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of one (1) claim with an average effort of eight (8) hours to 
review and respond. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 
 

Subtask 845 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 
 
TASK 850 – BASELINE SEDIMENT SAMPLING 
 
Following precedent from other aquatic lands easements for municipal WWTP outfalls, DNR will 
require baseline sediment sampling in the vicinity of the new diffuser. A sediment sampling and 
analysis plan including four (4) proposed sediment sampling stations will be submitted to DNR 
for approval. If any samples exceed any of the 47 SMS chemicals, then Consultant will 
communicate with DOE and DNR to determine whether bioassay analysis is required. 
 
Task 850 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on four (4) sediment samples, analysis of 47 sediment management 
standard chemicals, dioxin, furan, and conventional sediment variables. 

2. No sediment sample collection for bioassays (toxicity testing) is anticipated. Budget does 
not include any additional biological testing that may be required by DNR. 

 
Task 850 Deliverables: 

1. Sediment sampling and analysis plan will be submitted to DNR for approval. 

2. Laboratory report with sediment testing results. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 806



EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
CWF Outfall Replacement Project
Level of Effort Estimate 2.5%

April 24, 2015 Matson CAMP Lish Lish 1.9 $10.00
Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $76 $58 $40 $27

TASK 200 - Public Process - Construction
Subtask 210 - Construction Communication Plan $15,000 $15,000
Subtask 220 - Outfall Launch Materials $9,500 $9,500
Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction $10,000 $10,000
Subtask 240 - On-going Planning and Material Development $22,000 $22,000

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56,500 $56,500

TASK 810 - Project Management 16 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $5,428

Task 810 Subtotal 16 0 0 0 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $0 $0 $5,428

TASK 820 - Project Meetings
Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-Off Meeting 8 8 16 $1,072 $2,037 $238 $3,347 $3,347
Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 16 72 88 $5,392 $10,245 $1,271 $16,908 $16,908

Task 820 Subtotal 0 24 80 0 0 104 $6,464 $12,282 $1,509 $20,254 $0 $0 $20,254

TASK 830 - Field Services During Construction 60 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $60,162

Task 830 Subtotal 0 0 60 0 0 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $0 $60,162

TASK 840 - Office Services During Construction
Subtask 841 - Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS Project 
Manager PE/FI WP/ Admin. 

Support Carollo 
Hours

Design 
Manager

SR. CAD 
Designer

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total CostCME EI

Subtask 841  Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092
Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 16 16 32 $1,360 $2,584 $419 $4,363 $4,363
Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values / Payment Apps 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $730
Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 4 40 44 $1,832 $3,481 $573 $5,886 $5,886
Subtask 845 - Claim Review 4 4 4 12 $888 $1,687 $184 $2,760 $2,760

Task 840 Subtotal 4 4 48 40 32 128 $5,904 $11,218 $1,708 $18,830 $0 $0 $18,830

TASK 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $27,391

Task 850 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $0 $27,391

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 20 28 188 40 44 320 $17,580 $33,402 $4,475 $55,457 $76,609 $56,500 $188,566
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $6,655

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $3,830 $2,825 $6,655
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $201,876

Page 1
CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 807



April 24, 2015  Page 1 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
OUTFALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Construction of a new marine outfall 
is needed to replace the existing outfall, which has ceased functioning.  
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Outfall Replacement Project (Project) 
based on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method, and as 
described herein. 
 
It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City’s Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project:  
 Project Manager (PM). 
 Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/FI) to assist with construction support and field 

engineering services.  
 Marine Outfall Design Engineer (ODE) to provide inspection of offshore marine activities, 

submittal review, and timely design interpretations and clarifications.  
 Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 

construction.  
 Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 

planning and outfall construction. 
 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM’s 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant’s level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 200 – Public Process Support – Construction  
Task 810 – Project Management 
Task 820 – Construction Meetings 
Task 830 – Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 – Office Services During Construction 
Task 850 – Baseline Sediment Sampling 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 808



April 24, 2015  Page 2 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

SCHEDULE 
 
This SOS is based on on-site staffing needs to support the construction duration of six (6) 
months, as currently estimated by the GC/CM Contractor.  
 

Milestone GC/CM Estimate of 
Construction Schedule 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) April 2015 

Substantial Completion October 2015 

Final Completion Clean Water Facility Start-Up 
 
TASK 200 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT – CONSTRUCTION  
 
Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach as outlined in 
subtasks: 
 
Subtask 210  – Construction Communications Plan 
 
Assist City in developing project strategy for construction communications, to be defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. Plan shall include a “Good Neighbor Plan” appendix, to be 
approved by City Council by resolution.  
 
Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Plan will be coordinated with City, GC/CM, and Third Party CM. 

2. One draft, with one round of reviews is assumed to finalize plan. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize plan is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 210 Deliverables: 

1. Construction Communications Plan with a “Good Neighbor Plan” Appendix, one (1) draft 
and one (1) final. 

 
Subtask 220 – Outfall Construction Launch Materials 
 
Support near-term activities to ready for launch of outfall construction in June 2015. This can 
include:  

 Up to three (3) print materials (e.g., bill stuffer, project one-pager, project newsletter); 
 One (1) display ad for media; 
 Review of and contribution toward Council briefing template for construction/project 

progress; and 
 Display/banner for construction fencing/way finding. 

 
Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 809



April 24, 2015  Page 3 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Limited time is assumed for ongoing Council template review and development (up to 
two (2) hours per month after creation for four (4) months). Any additional support for 
ongoing Council briefings review will require review of scope of work and budget.  

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize materials is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 220 Deliverables: 

1. Up to three (3) print materials for distribution. 

2. Up to one (1) display ad for media. 

3. One (1) display banner. 
 
Subtask 230 – Web Development Supporting Construction 
 
Ready website for construction, including refresh of Project Library page for ease of navigation 
and to easily capture history of project. Update website on a weekly basis during outfall 
construction.  
 
Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference.  

 
Subtask 230 Deliverables: 

1. Update project website library page. 

2. Weekly website updates during outfall construction. 
 
Subtask 240 – Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  
 
Support day-to-day activities and strategic planning associated with project construction. This 
will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total five (5)). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 25).  
 
Develop graphics and products that support project construction outreach (such as project base 
map, contact cards, comment cards, press releases, advertisements for project events), to be 
defined through development of Construction Communications Plan in Task 210.  
 
Subtask 240 Assumptions: 

1. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two (2) subconsultant staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed will be generated by other project 
staff, to be compiled and edited by Consultant for public consumption. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 810



April 24, 2015  Page 4 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask, 
to be further defined through completion of Task 210 (Construction Communications 
Plan). 

5. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

6. Event planning support for a project groundbreaking or other commemorative event is 
not included in this subtask. Subconsultant support for such an event would require 
additional conversation/definition of scope of work and roles/responsibilities. 

7. Consultant shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with this task.  
 
Subtask 240 Deliverables: 

1. Seven (7) additional project graphics/public communication products, on an as needed 
basis. 

 
TASK 810 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 
 

1. Management of Consultant’s team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/FI to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities.  

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month’s accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes.  

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant’s efforts. 

4. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 
 

Task 810 Assumptions: 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 
all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 

3. Project duration is approximately 24 weeks. 
 
Task 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 

2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 811



April 24, 2015  Page 5 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

TASK 820 – CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 
 
Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including:  
 
Subtask 821 – Construction Kick-off Conference 
 
Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project.  
 
Subtask 821 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 

2. Three (3) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, PE/FI, and ODE. 
 

Subtask 821 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 
 
Subtask 822 – Progress Meetings 
 
Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFI’s), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project.  
 
Subtask 822 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 
necessary materials and minutes. 

2. The Consultant’s PE/FI will attend Weekly Progress Meetings, and ODE will attend up to 
four (4) meetings. 
 

Subtask 822 Deliverables: 

1. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 
 
TASK 830 – FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide a Project PE/FI to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/FI will be responsible for the following tasks: 
 

1. Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 812



April 24, 2015  Page 6 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel: Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Coordinate with subconsultant performing 
forage fish sampling for Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). Provide supplemental 
inspection of general, civil, and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection 
reports by others, and prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize 
weekly and monthly inspection reports for the City. 

3. Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

4. Track Requests for Information (RFI): Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFIs and clarifications to the ODE 
when appropriate.  

5. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing to the ODE for review.  

6. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications by the ODE to the GC/CM.  

7. Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM’s monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City’s Project Manager.  

8. Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

9. Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City’s Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs.  

10. Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City’s Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

11. Photographic Documentation of Construction: Prepare periodic photographic records of 
site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports.  

12. Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested. Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved, and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 813



April 24, 2015  Page 7 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Task 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/FI will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/FI providing an average of six (6) hours per week (15% commitment) over the six 
(6) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is allocated to 
both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly progress 
meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

 
Task 830 Deliverables: 

1. Daily inspection logs and photographs. 

2. Monthly summary inspection reports. 

3. Review comments on Weekly Progress Meeting Minutes. 

4. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

5. Tracking logs for RFI’s, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

 
TASK 840 – OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide office engineering services during construction, including:  
 
Subtask 841 – Requests for Information (RFI) 
 
Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 841 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 20 RFI’s with an average effort of one (1) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses drafted by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services included 
time for detailed RFI review. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services and provide high quality submittals.  

 
Subtask 841 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 20 written RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 842 – Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 
 
Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 
 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 814



April 24, 2015  Page 8 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 842 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

2. Consultant’s effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 32 basic submittals at 0.5 hours of effort each to review 
and issue final responses by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services includes time for 
detailed submittal review. 

 
Subtask 842 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 32 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 843 – Review of Schedule of Value and Payment Applications 
 
Review contractor’s schedule of value, draft payment applications, and provide comment to City 
for information and/or action.  
 
Subtask 843 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to review the contractor’s schedule of value, and 
draft payment applications. Written responses summarizing the review shall be provided 
to the City’s PM. 

2. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review the schedule of values, and two (2) 
hours effort to review each draft payment application (up to 5 monthly payment 
applications, and 1 final payment application). 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. 

 
Subtask 843 Deliverables: 

1. Up to six (6) payment application responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 844 – Record Drawings 
 
Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM’s as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM’s drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 815



April 24, 2015  Page 9 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 844 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 
hours to produce record drawings from the information provided. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor’s work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

 
Subtask 844 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM.  

2. Outfall record drawings in Auto CAD format. 
 

Subtask 845 – Claim Review 
 
As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 
 
Subtask 845 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of one (1) claim with an average effort of eight (8) hours to 
review and respond. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 
 

Subtask 845 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 
 
TASK 850 – BASELINE SEDIMENT SAMPLING 
 
Following precedent from other aquatic lands easements for municipal WWTP outfalls, DNR will 
require baseline sediment sampling in the vicinity of the new diffuser. A sediment sampling and 
analysis plan including four (4) proposed sediment sampling stations will be submitted to DNR 
for approval. If any samples exceed any of the 47 SMS chemicals, then Consultant will 
communicate with DOE and DNR to determine whether bioassay analysis is required. 
 
Task 850 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on four (4) sediment samples, analysis of 47 sediment management 
standard chemicals, dioxin, furan, and conventional sediment variables. 

2. No sediment sample collection for bioassays (toxicity testing) is anticipated. Budget does 
not include any additional biological testing that may be required by DNR. 

 
Task 850 Deliverables: 

1. Sediment sampling and analysis plan will be submitted to DNR for approval. 

2. Laboratory report with sediment testing results. 

CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 816



EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
CWF Outfall Replacement Project
Level of Effort Estimate 2.5%

April 24, 2015 Matson CAMP Lish Lish 1.9 $10.00
Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $76 $58 $40 $27

TASK 200 - Public Process - Construction
Subtask 210 - Construction Communication Plan $15,000 $15,000
Subtask 220 - Outfall Launch Materials $9,500 $9,500
Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction $10,000 $10,000
Subtask 240 - On-going Planning and Material Development $22,000 $22,000

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56,500 $56,500

TASK 810 - Project Management 16 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $5,428

Task 810 Subtotal 16 0 0 0 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $0 $0 $5,428

TASK 820 - Project Meetings
Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-Off Meeting 8 8 16 $1,072 $2,037 $238 $3,347 $3,347
Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 16 72 88 $5,392 $10,245 $1,271 $16,908 $16,908

Task 820 Subtotal 0 24 80 0 0 104 $6,464 $12,282 $1,509 $20,254 $0 $0 $20,254

TASK 830 - Field Services During Construction 60 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $60,162

Task 830 Subtotal 0 0 60 0 0 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $0 $60,162

TASK 840 - Office Services During Construction
Subtask 841 - Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS Project 
Manager PE/FI WP/ Admin. 

Support Carollo 
Hours

Design 
Manager

SR. CAD 
Designer

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total CostCME EI

Subtask 841  Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092
Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 16 16 32 $1,360 $2,584 $419 $4,363 $4,363
Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values / Payment Apps 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $730
Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 4 40 44 $1,832 $3,481 $573 $5,886 $5,886
Subtask 845 - Claim Review 4 4 4 12 $888 $1,687 $184 $2,760 $2,760

Task 840 Subtotal 4 4 48 40 32 128 $5,904 $11,218 $1,708 $18,830 $0 $0 $18,830

TASK 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $27,391

Task 850 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $0 $27,391

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 20 28 188 40 44 320 $17,580 $33,402 $4,475 $55,457 $76,609 $56,500 $188,566
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $6,655

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $3,830 $2,825 $6,655
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $201,876

Page 1
CWF - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amend No. 12 - Attachment B 817



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 

Date

 Facilities Plan 
Authorized 

Amount

 Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 

Amount

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$           50,000$           1,089,561$     
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$           35,317$           
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$             31,913$           
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$           13,829$           
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$             3,933$             
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$           32,612$           149,700$        
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$           3,933$             
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$           103,036$        2,081,168$     
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$             93,709$           
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$           47,107$           24,342$           
Amendment 9 Facilities Re-Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$             
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council 12/2/14 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$     
Amendment 11 Outfall Engineering Services City Council 5/5/15 201,876$        221,965$        201,876$        

Amendment 12

Deep Excavation Eng. Services
Concept B & Parking Design
Park Planning and Outreach City Council pending 1,496,077$     221,965$        1,496,077$     

Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     6,066,486$     396,208$        9,605,341$     

October 20, 2015

818



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility -
Professional Services Agreement 
with ERCI - Amendment No. 6

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 6 to the Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant in the amount of 99,890.97, increasing the total contract amount from $504,079.08 to 
$604,969.10.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.d
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility -
Professional Services Agreement 
with ERCI - Amendment No. 6

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 6 to the Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant in the amount of 99,890.97, increasing the total contract amount from $504,079.08 to 
$604,969.10.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.

One of the many critical components of the project is permitting.  Staff has been working with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International (ERCI) since May 2013 to address cultural resource permitting for 
the project.  On April 21, 2015 the Council approved a Memorandum of Agreement for the Section 106 
aspects of the project. 

During construction Site Preparation B- Deep Excavation, Shoring and Stone Column Construction, 
archaeological monitoring is required in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement.  This 
monitoring involves site observation, contractor training, documentation, and consultation with the tribes.  
The attached scope of work describes the necessary ERCI Scope of Work for the major site excavation
activities.  A standard SRF Engineering Services Insert has also been added to the contract.

ERCI provided a scope of services with assuming archaeological discoveries would be made but 
remediation efforts are reflected in previous contract amendments.  The time and materials not to exceed 
amount of $99,890.97 could be lower if significant cultural resources are not encountered.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $99,890.97

Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund        

The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.

One of the many critical components of the project is permitting.  Staff has been working with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International (ERCI) since May 2013 to address cultural resource permitting for 
the project.  On April 21, 2015 the Council approved a Memorandum of Agreement for the Section 106 
aspects of the project. 

During construction Site Preparation B- Deep Excavation, Shoring and Stone Column Construction, 
archaeological monitoring is required in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement.  This 
monitoring involves site observation, contractor training, documentation, and consultation with the tribes.  
The attached scope of work describes the necessary ERCI Scope of Work for the major site excavation 
activities.  A standard SRF Engineering Services Insert has also been added to the contract.

ERCI provided a scope of services with assuming archaeological discoveries would be made but 
remediation efforts are reflected in previous contract amendments.  The time and materials not to exceed 
amount of $99,890.97 could be lower if significant cultural resources are not encountered.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $99,890.97

Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund        

819



Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

 

June 16, 2015-City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to 
the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $215,533.00, increasing the total contract amount 
from $288,546.08 to $504,079.08.

 

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $23,958.35, increasing the total contract 
amount from $264,587.73 to $288,546.08.

April 21, 2015 – City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Agreement with EPA, 
DOE, DAHP, Samish Indian Nation, the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians, the Suquamish Tribe, the 
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community, the Snoqualmie Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Upper Skagit 
Indian Tribe.

February 3, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 3 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 

Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

 

June 16, 2015-City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to 
the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $215,533.00, increasing the total contract amount 
from $288,546.08 to $504,079.08.

 

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $23,958.35, increasing the total contract 
amount from $264,587.73 to $288,546.08.

April 21, 2015 – City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Agreement with EPA, 
DOE, DAHP, Samish Indian Nation, the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians, the Suquamish Tribe, the 
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community, the Snoqualmie Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Upper Skagit 
Indian Tribe.

February 3, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 3 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $28,074.25, increasing the total contract amount from $236,513.48 to 
$264,587.73.

 

October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $21,660.50, increasing the total contract amount from $214,852.98 to 
$236,513.48.

 

December 17, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $198,520, increasing the total contract amount from $16,332.98 to $214,852.98.

May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $14,332.98 
and a management reserve of $2,000.00.

Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $28,074.25, increasing the total contract amount from $236,513.48 to 
$264,587.73.

 

October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $21,660.50, increasing the total contract amount from $214,852.98 to 
$236,513.48.

 

December 17, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $198,520, increasing the total contract amount from $16,332.98 to $214,852.98.

May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $14,332.98 
and a management reserve of $2,000.00.

820



ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 6
2. Attachment B - Amendment No. 6 Scope of Work Letter
3. Attachment C - No. 1, No. 2, No. 3, No. 4, and No. 5, and Original PSA (combined document)
4. Attachment D - SRF Engineering Services Insert

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 6
2. Attachment B - Amendment No. 6 Scope of Work Letter
3. Attachment C - No. 1, No. 2, No. 3, No. 4, and No. 5, and Original PSA (combined document)
4. Attachment D - SRF Engineering Services Insert

821

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444425665_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444425708_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444425767_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444425793_at.pdf


WWTP – PSA with ERCI Admendment No. 6 – Attachment A 

Professional Services Agreement 

Amendment Number:  6 

Organization and Address: 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 

Phone: (360) 279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:  

WWTPArchaeological Services 
Project Number:  Eng-15-02 
(previously ENG-13-05) 

Execution Date 
05/07/2013 

Completion Date 
12/31/2017 

Project Title:  
City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 

New Maximum Amount Payable 

 $604,969.10 
Description of Work:   
Provide archaeological services for the Clean Water Facility. 

The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with ERCI, Inc. 
and executed on    May 7, 2013  and identified as Professional Services Agreement with  ERCI, Inc. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this supplement 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
See attached Scope of Work and Fee letter dated October 7, 2015.  Contract is amended to include 
the attached SRF Engineering Services Insert      

TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
 Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary for the Site Prep B GMP for the proposed 
wastewater treatment plant property.  The maximum amount payable under the contract is increased 
by $99,890.97 from $504,079.08 to $604,969.10. 

If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the appropriate 
spaces and return to this office for final action. 

By: ERCI, Inc. By:  Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Consultant Signature Approving Authority Signature 

822



 

WWTP – PSA with ERCI Admendment No. 6 – Attachment A 

             
         Date 

823



 
1229 Cleveland Avenue Mt. Vernon, WA 98273 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com  

 

OMWBE Certification 
certification number is W2F0024050 
certification date is July 26, 2015. 
 

 
 
October 7, 2015 
 
Brett Arvidson; Project Engineer 
City of Oak Harbor Public Works 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
Re: Site Prep B WWTP City of Oak Harbor Professional Archaeological Monitoring 
 
Dear Mr. Arvidson: 
 
Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) for your 
cultural resource management needs. ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management program 
and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting.  
 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA and Executive Order 05-05 
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with others 
in carrying out historic preservation activities. The State of Washington also has a series of RCWs and 
associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by.  In providing cultural resource 
management services for clients, Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) works in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
We are providing this scope and budget for 20 days of professional archaeological monitoring for two 
monitors during the utility relocates and building decommissioning; 5 half days for the installation of the 
stone columns and the sheet pilings for the deep excavation; then 20 days for 1 monitor for the deep 
excavation.   
 
We will be using the Archaeological Work Plan that has been reviewed and implemented as part of the 
Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of Ecology. 
 
 
The Scope activities include: 

 Provide professional archaeological monitoring for various activities for Site Prep B for the 
WWTP 

 Provide weekly reporting and a summary report. 
 Provide report to state and federal standards 

 
Assumptions: 

 Human remains or intact deposits are not covered in this scope. 
 No additional plans or protocols are included in this scope.  

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment B 824

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – WWTP Outfall Archaeological Monitoring      2 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 

Qualifications: 

 Experience working on the shorelines of Puget Sound and on projects associated with 
infrastructure construction and repair. 

 Principal investigator and senior archaeologists meet the Secretary of Interior’s professional 
qualification standards for archaeology 

 Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington 
 Experience in Executive Order 05-05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with 

additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains. 
 Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project area 

and experience in tribal coordination and consultation. 
 Strong record of completing work on time within budget 

 
The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 
themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a timely 
fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.equinoxerci.com 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor. 
 
Regards, 

 
Kelly R. Bush 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 
 
 
Field and Administration Units  Rate/Hr Sub Total  

Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/week 8 weeks 32.00 143.75 4,600.00 

Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology  (1 hrs/week 8 
weeks)  

8.00 143.75 1,150.00 

Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (1 hrs/week)  8.00 143.75 1,150.00 

Logistical Planning for field work (1 hours per week) 6.00 143.75 862.50 
Document control and transcriptions (20 hrs/week) 160.00 63.25 10,120.00 
Site Inventory Forms   12.00 63.25 759.00 
Research 30.00 97.75 2,932.50 
Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 32.00 97.75 3,128.00 
Interim (weekly) Report editing (1 hr/week) 8.00 143.75 1,150.00 
Graphics (weekly) Report (1 hr/week) 8.00 97.75 782.00 
Report production interim (.5 hr per week) 4.00 63.25 253.00 
Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal material) 32.00 115.00 3,680.00 
Lab technician photo, metrics and characterization of objects 
and samples; documentation and analysis of both precontact 
and historic (45 minutes per artifact) 

192.00 74.75 14,352.00 

Analysis and management of precontact and historic artifact 
data from disturbed deposits 

32.00 97.75 3,128.00 

Interim Report writing 30.00 97.75 2,932.50 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment B 825

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – WWTP Outfall Archaeological Monitoring      3 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

Interim Report editing 4.00 143.75 575.00 
Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, additional hand 
drawing for profiles and report ready graphics for final reports 

24.00 97.75 2,346.00 

Report production interim report 2.00 63.25 126.50 
Report production Appendices 1.00 63.25 63.25 
Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, field and 
archive paper, storage boxes, other lab supplies 

1.00 833.00 833.00 

Two Archaeological Monitors 20 days of utility relocates and 
Demolition of buildings 

320.00 74.75 23,920.00 

1 Archaeological Monitor for 5 half days of documenting the 
Stone column and sheet column installation as needed 

20.00 74.75 1,495.00 

1 Archaeological Monitoring for 20 days of deep excavation  160.00 74.75 11,960.00 

Equipment maintenance on-going 1 hours per week when all 
equipment is working 

8.00 74.75 598.00 

Subtotal for field and administration     92,896.25 
Travel and Accommodations for Archaeologists       
local travel time (not charging) 0.00 40.00 0.00 

Mileage for monitor 15 trips from Mt. Vernon 2784.00 0.580 1,614.72 

Travel time for crew members not staying in town 1.5 hours per 
day  

72.00 40.00 2,880.00 

Accommodations - for 2 crew members as needed 1.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 

Per Diem (included in housing) 0.00 61.00 0.00 

SUBTOTAL of accomodations and travel     6,994.72 

TOTALS for work without encountering 

intact deposits 

    99,890.97 

 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment B 826



Professional Services Agreement Organization and Address
Amendment Number 1

City of Oak Harbor
Original Agreement Title 865 SE Barrington Drive

Oak Harbor WA 98239
WWTP Archaeological Services

Phone 3602794539

Project Number Execution Date Completion Date Prior

ENG13 05 572013 12312013

Project Title New Maximum Amount Payable

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 21485298
Plant

Description of Work
Provide archaeological services related to the new wastewater treatment plant

The City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Equinox
Research and Consulting International and executed on 572013 and identified as

Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this
supplement

The changes to the agreement are described as follows

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following
See attached scope of work and fee

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following
NO CHANGE

Amendment No 1 12302013 Page 1 of 2WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 827



PROJECT COMPLETION DATEAMENDED 10 December 31 014

PAYMENT shall he amended as follows

Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary to perforrn due diligence on the proposed
wastewater treatment plant property The maximum amount payable under the contract is
increased h 19832001from 51633298 to 521483298 as outlined in theattachcd slope of
vork

Payment shall he made in accordanceqtth the terms and conditions described in the original
contract

It you concur Nyith this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above please sign in the
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action

Consult arn Llnature iii Autho y Sin re

Ainendnmmt N 1 I 31211 Idg

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 828



I1
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 3608264830 wwweguinoxercicom

November 21 2013

Joe Stowell City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Intensive Field Survey for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facilities Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for your
cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management program
and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 05 05
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with others
in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of RCWs and
associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing cultural resource
management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI works in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

This project currently has no Federal nexus and so we expect that we will require a permit from the State
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation to carry out this survey work as we expect to
encounter disturbed shell midden deposits and we may encounter intact shell midden deposits and will
want to test and evaluate these deposits

This scope doesnt include safety fencing and we believe that during the testing in Windjammer Park that
will be a significant issue Although fewer people use the park in winter it is still difficult to keep people
back from our testing trenches We hope the City will provide some assistance with this challenge

We are providing this scope and budget for approximately 2000 feet of machine testing and
approximately 75 shovel test holes in the attached APE We understand that you are in the buysell phase
of land acquisition and that this is the final site selection for the new WWTP facility The data we collect
during this intensive testing will be used as the identification and evaluation phase of the project for
cultural resources Should any cultural material be encountered our permit application would allow us to
test and evaluate that material and collect data useful in adding to a mitigation data recovery plan and to
evaluate and cultural resources for eligibility to the National Register

The Scope activities include

Write a permit application for the Washington State DAHP
Carry out machine testing with approximately 2000 feet of machine testing as per the attached
map

Carry out supplementary shovel testing up to 75 shovel test holes

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 829



Provide a preliminary analysis of all historic and precontact artifacts and prepare them for
curation at the Burke Museum This includes up to 5 boxes of artifacts including any faunalremains

Provide report to state and federal standards

Provide a backhoe and operator for the machine trenching
Assumptions

Human remains will be encountered only once during the testing program
Only 5 boxes of artifacts and faunal material will be encountered during the testing
No additional plans or protocols are included in this scope Should we need to file an amended
permit for additional data recovery that would be outside this scope
Costs associated will completing an HPIF historic property inventory form for the existingfacilities is outside this scope

Qualifications

Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works systems andinfrastructure

Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification standards for
archaeology

Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 0505 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains
Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project areaand experience in tribal consultation

Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

We expect the field work to take approximately 5 weeks from start to finish We will need 3 days to set
up the testing area Then we will have a full crew for 20 days and then a smaller crew for an additional 5
days that includes final mapping and clean up We will not be working weekends unless weather becomes
the critical successfailure element and we have windows of clear weather that allows us to proceedBased on our experience last year weather is a critical player in visibility and will certainly be an issuefor this more precise work

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a timelyfashion Please check out our web site for additional details wwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor
Regards

Kelly R Bush

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey ZEquinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI
WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 830



i a is f

fzk

mow

fia
3

n fib

d 441
yu

h

X19 4
n

i

40 iiHt
lottllt

042P14Fii e424z i
de j

l 9

y

4i4S mss

101114
r y

aFryi aY

4L

4i1 41r471h

ms

t ycfi

Figure 1 Proposedapproximate testing trench locations in yellow

3City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 831



Description Units RateHR Sub Total
Project Orientation meetings and project management 1200 14325 171900
Historic geoarch and archival background research 600 9775 58650
Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes 800 14325 114600
Detennine Eligibility of identified historic properties
for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 200 14375 28750

Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 1200 14375 172500how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Write Permit for survey 1800 9775 175950
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 1200 14325 171900
Document controlfield forms transcriptions site forms 9600 6375 612000lab data management 2400 6375 153000
Report editing 400 14325 57300
Report writing 3200 9775 312800
Graphics layout 4800 9775 469200Curation Preparation 8000 6375 510000Curation Per box costs 1000 150000 1500000
SUB TOTAL

Field Work
4508550

DESCRIPTION
Units Rates Sub Total

Principal Investigator 3000 14375 431250
Senior Archaeologist Field Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Senior Archaeologist LabField Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Physical Anthropologist 4000 11500 460000
Archaeological Labfield Technician 20000 7475 1495000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Equipment Rental Backhoe and operator 1500 90000 1350000
Travel time

20000 4000 800000
Accommodation weekly 400 62500 250000
Per Diem daily 8000 6100 488000
Mileage 320000 056 179200
SUB TOTAL

15343450

GRAND TOTAL
19852000

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey 4
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 832



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 833



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 834



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 835



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 836



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 837



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 838



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this 7 day of L

2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal core tion

hereinafter referred to as the CITY and Equinox Research and Consulting International
hereinafter referred to as the SERVICE PROVIDER

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on May 7 2013 and shall be completed no later than December
31 2013 unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows1433298

4 Reports and Inspections

Professional Services Agreement 1WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 839



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 840



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 841



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 842



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this day of Mgiivh
2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal corporation
hereinafter referred to as the CITY and 41n psi ReSetsa t Cons0 hereinafter referred

to as the SERVICE PROVIDER i n 4net Inc

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on nor 1 113 and shall be

completed no later than nti Ma 1 I 13 unless sooner terminated according

to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows

Professional Services Agreement 1

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 843



4 Reports and Inspections

41 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may

require shall furnish to the CITY such statements records reports data and
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this
Agreement

42 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as
often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary make available for
examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered directly
or indirectly by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated
authorized representative to audit and inspect other data relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports
made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities The
CITY may at its discretion conduct an audit at its expense using its own or
outside auditors of the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities that relate directly or
indirectly to this Agreement

5 Independent Contractor Relationship

51 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDERCITY relationship
will be created by this Agreement The CITY is interested primarily in the results
to be achieved subject to paragraphs herein the implementation of services will
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER No agent employee
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an
employee agent servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose and the
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the
CITY provides for its employees The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents employees servants
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement

52 In the performance of the services herein contemplated the SERVICE
PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct
the performance of the details of the work however the results of the work
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to
the CITYS general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory
completion thereof

6 Service Provider Employeesagents

The CITY may at its sole discretion require the SERVICE PROVIDER to remove an
employeesagents or servantsfrom employment on this Project The SERVICE
PROVIDER may however employ that those individualson other nonCITY related
projects

Professional Services Agreement 2

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 844



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 845



82 Minimum Amounts of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the

following insurance limits

a Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage of One Million Dollars1000000
per accident

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no
less than One Million Dollars1000000 each occurrence Two Million
Dollars2000000 general aggregate

c Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than
One Million Dollars1000000 per claim and One Million Dollars
1000000 policy aggregate limit

83 Other Insurance Provisions The insurance policies are to contain or be endorsed
to contain the following provisions for Automobile Liability Professional
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance

a The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance coverage shall be primary
insurance with respect to the City Any insurance self insurance or
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the
SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance and shall not contribute with it

b The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance shall be endorsed to state that

coverage shall not be cancelled by either party except after thirty 30
days prior written notice by certified mail return receipt requested has
been given to the City

84 Acceptability of Insurers Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current
AM Best rating of not less thanAVII

85 Verification of Coverage SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with
original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including but not
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement evidencing the
insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of
the work

9 Treatment of Assets

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the
CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents if any prepared
by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement

Professional Services Agreement 4

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 846



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 847



discrimination The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately
preceding paragraphs herein

12 Assignmentsubcontracting

121 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the
CITY and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty 30 days prior to the date of any
proposed assignment The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any
such assignment

122 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this
Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local
state andor federal statutes ordinances and guidelines

123 Any technicalprofessional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement must
have express advance approval by the CITY

13 Changes

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided
hereunder however no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding
upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both parties
Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement

14 Maintenance and Inspection of Records

141 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books records and documents which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid
pursuant to this Agreement These records shall be subject at all reasonable times
to inspection review or audit by the CITY its authorized representative the
State Auditor or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this
Agreement

142 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books records documents and other
material relevant to this Agreement for six 6 years after its expiration The
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said
period

Professional Services Agreement 6

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 848



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 849



192 Any action of law suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of
this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County Washington

20 Severability

201 If for any reason any part term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court
of the United States to be illegal void or unenforceable the validity of the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and the rights and obligations of the
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the
particular provision held to be invalid

202 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory
provision of the State of Washington said provision that may conflict therewith
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions

21 Entire Agreement

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and
any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded Further
any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties
Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a material
breach of contract and be cause for termination Both parties recognize time is of the
essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement It is also agreed by the
parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day
and year first hereinabove written

CITY SERVICE PROVIDER

CITY OF OAK HARBOR

865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Dud ey ayo L

Attest

Valerie Loffle ity Cle

Professional Services Agreement 8

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 850



EXHIBIT A

ERCI
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 360 8264830wwwequinoxercicom

March 17 2013

Joe Stowell

City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Survey for alternate outfall corridor Windjammer Park Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for
your cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource
management program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork
and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 0505
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with
others in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of
RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing
cultural resource management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting
International Inc ERCI works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

We are providing this scope and budget for sub surface testing in a single well defined 20 foot
wide corridor over the existing western outfall in Windjammer Park south of the previous testing
area and 45IS298 This scope presumes that no permit from DAHP will be required to carry out
this testing as we are outside of the recorded site

Scope

Design and implement field survey with shovel testing along alternate corridor for outfall
in Windjammer Park
Provide report to state federal and tribal standards

Qualifications
Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works
systems and infrastructure
Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification
standards for archaeology
Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 05 05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 851



Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the
project area and experience in tribal consultation
Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

The following estimate covers the identification and evaluation for historic properties in this
project area The following costs are not included in this estimate

Costs associated with encountering human remains during this fieldwork
Costs associated with completing Historic Property Inventory Forms HPIFs for any
buildings older than 50 years
Costs associated with developing any additional agreements plans protocols or permits
should they be required

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a
timely fashion Please check out our web site for additional detailswwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak
Harbor

Regards

7

Kelly R Bush
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

Description Units RateHR Sub Total

Project Orientation meetings and project management 100 14325 14325

Archival background research 050 9775 4888

Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes

regarding cultural resource issues including the cultural
heritage value of sites within the vicinity of the Area of 100 14325 14325

Potential Effect APE

Determine eligibility of identified historic properties for
050 14375 7188

listing in the National Register of Historic Places
Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 400 14375 57500

how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 100 14325 14325

Document control transcriptions site forms 400 6375 25500

Report editing 200 14325 28650

Report writing 600 9775 58650

Report Production 000 6375 000

Report printing and postage 000 2300 000

City of Oak Harbor Outfall Corridor Windjammer Park 2

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCIWWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 852



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 853



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 854



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 - Attachment C 855



 

WWTP – PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 – Attachment D 
 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 

 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND 

 
ENGINEERING SERVICES INSERT 

 
Revised 10/24/14 

 
 
The following clauses will be incorporated into contracts for engineering services receiving financial assistance 
from the Washington State Department of Ecology Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  In the event of 
conflict within the contract these clauses shall take precedence  
 
Compliance with State and Local Laws 
The engineering services provider (CONTRACTOR) shall assure compliance with all applicable federal, state, 
and local laws, requirements, and ordinances as they pertain to the design, implementation, and administration 
of the approved project. 
 
State Interest Exclusion 
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of Ecology Water 
Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  Neither the State of Washington nor any of its departments or employees 
are, or shall be, a party to this contract or any subcontract. 
 
Third Party Beneficiary  
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of Ecology Water 
Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  All parties agree that the State of Washington shall be, and is hereby, 
named as an express third-party beneficiary of this contract, with full rights as such. 
 
Cost Basis of Contract  
No contract may be written for "cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost" or "percentage of construction cost." The cost 
basis for this contract must be cost-reimbursement, unit price, fixed-price, time and materials, or any 
combination of these four methods. 
 
Funding Recognition 
Documents produced under this agreement shall inform the public that the project received financial assistance 
from the Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  Washington State Department of 
Ecology’s and the EPA’s logomust be on all signs and documents. Logos will be provided as needed. 
 
Access to the work site and to records   
The CONTRACTOR shall provide for access to their records by Washington State Department of Ecology and 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) personnel. 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall maintain accurate records and accounts to facilitate the Owner’s audit requirements 
and shall ensure that all subcontractors maintain auditable records.  These records shall be separate and distinct 
from the CONTRACTOR’s other records and accounts. 

856



 

WWTP – PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 – Attachment D 
 

 
All such records shall be available to the Owner and to Washington State Department of Ecology and EPA 
personnel for examination. All records pertinent to this project shall be retained by the CONTRACTOR for a 
period of three (3) years after the final audit. 
 
Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary Exclusion  
 

1. The CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, debarred, proposed 
for debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from contracting with the federal government, 
or from receiving contracts paid for with federal funds.  If the CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to the 
statements contained in the certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they cannot.   

 
2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to the Washington State Department of 

Ecology if at any time the CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or 
had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 
3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 

participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used 
in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing 
Executive Order 12549.  You may contact the Washington State Department of Ecology for assistance 
in obtaining a copy of the regulations.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a 

person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of Federal Regulations, debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction.   

 
5. The CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this clause titled 

“Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary Exclusion” without 
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered 
transactions. 

 
6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier covered 

transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment requirements.    
 

7. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in the Code of 
Federal Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding agreement, or pursuance of legal 
remedies, including suspension and debarment. 

 
8. The CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file that it and all lower tier recipients or 

contractors are not suspended or debarred and will make this proof available to the Washington State 
Department of Ecology upon request.  The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in 
http://www.sam.gov/ and print a copy of completed searches to document proof of compliance. 

 
This term and condition supersedes EPA Form 5700-49, “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and 
Other Responsibility Matters.” 
 

857

http://www.sam.gov/


 

WWTP – PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 6 – Attachment D 
 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises  
 
General Compliance (40 CFR Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of the Environmental Protection Agency’s Program 
for Participation By Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 40 CFR Part 33.   
 
Non-discrimination Provision (40CFR Appendix A to Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the performance 
of this contract. The CONTRACTOR shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR part 33 in the award 
and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance agreements. Failure by the 
CONTRACTOR to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract which may result in the 
termination of this contract or other legally available remedies. 
 
Six Good Faith Efforts (40 CFR Part 33 Subpart C).   
The CONTRACTOR agrees to make the following good faith efforts whenever procuring subcontracts, 
equipment, services and supplies.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain records documenting compliance with the 
following six good faith efforts. 
 

 Ensuring Disadvantaged Business Enterprises are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest 
extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities.  For Indian Tribal, State and Local and 
Government recipients, this will include placing Disadvantaged Business Enterprises on solicitation lists 
and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.  Qualified Women and Minority business 
enterprises may be found on the Internet at www.omwbe.wa.gov or by contacting the Washington State 
Office of Minority and Women’s Enterprises at (866) 208-1064. 

 Making information on forthcoming opportunities available to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises and 
arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a 
way that encourages and facilitates participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the 
competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a 
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date. 

 Considering in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract 
with Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this 
will include dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to 
permit maximum participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process.  

 Encourage contracting with a consortium of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises when a contract is too 
large for one of these firms to handle individually. 

 Using services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business 
Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 

 If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, requiring the subcontractors to take the six good faith 
efforts in paragraphs 1 through 5 above. 

 
 

858

http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - KBA, 
Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 
for Construction Management 
Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 1 with 
KBA, Inc. in the amount of $510,000 increasing the total contact amount from $295,500 to $805,500.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is undertaking the largest public works project in the city’s history by building a 
new membrane bioreactor wastewater treatment plant.  The city has a strong General 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.e
Date: October 20, 2015

Subject: Clean Water Facility - KBA, 
Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 
for Construction Management 
Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 1 with 
KBA, Inc. in the amount of $510,000 increasing the total contact amount from $295,500 to $805,500.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is undertaking the largest public works project in the city’s history by building a 
new membrane bioreactor wastewater treatment plant.  The city has a strong General new membrane bioreactor wastewater treatment plant.  The city has a strong General 
Contractor /Construction Management (GC/CM) team with Carollo Engineers and Hoffman 
Construction, the project demands strong City oversight and control.  The magnitude of this project 
requires that city staff be augmented by specialists for project success. 

KBA is providing on-site construction period services including project administration, resident 
engineering, neighborhood relations, quality assurance, special inspections/materials testing, regulatory 
compliance, and cost review.  KBA will also provide overall GC/CM services including independent cost
review, GC/CM contract negotiations, schedule review, and risk assessment. 

The original KBA contract provided construction management services to completion of the outfall and 
Site Preparation Package A construction project.  With initiation of the Site Preparation B contract, the 
services need to be extended for that phase of the project.  The contract is also amended to add a 
standard SRF Engineering Services Insert.

The attached contract amendment no. 1 provides KBA’s scope of work and shall be paid on a time and 
materials basis not to exceed $510,000 bringing the total contract amount to $805,500

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $510,000

Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund         

new membrane bioreactor wastewater treatment plant.  The city has a strong General 
Contractor /Construction Management (GC/CM) team with Carollo Engineers and Hoffman 
Construction, the project demands strong City oversight and control.  The magnitude of this project 
requires that city staff be augmented by specialists for project success. 

KBA is providing on-site construction period services including project administration, resident 
engineering, neighborhood relations, quality assurance, special inspections/materials testing, regulatory 
compliance, and cost review.  KBA will also provide overall GC/CM services including independent cost 
review, GC/CM contract negotiations, schedule review, and risk assessment. 

The original KBA contract provided construction management services to completion of the outfall and 
Site Preparation Package A construction project.  With initiation of the Site Preparation B contract, the 
services need to be extended for that phase of the project.  The contract is also amended to add a 
standard SRF Engineering Services Insert.

The attached contract amendment no. 1 provides KBA’s scope of work and shall be paid on a time and 
materials basis not to exceed $510,000 bringing the total contract amount to $805,500

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $510,000

Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund         

859



Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This contract amendment for KBA was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Workshop.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

May 5, 201- The City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign a Profession Service Agreement with KBA, 
Inc. for an amount not to exceed $295,500.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 1 with KBA, Inc.
2. Attachment B - Fee Estimate
3. Attachment C - Scope of Work
4. Attachment D - SRF Engineering Services Insert
5. Attachment E - PSA with KBA, Inc. (original related to the Outfall Construction)

Appropriation Source:               Wastewater Fund         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This contract amendment for KBA was discussed at the September 30, 2015 City Council Workshop.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

May 5, 201- The City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign a Profession Service Agreement with KBA, 
Inc. for an amount not to exceed $295,500.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 1 with KBA, Inc.
2. Attachment B - Fee Estimate
3. Attachment C - Scope of Work
4. Attachment D - SRF Engineering Services Insert
5. Attachment E - PSA with KBA, Inc. (original related to the Outfall Construction)

860

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444426874_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444426895_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444426913_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444426934_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=201ee42513f38f8706cf94adbe1aeea4&aName=1444426985_at.pdf


CWF – KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 – Attachment A 
 

Professional Services Agreement 

Amendment Number:  1 

 

Organization and Address: 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: (360) 279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:   
 
WWTP Construction Management Services 
Project Number:  Eng-15-02 
(previously ENG-13-05) 

Execution Date 
10/20/2015 

Completion Date 
6/1/2016 

Project Title:  
City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
 
                     $805,451 

Description of Work:   
Provide construction management services for the Clean Water Facility. 
 
 
The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with KBA, Inc. 
and executed on    May 5, 2015  and identified as Professional Services Agreement with  KBA, inc. 
         
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this supplement 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
See attached Scope of Work and Fee Estimate.  Contract is amendment to include the attached SRF 
Engineering Services insert.                                  
       
 
TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: Time of completion is 6/1/2016 
                      
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
 Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary for the Site Prep B GMP for the proposed 
wastewater treatment plant property.  The maximum amount payable under the contract is increased 
by $510,000 from $295,500 to $805,500.     
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the appropriate 
spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
By: KBA, Inc.      By:  Scott Dudley, Mayor  
                                                                                                 
  
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             

861



         Date 

862



Project Name: Clean Water - Ph I (Outfall) Month May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16

Client Project No.: ENG-15-02 Days/Mo 20 22 22 21 21 22 19 22 20 21 23 21 21

KBA Project No.: 015011-02 Hr/Mo 160 176 176 168 168 176 152 176 160 168 184 168 168

Contract Type: Cost Plus Net Fee Extra Work 12% 12% 12% 12% 12% 11% 10% 4% 6% 8% 10% 11% 12%

Date Prepared: Adj Hr/Mo 179 197 197 188 188 195 167 183 170 181 202 186 188

Prepared by: K. Adams

Salary Escalation 4%

KBA Labor Hours PHASE II Services Start-Up Ph I Ends

Employee Title
2015 

Rate

2016 

Rate
Total Hours 2015 Total 2016 Total May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16

K. Adams (M3) Project Manager $80.00 $83.20 168 48 120 - 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 

Kris Betty (M5) Principal Advisor $82.60 $85.90 56 16 40 - 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 

Dan Williams (E6) Resident Eng $57.68 $60.00 1,176 328 848 - 152            176            160            168            184            168            168            

Chris Carlile (P4) Admin Specialist $32.50 $33.80 1,176 328 848 - 152            176            160            168            184            168            168            

TBD (E3) QA Inspector $45.00 $46.80 1,024 176 848 - - 176            160            168            184            168            168            

Michelle Leviant (E4) Proj Controls Spec. $47.80 $49.70 - - - - - - - - - - - 

Chad Oxford (E5) Sched/Cost Est $52.92 $55.00 100 32 68 - 16 16 16 16 12 12 12 

Deborah Ottum (M1) Contract Admin $48.00 $49.90 14 4 10 - 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Subtotal - KBA Labor Hours 3,714 932 2,782 - - - - - - 354            578            530            554            598            550            550            

Direct Expenses

Item Total Costs 2015 Total 2016 Total May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16

Vehicle for QA Inspector @ $54.90/day 7,027$    1,208 5,819 - - 1,208         1,098         1,153         1,263         1,153         1,153         

Mileage @ IRS Mileage Rate of $0.575/mile 1,642$    469 1,173 - 235            235            235            235            235            235            235            

Lodging @ $65/night 910$    260 650 - 130            130            130            130            130            130            130            

Misc: Supplies, Equipment, Postage, Copies 49$    14 35 - 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 

Subtotal - Direct Expenses 9,628$    1,951 7,677 - - - - - - 372            1,579         1,470         1,525         1,634         1,525         1,525         

Subconsultant(s)

Subconsultants Total Costs 2015 Total 2016 Total May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16

Geotest Services, Inc. - Materials Testing (not to exceed amount) 10,000$    2,858 7,142 - 1,430         1,428         1,428         1,428         1,428         1,428         1,430         

    5% mark-up on Subconsultant 500$    143 357 - 72 71 71 71 71 71 72 

Subtotal - Subconsultant Costs 10,500$    3,001 7,499 - - - - - - 1,502         1,499         1,499         1,499         1,499         1,499         1,502         

Combined Costs

Employee Title
2015 

Rate

2016 

Rate
Total DSC 2015 Total 2016 Total May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16

K. Adams (M3) Project Manager $80.00 $83.20 13,824$    3,840 9,984 - - - - - - 1,920         1,920         1,997         1,997         1,997         1,997         1,997         

Kris Betty (M5) Principal Advisor $82.60 $85.90 4,758$    1,322 3,436 - - - - - - 661            661            687            687            687            687            687            

Dan Williams (E6) Resident Eng $57.68 $60.00 69,799$    18,919            50,880            - - - - - - 8,767         10,152       9,600         10,080       11,040       10,080       10,080       

Chris Carlile (P4) Admin Specialist $32.50 $33.80 39,322$    10,660            28,662            - - - - - - 4,940         5,720         5,408         5,678         6,219         5,678         5,678         

TBD (E3) QA Inspector $45.00 $46.80 47,606$    7,920 39,686            - - - - - - - 7,920         7,488         7,862         8,611         7,862         7,862         

Michelle Leviant (E4) Proj Controls Spec. $47.80 $49.70 -$    - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Chad Oxford (E5) Sched/Cost Est $52.92 $55.00 5,433$    1,693 3,740 - - - - - - 847            847            880            880            660            660            660            

Deborah Ottum (M1) Contract Admin $48.00 $49.90 691$    192 499 - - - - - - 96 96 100            100            100            100            100            

Direct Salary Costs 181,434$    44,546            136,888          - - - - - - 17,231       27,315       26,160       27,285       29,314       27,065       27,065       

Overhead @ 254,007$    62,365            191,643          - - - - - - 24,123       38,241       36,624       38,198       41,040       37,890       37,890       

Subtotal (DSC + OH) 435,441$    106,911          328,531          - - - - - - 41,354       65,556       62,784       65,483       70,354       64,955       64,955       

Fee (on DSC only) @ 54,430$    13,364            41,066            - - - - - - 5,169         8,195         7,848         8,185         8,794         8,119         8,119         

Subtotal (DSC + OH + Fee) 489,871$    120,274          369,597          - - - - - - 46,523       73,751       70,631       73,668       79,148       73,074       73,074       

Direct Expenses (No Mark-up) 9,628$    1,951 7,677 - - - - - - 372            1,579         1,470         1,525         1,634         1,525         1,525         

Subconsultant(s) + Mark-up 10,500$    3,001 7,499 - - - - - - 1,502         1,499         1,499         1,499         1,499         1,499         1,502         
Management Reserve - upon client approval only -$    - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS 510,000$     125,226          384,774          - - - - - - 48,396       76,830       73,600       76,692       82,282       76,098       76,100       

* Displayed fields are rounded to the nearest dollar in Excel.  Column/Row totals may be over/under by $1 if checking whole number totals by hand.

**October 2015 services is covered with original contract budget.

140.00%

30.00%

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY TO KBA, INC.

10/6/2015

Ph II SERVICES

WORK COMPLETE

PH I SERVICES

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n

of
 H

ou
rs

S
ch

ed
ul

e

Printed: 10/6/2015 2:54 PM S:\Projects\Contracts\Client\OakHarbor\015011-02-CleanWater\Drafts&NegotiationRecords\In-houseDrafts\Ph-2\Estimate-OakHarborCleanWater-Ph2-FINAL-2015-1006.xlsx

CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment B 863



KBA, Inc. October 6, 2015 

S:\Projects\Contracts\Client\OakHarbor\015011-02-CleanWater\Drafts&NegotiationRecords\In-houseDrafts\Ph-2\Scope-Ph2-FINAL-2015-1006.docx 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT A – SUPPLEMENT 1 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Construction Administration Consultant 
 for 

Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 
City Project No. ENG-15-02 

KBA, Inc., the Construction Administration Consultant (Consultant) will continue to provide Construction 
Administration services to the City of Oak Harbor (Client), for the Project known as the Oak Harbor Clean 
Water Facility.   These services include consultation, contract administration, field observation, 
documentation, and material testing, as required during the construction of the Project. 

Exhibit A – Supplement 1 – Scope of Services adds the following services:  Site Prep A and Site Prep B 
services, observation of sheet and micro pile installations and soil stabilization with rock columns, 
assistance with grant funding and documentation, cost analysis and cost comparison, as well as 
scheduling verification. 

The original Exhibit A - Scope of Services is still in effect, with the following revisions/additions: 

SECTION I 

1. With completion of Phase 1 - Preconstruction Services, Section I title is revised to include Phase
2 - General Services.  Everything else in this section remains the same.

2. Section I.B services are complete.

3. With completion of Phase 1 - Outfall services, Section I.C and I.D titles are revised to include
Phase 2 - General Services.  Everything else in this section remains the same.

4. Section I.E.1.a is revised to include the following:
o Staffing levels for Phase II services are anticipated in accordance with the budget

estimate for Phase II, and assumes staff shown will be on-site through the month of May
2016. 

Everything else in Section I remains the same. 

CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment C 864



CWF – KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 – Attachment D 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND 

ENGINEERING SERVICES INSERT 

Revised 10/24/14 

The following clauses will be incorporated into contracts for engineering services receiving financial assistance 
from the Washington State Department of Ecology Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  In the event of 
conflict within the contract these clauses shall take precedence  

Compliance with State and Local Laws 
The engineering services provider (CONTRACTOR) shall assure compliance with all applicable federal, state, 
and local laws, requirements, and ordinances as they pertain to the design, implementation, and administration 
of the approved project. 

State Interest Exclusion 
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of Ecology Water 
Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  Neither the State of Washington nor any of its departments or employees 
are, or shall be, a party to this contract or any subcontract. 

Third Party Beneficiary  
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of Ecology Water 
Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  All parties agree that the State of Washington shall be, and is hereby, 
named as an express third-party beneficiary of this contract, with full rights as such. 

Cost Basis of Contract  
No contract may be written for "cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost" or "percentage of construction cost." The cost 
basis for this contract must be cost-reimbursement, unit price, fixed-price, time and materials, or any 
combination of these four methods. 

Funding Recognition 
Documents produced under this agreement shall inform the public that the project received financial assistance 
from the Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  Washington State Department of 
Ecology’s and the EPA’s logomust be on all signs and documents. Logos will be provided as needed. 

Access to the work site and to records   
The CONTRACTOR shall provide for access to their records by Washington State Department of Ecology and 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) personnel. 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain accurate records and accounts to facilitate the Owner’s audit requirements 
and shall ensure that all subcontractors maintain auditable records.  These records shall be separate and distinct 
from the CONTRACTOR’s other records and accounts. 

865



CWF – KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 – Attachment D 

All such records shall be available to the Owner and to Washington State Department of Ecology and EPA 
personnel for examination. All records pertinent to this project shall be retained by the CONTRACTOR for a 
period of three (3) years after the final audit. 

Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary Exclusion 

1. The CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, debarred, proposed
for debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from contracting with the federal government,
or from receiving contracts paid for with federal funds.  If the CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to the
statements contained in the certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they cannot.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to the Washington State Department of
Ecology if at any time the CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or
had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction,
participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used
in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing
Executive Order 12549.  You may contact the Washington State Department of Ecology for assistance
in obtaining a copy of the regulations.

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of Federal Regulations, debarred,
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction.

5. The CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this clause titled
“Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary Exclusion” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier covered
transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment requirements.

7. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in the Code of
Federal Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding agreement, or pursuance of legal
remedies, including suspension and debarment.

8. The CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file that it and all lower tier recipients or
contractors are not suspended or debarred and will make this proof available to the Washington State
Department of Ecology upon request.  The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in
http://www.sam.gov/ and print a copy of completed searches to document proof of compliance.

This term and condition supersedes EPA Form 5700-49, “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and 
Other Responsibility Matters.” 

866

http://www.sam.gov/


CWF – KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 – Attachment D 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises 

General Compliance (40 CFR Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of the Environmental Protection Agency’s Program 
for Participation By Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 40 CFR Part 33.   

Non-discrimination Provision (40CFR Appendix A to Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the performance 
of this contract. The CONTRACTOR shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR part 33 in the award 
and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance agreements. Failure by the 
CONTRACTOR to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract which may result in the 
termination of this contract or other legally available remedies. 

Six Good Faith Efforts (40 CFR Part 33 Subpart C).   
The CONTRACTOR agrees to make the following good faith efforts whenever procuring subcontracts, 
equipment, services and supplies.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain records documenting compliance with the 
following six good faith efforts. 

Ensuring Disadvantaged Business Enterprises are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest 
extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities.  For Indian Tribal, State and Local and 
Government recipients, this will include placing Disadvantaged Business Enterprises on solicitation lists 
and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.  Qualified Women and Minority business 
enterprises may be found on the Internet at www.omwbe.wa.gov or by contacting the Washington State 
Office of Minority and Women’s Enterprises at (866) 208-1064. 
Making information on forthcoming opportunities available to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises and 
arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a 
way that encourages and facilitates participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the 
competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a 
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date. 
Considering in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract 
with Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this 
will include dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to 
permit maximum participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process.  
Encourage contracting with a consortium of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises when a contract is too 
large for one of these firms to handle individually. 
Using services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business 
Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 
If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, requiring the subcontractors to take the six good faith 
efforts in paragraphs 1 through 5 above. 

867

http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/


CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 868



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 869



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 870



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 871



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 872



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 873



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 874



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 875



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 876



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 877



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 878



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 879



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 880



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 881



CWF - KBA Contract Amendment No. 1 - Attachment E 882


	Regular Agenda for the October 20, 2015 Council Meeting
	C/A 4.a - Minutes of the 9/30/2015 Special Workshop and Regular Council Meeting on 10/06/2015
	 9/30/2015 Minutes
	 10/06/2015 Minutes

	C/A 4.b - Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)

	C/A 4.c - Appointment - Marty Malloy to the Police Community Advisory Board
	 Biography of Marty Malloy

	C/A 4.d - Ordinance No. 1744: Wireless Facilities Modification 
	 Planning Commission, September 22, 2015 staff report and public hearing minutes.
	 Ordinance No. 1744 (Wireless Facilities Modifications)

	C/A 4.e - Ordinance No. 1746: Impact Fee Retention Code Amendment
	 Draft Ordinance No. 1746

	5.a.i - Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
	 10/20/2015 Staff Report

	7.a - Resolution 15-33: Clean Water Facility - Bio-solids Handling
	 Resolution 15-33 - Adopting a Bio-solids Dryer Option for construction of the Clean Water Facility
	 Exhibit 1 - Summary of Bio-solids Alternatives

	7.b - Resolution 15-34: Clean Water Facility - Addressing the inclusion of a community use room into construction of the Clean Water Facility
	 Resolution 15-34 - Addressing the Inclusion of a Community Use Room into the construction of the Clean Water Facility
	 Presentation graphics from September 30, 2015 Special Council Workshop

	8.a - Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #4
	 Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 4 (GMP#4)
	 Attachment B - GMP #4 Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of Award for Packages A, B, C
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	 Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#1)
	 Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#2)
	 Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#3)

	8.b - Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #5
	 Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#5)
	 Attachment B - GMP #5 Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendation of Award for GMP #5
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	 Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
	 Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#2)
	 Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#3)

	8.c - Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 12
	 Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 12
	 Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA and Previous Amendments
	 Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

	8.d - Clean Water Facility - Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - Amendment No. 6
	 Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 6
	 Attachment B - Amendment No. 6 Scope of Work Letter
	 Attachment C - No. 1, No. 2, No. 3, No. 4, and No. 5, and Original PSA (combined document)
	 Attachment D - SRF Engineering Services Insert

	8.e - Clean Water Facility - KBA, Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 for Construction Management Services
	 Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 1 with KBA, Inc.
	 Attachment B - Fee Estimate
	 Attachment C - Scope of Work
	 Attachment D - SRF Engineering Services Insert
	 Attachment E - PSA with KBA, Inc. (original related to the Outfall Construction)




